The Arrival

of

Morning Star

bц

Father Aquinas

"I saw a new heaven and a new earth." Apocalypse 21:1

Copyright 2019 Father Aquinas

Thank you for downloading this eBook. You are welcome to share it with your friends.

This book may be reproduced, copied and distributed for noncommercial purposes, provided the book remains in its complete original form.

If you enjoyed this book, please discover other works by this author. Thank you for your support.

Table of Contents

Dedication

Prologue

<u>Introduction</u>

Chapter 1 Before the Visible Arrival

Chapter 2 Social Behavior

Chapter 3 Freemasonry

Chapter 4 Zionism

Chapter 5 Ecumenism

Chapter 6 Totalitarianism

Chapter 7 The Final Battle

Chapter 8 The Beginning of the End

Chapter 9 The Mystery Revealed

Chapter 10 The Arrival of Morning Star

Chapter 11 Re-establish All Things

Chapter 12 Christianity Fulfilled

Appendix 1 The Masonic Aggiormento on Vatican II

Appendix 2 Exorcism Prayer

Appendix 3 Prayer for the Healing of the Nations

Appendix 4 Fostering True Religious Unity

Appendix 5 1619 Prophecy

Abbreviations of the books of the Bible

Select Bibliography

Publications by the same author

Dedication

In the Name of the Fatl	her:
-------------------------	------

And in the Name of the Son:

And in the Name of the Holy Ghost:

To the saints in Heaven who await to return.

To the saints in Purgatory who pray for the Victory.

To the saints on earth who have persevered, reap now your reward!

"Extinguish not the spirit. Despise not prophecies.

But prove all things, hold fast that which is good" (1Th 5:19-21).

Prologue

The Arrival of Morning Star comes about after the defeat of all evil. The defeat of Zionism, Freemasonry, Ecclesiastical Masonry, Communism, Totalitarianism, and every other force of the devil. This is the Battle of the Ages, the battle in which God's people, the believers and followers of Christ Jesus are asked to deny the mark of the Antichrist, which is the beast coming up out of the sea, and the teachings of the False Prophet, which is the beast coming up out of the earth.

We have His promise: "He that shall overcome and keep My words unto the end, I will give him power over the nations, and he shall rule them with a rod of iron, and as the vessel of a potter they shall be broken, as I also have received of My Father. And I will give him the Morning Star" (Apoc 2:26-28).

It is the opinion of the author that we are now entering into the time of the beginning of the Great Tribulation. What is written down herein is a warning and yet an encouragement to all true believers.

Can you take a chance and deny the evidence produced in this writing? The choice is yours.

"I, Jesus, have sent My angel, to testify to you these things in the churches. I am the root and stock of David, the Bright and Morning Star" (Apoc 22:16).

You are asked to prayerfully prepare for the events that are unfolding in our time.

Introduction

When I published my first book, 'The Gift of Morning Star' in 1992, my objective was to document for my own understanding an overview of what Almighty God had planned and foretold man in Sacred Scripture.

I relied heavily on the Word of God, and also in a very timid sense what He was saying in me. With humble courage I submitted to writing some of the 'prompts from above,' and as I reviewed them recently I was amazed at what has come to pass in the intervening seventeen years. Often throughout that expanse of time I wondered if the life I am leading is of God, have I truly heard Him, has He really called me to follow Him, and am I on the right path? There is a verse in Scripture which says: "Son, when you come to the service of God, stand in justice, and in fear, and prepare your soul for temptation" (Si 2:1). Let me assure you that standing in awe (holy fear) of what God has said, is an understatement, and the only way to do this is to be in His justice, that is the justice of God, and not the justice of man! When it is said to 'prepare your soul for temptation,' I can assure you that the temptation to 'quit' and to seek the easy life of a secular nondescript has been a constant battle. So often I attempted to resist with my body, but at all times I did consent with my whole heart, soul, mind and strength. At times when I questioned deeply in the still of my heart and conscience, and sought for an escape hatch from what I was doing, Jesus would ask me: "To whom do you wish to assign this work?" I would answer in truth and yet dismay: "To no one, Lord." So often in the still small diminutive understanding of self, I would hear my God saying: "Other sheep I have that are not of this fold: them also I must bring. And they shall hear My voice, and there shall be one fold and one Shepherd" (Jn 10:16). I would ask interiorly how does one go about reaching those 'other sheep'? Who and where are the 'other sheep'? Who will reach them?

Somewhere in the 1980's I heard for the first time a hymn with the words which went:

"I, the Lord of sea and sky, I have heard My people cry. All who dwell in dark and sin, My hand will save. I Who made the stars of night, I will make their darkness bright.

Who will bear My Light to them? Whom shall I send?"

The Chorus:

"Here I am, Lord. Is it I, Lord?

I have heard You calling in the night.

I will go Lord, if You lead me.

I will hold Your people in my heart."

Well, in all honesty and humility, I have to tell you that whenever I heard those words I cried. I knew that it was especially meant for me, and I felt, and still do feel, the call to answer, not with words, but with action - that is, my action directed by Jesus, and in Jesus.

Can I respond as Isaiah? He records: "I heard the voice of the Lord, saying: 'Whom shall I send, and who shall go for Us?' And I said: 'Lo, here am I, send me.' And He said: 'Go, and you shall say to this people: Hearing, hear, and understand not: and see the vision, and know it not" (Is 6:8,9). What a courageous man was that great prophet! What a legacy he left all of us who want to hear, to understand, and to see the vision!

From my childhood I always had a deep love for my Catholic Church, and for my gift of faith. It was natural for me to pay attention at Mass, and to be fervent in keeping my First Communion promise of Confessions and Holy Communion at least once a month. Once in a while I did remember my Baptism vows and renounced the devil and all his works and pomps.

In 1987 the Lord led me into the Mojave Desert in California, where I stayed for thirteen months with a Protestant Nazarene preacher and is wife, Hi and Cea Beeson. He was a 'square' Protestant, and I was a 'square' Catholic. He read the King James version of the Bible, I read the Douay Rheims. We never argued, we agreed that we had differences, and that Jesus would sort them out.

One point in which we were irreconcilable was over the Blessed Ever Virgin Mary, Mother of God. On his death bed in 1990, he woke out of a long coma and said: "Tom, what is the great sign which appeared in the sky?" (Apoc 12:1). He was referring to our discussions in 1988 about Mary! I told him: "Hi, that is Mary, the Mother of Jesus, the Mother of God." He said: "If you say so, I believe it." He closed his eyes, went back into a coma, and stopped breathing about an hour later.

I tell this story just to relate that when he said 'If you say so, I believe it,' I was so struck with his confirmation of the truth in me, that I realized that Jesus had anointed me to be His truth in all things. The legacy of Hi was immeasurable! When I said that 'Jesus had anointed me to be His truth,' I also say that He has anointed many others also to be His truth.

After I left the Mojave, I went from job to job, and from city to city, and prayer meeting to prayer meeting, always following the prompt of the Lord and our Blessed Mother Mary. Some churches were very reverent, but as the years wore on, the reverent ones became more difficult to find. Priests who should know better were holding 'show-time' on the altar of God, distractingly assisted by 'Eucharistic ministers,' whom I call 'the blue bonnet brigade.'

I wrote to the Holy Father, Pope John Paul II, some seven letters complaining about the dismal state of the Church, over which he, as the Vicar of Christ presided, and endorsed in his pontificate. Well, none of the letters were answered. But our Lord Jesus Christ dictated those letters, and asked that they be sent. I myself actually hand delivered one of those letters to his secretary's in his office in the Vatican, so I know that he received them.

When I embarked on this journey, listening to the voice of Jesus and following His directions, our Lord told me that everything He would ask me to do, would be revealed to me in Sacred Scripture. And so it has. After many years, He brought me to Heaven and ordained me 'Priest of God.' I often wondered about this. Where was the precedent in scripture? He asked me: "Who ordained Abraham, Melchizedek, Moses?" I understood then, and again asked: "Yes, that was in the Old Testament, but what about the New Testament, especially after the Last Supper?" He reminded me about Saint Paul's ordination and authority (2Co 12:3-9; Ga 1:1,11,12,15,20,24; 2:1,2).

Many years after my extraordinary ordination, Jesus released me to celebrate my First Mass in the Eternal Virgin Eucharistic Church. The title of the Mass is: "The Holy Sacrifice of the Mass and Mystical Eucharistic Union with God." The date of that Mass was 29 September 1998. It is the Mass of entry into the New Garden of Eden. It is the Mass of the New Creation: "If then any be in Christ a new creature, the old things are passed away. Behold all things are made new" (2Co

5:17). In summary, it is the fulfillment of the promise of Almighty God to live in us and we in Him in Eucharistic unity: "That they all may be one, as Thou, Father, in Me, and I in Thee; that they also may be one in Us: that the world may believe that Thou have sent Me" (Jn 17:21). When I ponder that Oneness prayer and the magnitude and majesty of it, I am overwhelmed, and my doubts disappear, my courage renewed, my invincible shield of faith is strengthened, and my energy is bolstered to continue to fight the good fight against the invisible and visible foe. I continue on in my mission as priest of God, called by God, ordained by God, and living by God. I still bring the message of hope to the hopeless, strength to the helpless, courage to the disappointed, and patience to the weary: "I can do all things in Him Who strengthens me" (Phil 4:13).

Chapter 1 Before the Visible Arrival

You may ask what to expect in the time now before the dreaded collapse of the world into total and abject depression, anarchy, and then totalitarianism? Let us look at its present state prior to the arrival of the Great Tribulation.

Before we go into specifics, let us look briefly at what I consider the four different categories influencing global human behavior:

- 1. Social,
- 2. Economic.
- 3. Political, and
- 4. Ecclesiastical.
- 1. Socially I wish to point out that there are two classes of people in the world today. The very small minority who try in all honesty to lead a prudent life, seeking Almighty God in all circumstances, and attempting to do His holy will. They are family oriented, love God, and seek to organize their lives in accordance to their economic, political and religious environment. They are not only Christian, (and by Christian I include Catholic, as well as Roman Catholic, Protestant, Orthodox, and Coptic), but also Jewish, Muslim, Hindu, and a host of others. In general, these people want to live 'good lives' and await God to come and sort out the sorry mess of the world, or await death, whichever comes first. When I say 'Catholic, Roman Catholic,' I mean the Catholic Christian Church before any splits. There are no 'Christians' outside of the Catholic Church. This Catholic group is the backbone of society, and whether or not they are aware of it, they are 'God's Chosen People,' the true Israel, for Israel means 'the people of God.'

There is unfortunately the overwhelming majority in the world whose lives are centered on social behavior which is based on "the concupiscence of the flesh, and the concupiscence of the eyes, and the pride of life, which is not of the Father but is of the world"(1Jn 2:16). This sorry group is the pawn of the manipulators of money and politics. Very few from here will change their sordid ways, but those few who do will reap eternal happiness.

2. The second group are those of the 'economic' culture. Their 'god' is

money and the love of it: "For they that will become rich fall into temptation and into the snare of the devil and into many unprofitable and hurtful desires, which drown men into destruction and perdition. For the desire of money is the root of all evils; which some coveting have erred from the faith and have entangled themselves in many sorrows" (1T 6:9,10). Fueled by greed, pride, power and control, they will do all they can to advance in the pursuit of these vices. Generally speaking, they will die in their economic lust, and not one will be saved, but will go to their reward of eternal damnation. This is such a pathetic group, and they are the pawns of the powers of the world. This group is in turn controlled by the 'manipulators of money,' and these 'manipulators' are in truth the invisible government of the world. It is this 'invisible government of money' which is the most shrewd, cunning, conniving, and destructive of all the groups mentioned. The manipulators are without doubt the absolute tool and destructive weapon of the devil, and is used in various ways against all the four groups.

3. **The political** people, not unlike the 'economic group,' have sold their souls for the sake of power. Political, pride, power, prestige, they assert their authority over their underlings to achieve their goals. The social pawns are ignorant of the fact that they are being manipulated and used in various ways by the shrewd politicians. Do the politicians know that they are being used? Yes, and they want the quick fix and glory of men, for they refuse in their pride to accept that there is an Almighty God who renders recompense to His enemies (Is 66:6). This political group has influence in all the other groups, and is interdependent with them, and on them.

It is from the political group that the Antichrist comes. The politician knows that he is the evil one, but he cares not about the consequences, only the moment of glory.

4. Finally we have the **ecclesiastical** group. The majority of the small minority who lead a virtuous life will have been influenced one way or another by the leaders of the various churches.

However, the greatest warfare by Satan will be waged against this group. He is successful in his diabolical pursuit by getting the prideful to break away from the Mother Church and form what we now have thousands of different 'churches.'

It is from this ecclesiastical group that the False Prophet comes, and it is therefore necessary that all in the 'ecclesiastical' position should be on guard against what is happening in their surroundings. Let me also point out that there are 'false prophets' in every 'christian' church today, as well as in all other ecclesiastical persuasions.

What is the time frame? Truly, I do not know, but here I set out a very brief understanding, without giving a time-frame, as no one knows the day nor the hour. All I can say now is that the deadly Tsunami of 2004 was "the beginning of sorrows" (Mt 24:8). I can also say that as of early 2009 that we are in the beginning stages of the Great Tribulation. How long will the 'beginning stages' last? I do not know. One year, four years? Who knows? God knows!

I advise that it would be very necessary for all people to be right with God, to live in total obedience to the Ten Commandments, and the Seven Sacraments of the Church.

Those who survive to the end of the Great Tribulation will be transformed into their new glorified bodies because of the purification they will have lived through (1Co 15:34 cf). "Blessed is he who perseveres and comes to 1335 days" (Dn 12:12). The survivors, who are the Church Militant, will go first into the New Garden of Eden followed by the Church Triumphant, and then by the Church Suffering as they are released from Purgatory (1Co 3:15). "The last shall be first" (Mt 19:30), and "yet that was not first which was spiritual, but that which is natural, afterwards that which is spiritual" (1Co 15:46).

The Eucharistic Reign of Christ which began at His glorious Resurrection, will last until after all the souls are released from Purgatory (1Co 15:25).

Jesus has and will rule as Eucharistic King through His Sacred Heart and the Immaculate Heart of Mary His Mother, Queen of Heaven and Earth during this period.

The Last Judgement will come after all souls are released from Purgatory.

The final events in the world of the worldly will be:

- a) The Coming of Christ in Person as Just Judge (Apoc 20:11-15).
- b) Separation of sheep from the goats (Mt 25:33).
- d) Sealing of the Pit (Apoc 20:15).

Let us now look at the four main groups as listed above, and deal with

them according to their centers of influence, which in turn affect the whole population of the earth. We will begin with the Social behavior in the world in general, and also deal with the very minute minority who absent themselves from the overwhelming majority of loose behavior.

Chapter 2 Social Behavior

In general, the whole population of the world has been led astray with an obsession for materialism. This materialism has in turn fostered a denial of prudence in almost all aspects of life. With the availability of wealth, which is determined and differs in the mind of each individual, the vast majority of people have become 'God' in their own eyes (Jg 17:6).

The obscene influence of the public media, which is in the hands and control of the ungodly, has led to an epidemic departure form the truth of Almighty God. In it's place is 'naturalism' which says that each individual is supreme in himself, and that the Divinity of the Most Holy Trinity is of no consequence and irrelevant. In many cases, the 'naturalists' deny the very existence of God the Creator.

It is in this perilous mind set that we see the leadership in the world turn more and more to exalt the rights of man, and deny the Rights of God. Let me be more specific, the rights of man in their eyes has superiority and the final say over the rights of Christ the King.

The very fabric of society is corrupted to the point that the world has vomited up a political leadership which offends and even denies Christ Jesus, the Messiah, the Anointed, and places in the law of the land, both at local and national levels, regulations which prohibit the display of anything which glorifies God Almighty, and establishes the socialist (or communist) agenda for the rights of man. These 'rights' are established so as to not offend the liberal practioners.

The overall result is a society in which morals are decayed beyond belief. The family fabric is disintegrated due to the economic requirement of the greed of the materialists, so that marriage is no more sacred, and that cohabitation outside of the Sacrament is more commonplace than the God-given state of Matrimony. People now have 'partners' whither they be heterosexual or homosexual. Their attitude is let everyone 'do their own thing.'

The media in all forms caters to the whims of naturalism and hedonism, and promotes the very ideals of Satanism in every aspect of their publications, written, audio, and video. This hedonism, which is the pursuit of pleasure and self-indulgence, advances the theory that the

satisfaction of desires is the highest good and proper aim of human life. Evil has infiltrated the highest levels of public broadcasting and press, so that the majority of publications and broadcasts are made and controlled by homosexuals, both male and female, whose aim is a world in which good is evil, and evil is good.

The idols of stage, screen, and song, are for the most part living with 'partners' and many of those divorce or change 'partners' at will. Accepted print and video are for the most part pornographic, and so we now have a few generations of people who know nothing else. The public officials in all stages of government, from local precincts to national forum, speak with forked tongue, and it is sad to say that for most of them they are strangers to the truth.

The worship of Almighty God, Creator of Heaven and earth is minimized, and the Holy Days are being stricken off the calendar (Ps 73:8). The Sabbath Day, Sunday, is 'just another day,' with each person doing what he or she desires.

Society is in a sorry shape, and a deeper look will see where the malaise has crept in. I look at Freemasonry as the prime mover of this evil in the world, although it is not the controlling interest. There are a number of groups who at the present time work in unison for the total control of the world. They are: Zionists, Freemasons, Communists, Bilderbergers, Tri-lateral Commission, Council on Foreign Relations, and the Carlyle Group. With their vast power, money and influence, they make up the 'invisible government' of the world. They are all interconnected, and their select and leading members are part of the Illuminati. Let us look first at Freemasonry as the visible leader in the charge for world dominance.

Chapter 3 Freemasonry

The most evil and all encompassing fabric of society is the organization called 'Freemasonry' or 'Masonry' or 'Masonic.' This evil ensnares the unsuspecting into it's ranks, and then gradually entices them into the 'brotherhood of man,' in which the worship of fellows of the same ilk becomes more important than the worship of the God of Revelation, the God of Creation, the Almighty Triune God, Father, Son, and Holy Ghost.

As was stated earlier, the four different categories of global human

behavior affecting the world are Social, Economic, Political, and Ecclesiastical. These four behaviors are encompassed in Freemasonry, and at each degree the Mason becomes more in tune with the sinister plan of Satan, rather than with the ideals of Almighty God, whose God for them is someone called 'The Great Architect of the Universe.' As the initiates advance through the ranks (degrees), the number of members in the higher degrees become fewer, but they advance to the total denial of Jesus Christ, and become totally devoted to Satan, who is for them their "worshipful master." The idea of 'Worshipful Master' is instilled in the minds of all initiates at the first degree, as the leader of their Lodge (or temple), is called the 'Worshipful Master.' It is written: "Let no man deceive you by any means: for unless there come a revolt first, and the man of sin be revealed, the son of perdition who opposes and is lifted up above all that is called God or that is worshiped, so that he sits in the temple of God, showing himself as if he were God" (2Th 2:3,4). In the very initiating ceremony of Freemasonry, the initiate is given a worshipful master, a mere man, who is to be worshiped and so replace the God of Creation. From this point on, the Mason belongs to the devil himself. Satan advances the members through the lure of money in employment, as well as positions of importance in religious, corporate and political circles, and power to make decisions at the highest levels in their field, be it social, political, financial, or ecclesiastical. Freemasonry is the beginning of the descent into hell of the

unsuspecting, and the willing embracing of Satan by the knowing. The Masonic members climb (which is really a descent) in the ranks of

Satan. The Encyclopedia Britannica states: "Though often mistaken for such, Freemasonry is not a Christian institution. Freemasonry contains many of the elements of a religion; its teachings enjoin morality, charity, and obedience to the law of the land. For admission the applicant is required to be an adult male believing in the existence of a Supreme Being and in the immortality of the soul. In practice, some lodges have been charged with prejudice against Jews, Catholics, and nonwhites. Generally, Freemasonry in Latin countries has attracted freethinkers and anti-clericals, whereas in the Anglo-Saxon countries, the membership is drawn largely from among white Protestants." Freemasonry is absolutely Anti-Christ, and attempts at denial of this fact are futile. People professing to be Christians, Jews, Muslims, Atheists, are members of the secret society. Their outward profession of Protestant or Roman Catholic, Orthodox, or other, is only a facade as to their real beliefs. There are two main 'Rites' in Freemasonry, the York Rite with 32 degrees, and the Scottish Rite with 33 degrees. The first 32 degrees are the same in each, but the 33 degree is extremely dangerous and it is from this rite that the "Illuminati" has its dreadful origins. First let us examine the thirty-three degrees in Masonry: 1st degree Entered Apprentice.

When an individual wishes to join Masonry, he is initiated as a novice to the first degree. His initiation ceremony is satanic, as he is led blindfolded, with a gallows noose around his neck, and his left trousers rolled up above the knee. The purpose for this 'initiation' is to show that he has been blind to the truth up until this time, but now he sees the truth, and is willing to die for the cause of Freemasonry. He will bend the knee to all the commands of his superior, who is called "Worshipful Master." The head of the local masonic lodge in any area is called "Worshipful Master," and the aim of an ambitious initiate is to some day, become the "Worshipful Master" of his local lodge. He takes an oath of secrecy to protect the secrets of Masonry, and if he breaks the oath of silence about those secrets, he is punishable by death. Much of the Masonic rituals are centered around murder.

2nd degree Fellow Craft.

At the second degree level, the poor unfortunate is passed from 'entered apprentice' to a 'fellow craft' mason. At this ceremony, the new 'craft' looks down at a black flag lying on the ground, with a skull

and crossbones on it. This flag symbolizes the tomb from which he is arising, that is, he looks back on what was going to be his death shroud. 3rd degree Master Mason.

The third degree candidate is raised from his death shroud by his "Worshipful Master," figuratively speaking, he is raised from death by his god, the "Worshipful Master." From now on he is a Master Mason, and as far as most of these poor ignorant people are concerned, they are the Masters of the universe. The greater majority of them do not know that there are another thirty degrees above them.

4th degree Secret Master.

From now on, the member embarks on a course willingly embracing Satan and his evil empire. Each degree brings him more and more into the lust for power, and the willingness to do whatever is necessary to accomplish favor and advancement. To arrive at this step, an invitation is given directly from the Supreme Council for advancement. The fourth degree up to the thirty third degree are all controlled directly by the Supreme Council of the 33 degree. You will notice that with each advancement, the role of Jesus Christ is replaced by Satan.

5th degree Perfect Master.

6th degree Intimate Secretary.

7th degree Provost and Judge.

8th degree Intendant of the Building.

9th degree Elect of Nine.

10th degree Elect of Fifteen.

11th degree Sublime Elect.

12th degree Grand Master Architect.

13th degree Royal Arch (of Enoch).

14th degree Scottish Knight of Perfection.

15th degree Knight of the Sword, (or of the East).

16th degree Prince of Jerusalem.

17th degree Knight of the East and West.

18th degree Knight of the Pelican and Eagle and Sovereign Prince Rose Croix of Heredom.

This is the highest point to which the majority of those selected will advance.

19th degree Grand Pontiff.

The demands for this step are so diabolical, that only those willing to

become totally possessed by Satan will advance.

20th degree Venerable Grand Master.

21st degree Patriarch Noachite.

22nd degree Prince of Libanus.

23rd degree Chief of the Tabernacle.

24th degree Prince of the Tabernacle.

25th degree Knight of the Brazen Serpent.

26th degree Prince of Mercy.

27th degree Commander of the Temple.

28th degree Knight of the Sun.

290 Knight of St. Andrew.

30th degree Grand Elected Knight Kadosh, Knight of Black and White Eagle.

31st degree Grand Inspector Inquisitor Commander.

The number of evil men at this level in any country is usually limited to 400 members.

32nd degree Sublime Prince of the Royal Secret.

The number of evil men at this level in any country is usually limited to 180 members.

33rd degree Grand Inspector General.

Also known as the 'Supreme Council,' the head of this lodge is called 'Sovereign Grand Commander.'

The most evil men at this level in any country is usually limited to 75 members. This 330, that of the Grand Inspector General, is the most dangerous and vile single office of any organization outside of Zionism.

Their control is almost absolute, and their Satanic influence has permeated into every fabric of society in the modern world.

If we break the above chart into 4 different parts, we will see how the degrees are further significant in themselves:

From 1st to 3rd degree, the initiates are schooled in obedience to their appointed superior. This training is vital for the success of Masonry, and allows the absolute control to the one appointed above in each position.

From the 4th degree to the 18th degree, the members advance in the practice of occult, and are aware that they are coming into the total worship of Satan.

From the 19th degree through to the 33rd degree, the worship of Satan

is absolute. These members do whatever is necessary to destroy God's authority and establish the supreme reign of the devil. All of these members are possessed by the devil, and it is in the 33rd degree that the devil is incarnate in their 'Grand Inspector General.' Part of the 33rd degree is the circle of "the illuminati," that is the enlightened! In England, the British Telephone directory has the listing for this office:

Supreme Council 33rd Degree, 10 Duke St, SWl....0207-930-1606, a copy of the 2002 listing is as follows:

Supreme Council 33rd Degree, 10 Duke St, Sw1.....(020) 7930 1606

The amazing thing about this number is that when it was first issued under the original telephone numbering system in London, the prefix was 01-930-1606, and both parts of it each add up to the devil's number - 13.

They have another office to deal with the affairs of each lodge, and this is also found in the BT directory as follows:

Central London Masonic Centre Ltd, Avery Ho, Clerkenwell Gn. EC1..(020) 7250-1212. Again the last set of digits give double credit to Satan. Originally it was 01750-1212, being 13-13.

It is the aim of the 330 to have total dominance of the entire world. They are truly an international organization, and unlike the other 32 degrees which operate on a national basis throughout the world, the 330 operates on an international basis in all nations. Their members are from every 'religion' including Protestants, Roman Catholics, Jews, atheists, and are powerful leaders in every walk of life - no exceptions. There are no more than 75 members of this clandestine group, whose influence knows no barriers. No major decision by any world government is made without their approval. Their 'God' is the controlling government of the world in the hands of a few. They are the few, they are their own 'God.'

The power of manipulation by these rogues is immense. In 2008 they caused the price per barrel of oil to explode to \$150, and since their costs never increased, they used their excessive windfall profits to purchase controlling interests in vital necessity companies, including banking.

It is obvious that they oppose the Super-natural and Supra-national

Kingship of Christ, and it goes without much elaboration that they are in direct opposition and conflict with God the Almighty Creator of Heaven and earth.

As Jesus Christ, King of All Nations, has set up His hierarchy on earth, so too Satan through the Illuminati, has copied Him in setting up his diabolical structure. As Jesus gave His Blood for the life of the world, Satan demands blood from those possessed by him for control of the world. As we said in the 1st degree of Freemasonry, murder plays a major role in its rituals. As Jesus gave us an example of purity and celibacy, Freemasonry has sex, contraception, adultery, divorce, and abortion, and war as its offering to their "Worshipful Master," Satan. The Illuminati uses the Masonic structure with its four main lodges: Blue, Red, Black, and Orange to accomplish their aim, outlined as follows:

The Blue Lodge is to take control of all the governments of the world. The Red Lodge is to assist the Blue with revolution if necessary. The Black Lodge is to assist with famine when needed (cut off the food supply).

The Orange Lodge is to destroy the Church.

The architect of the Masonic constitution states that it is expedient only to oblige members to a religion to which all men agree. (That 'religion' is ultimately Freemasonry). They leave their particular opinions to themselves. (Those 'opinions' are Christian, Jewish, etc). The Name of Christ was eliminated from their "prayers," and replaced by the "Great Architect of the Universe", meaning Satan. In this ecumenical move, the way was made for the de-Christian-ization of the cult. Pope Clement XII condemned Freemasonry on 28 April, 1738, just 21 years after its founding in England. On 27 May 1917, just 14 days after Our Lady's first apparition at Fatima, the Roman Catholic Church officially condemned the Masonic sect under Canon 2335 which reads: "Persons joining associations of the Masonic sect or any others of the same kind which plot against the Church and legitimate civil authorities contract 'ipso facto' excommunication simply reserved to the Apostolic See." In 1983, under the Pontificate of John Paul II, this law was watered down to Canon 1374 which states: "A person who joins an association which plots against the Church is to be punished with a just penalty; one who promotes or takes office in such an association, is to

be punished with an interdict."

The evil of Freemasonry has arrived at the highest levels in the Vatican, and in the Roman Catholic Church worldwide. The Masonic Lodge (and temple) in the Vatican has at its highest level the 330, known as the "Grand Inspector General." It also all degrees, including the 19th degree (Grand Pontiff), the 23rd degree (Chief of the Tabernacle), and the 24th degree (Prince of the Tabernacle).

In order to achieve it's design, it is necessary for the Illuminati through Freemasonry to destroy the true Church, in order to give the entire world over to their boss, Satan. They will use any and all means to accomplish this.

Time is now moving on and the evil designs of the Antichrist are coming more into focus. World events are such, that respect for those in authority dwindles, and the person of the man of iniquity, is emerging only too rapidly.

Freemasons are the locusts which ascend out of the bottomless pit unto the earth, as is revealed in the Book of the Apocalypse, known also as the Book of Revelation (Apoc 9:1-11). If we analyze these verses with relation to Freemasonry we will have a clear picture of the events to take place:

"And the fifth angel sounded the trumpet, and I saw a star fall from heaven upon the earth. And there was given to him the key of the bottomless pit" (9:1).

The star which fell from heaven was a high prelate who made reliance on his own knowledge, rather than on the gift of Holy Orders conferred on him at his ordination, and then extended as he was elevated to higher offices within the Church. This is said because 'there was given to him the key of the bottomless pit,' and this 'key' is the power to exorcize Satan and his evil minions and cast them out of the Church, binding them and sending them to hell. It was stated in Apoc 1:20 that a star was a bishop of the Church, so now we will see that this was a very mighty star because of the havoc he raised, and he had to be a pope, as the pope is the 'bishop of Rome.'

"And he opened the bottomless pit, and the smoke of the pit arose, as the smoke of a great furnace. And the sun and the air were darkened with the smoke of the pit" (9:2).

This bottomless pit is an abyss full of hatred and revenge, from which

the evil spirits will later be sent to 'the hell of fire' for all eternity. The sun is darkened because the power and authority of truth has been compromised with grave error. Liberalism and atheistic ecumenism has allowed the power of Freemasonry to enter the Church at the highest level, and bring with it, the controlling horrors of Zionism and Communism. The filthy demons (smoke) infested the minds (air) of mankind with sin, ugly designs, thoughts, and rebellion. Now, at this the end of time, they are let *loose* by one who had the 'key' and they come with a vengeance, against the priesthood which sent them there. The angel with the key was Angelo Cardinal Roncalli who was elected Pope John XXIII on 28 October 1958. He convoked the Roman Synod, established the Commission for the Revision of the Code of Canon Law. The new code eliminated the name of Freemasons directly, and also the condemnation of Freemasonry, which previous condemnation excommunicated all members of that society. The Vatican II Council changed the original Latin Vulgate Bible, changed the Mass, changed the Sabbath from Sunday to include Saturday evening, and changed the administration of the Sacraments. John XXIII died on 3 June 1963, and was beatified by Pope John Paul II on 3 June, 2000. When he was created cardinal in 1953, he received the zucchetto (pileolus in Latin), the skullcap, from Pope Pius XII. He insisted upon receiving the Cardinal's biretta from the avowed atheist, anti-Catholic, and notoriously anti-clerical, 330 Mason, Vincent Auriol, Socialist President of France (1947-54). He actually knelt down before the Freemason Auriol in order to accept the Cardinal's biretta. In this act Roncalli bowed down to his worshipful master - Satan. The master of all ranking Masons is Satan, and from the 18th degree onward they call Satan their worshipful master and grand architect of the universe. As Pope John XXIII, on 13th April 1959 he received Auriol as his guest at the Vatican! (Please note that April is the 4th month - that is the 1+3 month, a Masonic '13' signal)! Why the 13th? 13 in spiritual numbers signifies 'treachery' and is Satan's number. '13' is the number which Freemasons claim as their standard. So on the 13th of the 13th (1+3 month) John XXIII received his Masonic co-conspirator at the Headquarters of the Roman Catholic Church! It should be noted that John XXIII was the name of the 37th anti-pope who existed from 1410-

1415. Why did he take this name? X-XIII, that is to accentuate the 13,

the commandments of Satan's Freemasonry.

In 1960 he disobeyed Mary, the Mother of Jesus Christ, Mother of the Church, Queen of Heaven and earth, angels and men, who had requested that the Third Secret of Fatima should be made public to the world on the death of the visionary Lucia, or in 1960 whichever came first. John XXIII, refused to make the message public.

"And from the smoke of the pit there came out locusts upon the earth. And power was given to them, as the scorpions of the earth have power" (9:3).

These *locusts* are heretics and schismatics, and they are as *scorpions* with their false doctrines and protesting evangelical easy solutions to comfortable living. The locusts are also military terrorists who have power to strike with speed against any target they desire from their position of subtle advantage. These terrorists *(locusts)* are in every department and infrastructure in every country of the world today, for instance: government, economics, religious, communications, you name it. Their message is 'religious' darkness *(black smoke)*, but they will be defeated as we shall see.

"And it was commanded them that they should not hurt the grass of the earth, nor any green thing, nor any tree, but only the men who have not the sign of God on their foreheads" (9:4).

These *locusts* have no power against those under the protection of Eucharistic man, but wage war against the lukewarm and ungodly who do not accept the designs of Zionism/Masonry/Communism. If they attack Eucharistic man, they are immediately defeated and cast back into hell. The locusts have power against unbelieving man, that is, those who serve evil and deny the Seven Sacraments.

"And it was given unto them that they should not kill them, but that they should torment them five months. And their torment was as the torment of a scorpion when he strikes a man" (9:5).

Their terrible torments destroy men's capability to govern, rule, and live normally. They are totally disoriented. The torments are also an effort to get man to see his evil way and convert. The torments also are a foretaste of the pains of Hell.

"And in those days, men shall seek death and shall not find it. And they shall desire to die, and death shall fly from them" (9:6).

Since the whole way of safe and comfortable life is destroyed, and all

the ungodly population is now living in abject poverty, and fear, so death will be preferred - but denied to them at that time, as God is still seeking souls to convert and return to Him. This is a time when those in torment who return will have served their Purgatory while living on earth.

Consider here that literally all Hell is let loose. These demons are sicknesses, diseases, accidents, plagues, famine, arguments, war, insurrections, terrorism, and all the evils you can imagine because the abyss was full of them.

Only those people who are in the state of grace, that is totally without sin, will be immune from the attacks of the evil ones. Simply stated, Eucharistic man will be free from the attacks on his person, but Eucharistic man will suffer to see his loved ones, and friends, and neighbors, and the world population in general suffer so greatly, when they could have avoided it. (Notice I said 'avoided' not any other word)!

"And the shapes of the locusts were like unto horses prepared unto battle. And on their heads were, as it were, crowns like gold, and their faces were as the faces of men" (9:7).

Jet fighters, yes, and more than that. Consider a horse coming charging against defenseless you. You have no weapon against him. But these 'horses' are 'men' having the human power of materialistic worldly man *(gold)*. The only defense against them is the spirit of the Living God through the Seven Sacraments, which so many reject and rely on their own egotistical understanding.

"And they had hair as the hair of women, and their teeth were as lions" (9:8).

The 'hair of women' indicates that inside they are fearful and cowards, using the bravado of appearance to hide their true self. They are evil spirits and vicious and vengeful (lion's teeth), and rely on their position for safety.

As a physical description they could be described as the roaring fighter planes, with pictures or decals or art work of the pilot's choosing, depicting women, jaw-teeth, demons, artillery, and the like. It is more than that. It is the swift and ferocious attack by the demons of evil using every allurement to destroy their prey.

"And they had breastplates as breastplates of iron, and the noise of

their wings was as the noise of chariots and many horses running to battle" (9:9).

The evil spirits let loose from the bottomless pit are battle tested (breastplates of iron), boastful (noise) and numerous (many), always on the attack (running to battle), for Satan is a cruel task master. In the physical sense, see here the descriptions of noisy helicopters with

their guns, fore and aft. Unless one is in the protection of Eucharistic Christ Jesus they will be unable to stand against the attacks from the demons. It is during this time that some will convert and avoid hell, as they reach out for the Divine Mercy of God.

"And they had tails like to scorpions, and there were stings in their tails. And their power was to hurt men, five months" (9:10).

The *scorpion's tail* indicates their cunning and deceptiveness and power was to incapacitate people for an extended period of time. While at first encounter it might seem that the unsuspecting have braved the fray, there is a surprise attack from the *scorpions tail*, but the grace (*spiritual five*) is available for those who reach out and take it.

'The locusts' are also the heretics and anti-christs, mostly to be found in the Zionists, Masonic, Communist and Muslim societies, whose plan is to conquer the world by sword, and any act of terror which will achieve their goal. Their master is Satan, and have no doubt about it. There are many other groups who fit this category and we will see them in the chapter on Totalitarianism.

"And they had over them a king, the angel of the bottomless pit {whose name in Hebrew is Abaddon, and in Greek Apollyon, in Latin Exterminans}" (9:11).

The three-fold translation of his name means that he is universal or worldwide. He is the exterminator, whose title is 'king,' the 'angel of the bottomless pit,' and whose designs are to bring all people to hell, and destroy the followers of Christ Jesus Eucharist.

The most common identification of the 'exterminator' is the Antichrist, and some have even said that the heretic Martin Luther and Protestantism was the Antichrist. Well, this is a convenient explanation, but one which is not informed with knowledge. Antichrist is a politician, a political ruler, not a religious personality. The False Prophet is a religious. Remember that Satan must always have an Antichrist in place like Stalin, Mao, and Hitler: "and as you have heard

that Antichrist comes, even now there are become many Antichrists" (1Jn 2:18). Why is this so? Because, "of that day or hour no man knows, neither the angels in Heaven, nor the Son, but the Father" (Mk 13:32).

The Masons are the tools of Zionism, and are used to accomplish the goals of the Zionists in capturing the entire world for the devil. The Zionists allow the Masons to control the governments of the world, and the string they use is money: "All things obey money" (Ec 10:19). It should be noted here that many Jews are Freemasons, but not many Jews are Zionists.

As stated earlier, the objective of the Orange Lodge of Freemasonry is to destroy the Church, and by the Church I mean the Catholic Church. In this regard they have an agenda, and unfortunately this agenda is sponsored and executed by Freemasons within the Vatican. In Appendix 1 I have included a reported "Aggiormento" (a collection of notes) which supposedly came from a Freemason source. I have not been able to confirm the authenticity of this, but in the following paragraphs I answer the points which have happened in the Church since 1962.

If we look at some of the objectives they seem to wish to achieve, and see their results, we will be quite startled at the results.

They seek to remove St. Michael who is proclaimed the Archangel guardian of the Catholic Church. The Church has always sought his assistance based on Holy Scripture, and it is Saint Michael that the Freemasons and Zionists fear: "But the prince of the kingdom of the Persians resisted me one and twenty days: and behold Michael, one of the chief princes, came to help me, and I remained there by the king of the Persians...But I will tell you what is set down in the scripture of truth: and none is my helper in all these things, but Michael your prince...But at that time shall Michael rise up, the great prince, who stands for the children of your people: and a time shall come, such as never was from the time that nations began, even until that time. And at that time shall thy people be saved, every one that shall be found written in the book" (Dn 10:13,21;12:1). In the Old Testament the victory of Saint Michael is proclaimed.

Again it is written: "There was a great battle in Heaven: Michael and his angels fought with the dragon, and the dragon fought, and his

angels. And they prevailed not: neither was their place found any more in Heaven. And that great dragon was cast out, that old serpent, who is called the devil and Satan, who seduces the whole world. And he was cast unto the earth: and his angels were thrown down with him. And I heard a loud voice in Heaven, saying: Now is come salvation and strength and the Kingdom of our God and the power of His Christ: because the accuser of our brethren is cast forth, who accused them before our God day and night" (Apoc 12:7-10). In the New Testament the victory of Saint Michael is revealed.

So, is it any wonder that the Zionist/Masons want every prayer mentioning Saint Michael, whether inside or outside of the Mass, to be removed along with all of his statues. Their anger and fear of Saint Michael and 'set prayers' is understandable. In 1884 the then Pope Leo XIII, after he had celebrated Mass and was at the foot of the Altar, he had a vision of Satan shaking his first at Jesus and stating that given 100 years that he would conquer the world. Pope Leo was so shaken by this vision that he immediately went to his office and wrote this Exorcism Prayer, also known as 'The Saint Michael Prayer,'as follows:

Saint Michael the Archangel, defend us in battle.

Be our protection against the wickedness and the snares of the devil.

May God rebuke him, we humbly pray,

and do thou O Prince of the Heavenly Host,

by the power of God, cast down into Hell,

Satan and all his evil spirits

who wander throughout the world,

seeking the ruin of souls. Amen.

(See Appendix 2 for a long form of this prayer to which I have added to the above some words which I believe are appropriate for today).

The Zionist/Masons wanted to put a stop to the practice of doing penance during Lent. They also wanted to stop the practice of fasting and refraining from eating meat and fowl on Fridays.

The dress code for attending Church was essentially abolished, as women were encouraged to remove their hats in Church. This led to the women's liberation, allowing female altar girls, and the demand (as yet officially unfulfilled) of 'Priestesses.'

At the Vatican II Council, they were successful in assigning Protestant Ministers to revise and sacrilegiously alter the Mass, and to instigate doubts about the truth of Holy Eucharist. They have been successful in spreading the error that Holy Communion is only symbolic, and that it is just bread. They were successful in getting lay people to distribute Communion, 'to speed up the show!'

They have stopped Communicants from kneeling to receive Holy Eucharist.

A further result was to stop Latin in the Liturgy of the Mass, as well as getting rid of the Gregorian chant and sacred organ music, which were replaced with Protestant hymns. The organ has in many instances been replaced with guitars, harps, drums, clapping of hands and stomping of the feet. Personal prayer and reflection has been effectively stopped. The Tabernacle has been removed to a lesser important place in the Sanctuary, or even a side or back room. The Altar Rails, separating the Sanctuary as a very sacred place, have been removed. The celebrant has a 'presidential chair' as the center piece in the once sacred Sanctuary. He is then the center of attention. Genuflections by the Priest at Mass are rare, if ever.

The word 'Saint' is very seldom used when reading the Gospel or the Epistles (Letters of Saints Paul, James, Peter, John and Jude), thus reducing them to a common position with the people.

The Douay Rheims Bible, once the official version Catholic Bible of the English speaking people, is replaced at the whim of the Council of Bishops in each country with non-Catholic bibles.

The Official Bible of the Roman Catholic Church is the Vulgate, but this has been 'revised' after Vatican II to comply with modern thinking. God's word has been changed.

Personal prayer books have almost totally disappeared and replaced with leaflets for Mass, or a disposable 'Missalette.' Litanies to the Sacred Heart of Jesus, the Blessed Mother, Saint Joseph, are just a memory for few.

Statues of saints and pictures of Angels have been removed from the Church building.

Teachings abound that Jesus had brothers and sisters, and the belief that Mary had other children is accepted by many, thus doing away with the whole mystery of her perpetual virginity, and contradicting that before the Fall in the Garden of Eden that woman was to bring forth children without pain. But after the Fall God said: "I will multiply your sorrows,

and your conceptions: in sorrow shall you bring forth children" (Gn 3:16).

Religious Sisters are disappearing as communities, as the secular world has appealed to their vanity, charm and beauty. Those nuns who remain, generally do so in secular street clothes, with little or no sign of their religious calling.

Vocations to the priesthood and sisterhood have essentially dried up. Catholic Schools have almost disappeared, as the demands for money and personal luxuries have taken precedence over religious education. The public grants for schools have allowed the governments to control the school agendas.

The closing of Churches because of lack of Priests, is alarming. Once holy Churches are often been turned into a wine bar or restaurant. Since Vatican II no apparitions of the Blessed Virgin Mary have been approved by the Roman Catholic Church.

It is certain that a number of Cardinals, archbishops, bishops and priests are members of the Masons, and that the Craft with its occult meetings is practiced in the Vatican itself. How else could the changes have been made to the once Holy Church?

We said earlier that there are a number of groups who at the present time work in unison for the total control of the world: The Zionists, Freemasons, Communists, Bilderbergers, Tri-lateral Commission, The Council on Foreign Relations (CFR), and the Carlyle Group. It is not the intent of this book to deal in depth with the aforementioned groups, as there are many authoritative writings dealing exclusively with them. My purpose is to deal with them only in relationship to their defiance of God's Super-natural and Supra-national Kingdom on earth. By Supernatural I mean God's Divine authority and power over His Creation, and by Supranational I mean His Kingship over all the nations of the earth.

Briefly dealing with these groups in the order of their known appearance in the world, we have first:

The Bilderbergers.

The Bilderberg Group is a powerful front for the Illuminati. Formed in 1954 by Prince Bernhard of the Netherlands (who was a former SS-officer), and Joseph Retinger from Poland, they called their society, The Bilderberg Group, the name of the Hotel Bilderberg in

Oosterbreck.

The members are mostly from Europe, the USA and Canada. Their meetings are top secret, but it is known that their agenda is the take over of the world, by enticing politicians to bring their countries into the New World Order, which they plan to be accomplished by the year 2012, with the help, if necessary, of their UN Army, or should I say the UN Peace Keeping Force!

The Council on Foreign Relations (CFR)

The members of this secret society (established in 1971 by Rockefeller) are Americans and Canadians. The members work closely with world leaders having skills in banking, economics, politics, military, education, etc. Their objective is again to speed up the desires of Rockefeller and have the One World Government, also called the New World Order, under the Satanic kingdom of Zion which is in opposition to the Kingdom of God.

The Trilateral Commission

The Trilateral Commission was founded in June 1973 by David Rockefeller of the Illuminati, and the Council on Foreign Relations, as well as Zbigniew Brzezinski also of the Illuminati, Secretary of State to President Carter, and now special advisor (controller) to President Barack Obama. Their purpose is to speed up the New World Order takeover. They have in their membership top executives from USA, Japan and Europe (thus the Tri-lateralists).

All their members are Freemasons/Communists and they control the majority of positions in every Zionist government of the world, be it economics, banking, taxation, energy (gas and oil), Hollywood, and the press, to name a few.

The Carlyle Group.

Formed in 1987 in the ritzy hotel on New York's Upper East Side, and like the Bilderbergers in 1954, took their name from the Carlyle Hotel in which they met. They link money to war, 'defense,' banking, oil and gas. We will see in the chapter on Totalitarianism their influence throughout the world.

All of these groups are in action and inter-action with each other. Their members are Christian, Atheists, Jews, Muslims, Hindu, and others. Religion, (or stated religion for political purposes), has no meaning for them. Almighty God in their eyes does not exist, and is powerless

against their designs. They are so ignorant of God's power and plan: "Why have the Gentiles raged, and the people devised vain things? The kings of the earth stood up, and the princes met together, against the Lord, and against his Christ. 'Let us break their bonds asunder: and let us cast away their yoke from us.'

He that dwells in Heaven shall laugh at them: and the Lord shall deride them. Then shall He speak to them in His anger, and trouble them in His rage.

But I am appointed king by Him over Sion, His holy mountain, preaching His commandment. The Lord has said to me: 'Thou art My son, this day have I begotten thee. Ask of Me, and I will give thee the Gentiles for thy inheritance, and the utmost parts of the earth for thy possession. Thou shall rule them with a rod of iron, and shalt break them in pieces like a potter's vessel.'

And now, O ye kings, understand: receive instruction, you that judge the earth. Serve ye the Lord with fear: and rejoice unto Him with trembling. Embrace discipline, lest at any time the Lord be angry, and you perish from the just way, when His wrath shall be kindled in a short time, blessed are all they that trust in Him" (Ps 2).

There is a question which I have that has always bothered me, and that is: Why did the USA Presidents Kennedy, Regan, Obama want to make such a big deal about speaking to the world from Berlin? They addressed the nations from near the seat of Satan: "And to the angel of the church of Pergamus write: These things says He that has the sharp two-edged sword: I know where you dwell, where the seat of Satan is" (Apoc 2:12). Pergamus is in present day Turkey, and it was excavated by a German archaeologist in the waning days of the Ottoman Empire, and was moved to Berlin in 1902 and Kaiser Wilhelm II celebrated its erection there. In 1934 the antichrist Adolph Hitler became dictator and used the podium of Satan's throne for his Nazi rallies. When the Soviets captured Berlin, they took the 'altar' to Leningrad in 1948, incidentally it was the same year as the new Israel state was born. The 'Throne' was returned to Berlin in 1958.

Why have the American "Super Power and Mega Power" leaders been so keen on speaking in Berlin? How could they have organized such massive crowds to come to hear them speak?

The connection between Satan's Pergamus altar, Freemasonry,

Zionism, and the 'elected' leaders is suspicious if not ominous. As I said earlier, Freemasonry uses all the means at its disposal to gain control of the whole world. However, Masonry is subject to Zionism, simply because the Zionists control the supply of money.

Chapter 4 Zionism

Zionism is the denial of the God of Creation, the God of Revelation, the Almighty Triune God. Zionism is the denial of God's Covenant given to Abraham and Moses. Zionism the forfeiture of the right to the 'promised land' by the Israelis. Zionism is Satanism and is the establishment of Satan's kingdom. Zionism is the child of the scribes and Pharisees to whom Jesus said to you in the person of the scribes and Pharisees: "Woe to you, scribes and Pharisees, hypocrites, because you shut the kingdom of Heaven against men: for you yourselves do not enter in and those that are going in, you suffer not to enter. Woe to you, blind guides, that say, Whosoever shall swear by the temple, it is nothing; but he that shall swear by the gold of the temple is a debtor. Woe to you, scribes and Pharisees, hypocrites; because you are like to whited sepulchres, which outwardly appear to men beautiful but within are full of dead men's bones and of all filthiness, so you also outwardly indeed appear to men just: but inwardly you are full of hypocrisy and iniquity. Woe to you, scribes and Pharisees, hypocrites, that build the sepulchres of the prophets and adorn the monuments of the just, and say: If we had been in the days of our fathers, we would not have been partakers with them in the blood of the prophets. Wherefore you are witnesses against yourselves, that you are the sons of them that killed the prophets. Fill ye up then the measure of your fathers. You serpents, generation of vipers, how will you flee from the judgment of hell? (Mt 23:13-33).

Zionism hides behind "Anti-Semitism" protecting their identity and intent by accusing all who oppose them of being "Anti-Semitic." We will deal with this later in the chapter.

Let me make clear here that there are two political identities in present day Israel, the **Israelite** and the **Israeli**, and there are basically two 'sets' of religious Jews in the world today, **Orthodox** and **Reformed**. The **Israelite** is a God fearing religious person who looks for the Messiah to arrive. These are the **Orthodox** Jews. They are a good people, and fervent in their practice of the laws given to Abraham and Moses. They look to rebuild the Temple in Jerusalem, return to the sacrifices set down in the Law, and lead a life according to the Old

Testament (First Testament), while awaiting the coming of a personal Messiah.

The **Israeli** is the **nonorthodox** or **Reform Jew** who have departed from the central hope of Judaism by rejecting belief in a personal Messiah. They believe in the advent of a Messiah in the sense of a Messianic Age which will come through the leadership and domination of their race in which the Jews will reestablish their kingdom, and ultimately dominate the world. This group is aligned with the thinking of Zionism, and will follow and be obedient to them in the final conflict.

The Israelis have left the ranks of the 'Orthodox' and have become a totally political people who have no respect for the law of God, of the Covenant given to Abraham and Moses. Out of this group comes the leaders of Zionism. The objective of this small group is the establishment of a Zionist kingdom in which the rulers are the masters not only of Israel, but also rulers of the entire world.

The Zionists comprise of a very small number of powerful men who own the money, and the money creating apparatus of the world. They pretend to be Jewish, but in truth, they are not. They are evil personified, and have the power to inflate and deflate national economies whenever they want.

Politically they are ruthless, and if you have any doubt about that, just look at the images of Beirut, Sidon, Gaza after their offensive. It is reported that over 60% of the Israeli army today is atheistic, and mostly immigrants to Israel from Russia. The Zionists are the power brokers and king-makers in Israel. Let me state though that very few Jews or citizens of Israel are Zionists.

The propaganda machine of the Zionists is powerful and condemning. They continue to promote the 6 million Jews killed by Hitler, although no statistics of accounting the world Jewish population pre and post World War II substantiate this fact. The numbers killed in the gas chambers by Hitler is staggering and a blight on society. Whether it be 6 million Jews more or less, it is still atrocious. It was a horrible period in history with those Jews, or about 14 million Armenians (in WWI), or 14 million Russians under Stalin, or 24 million in China, the rulers of these countries offered victim blood to Satan so that they could stay in power. If one questions this they are automatically condemned as being

'anti-Semitic.' Since Christians, that is Catholic, Protestant, Orthodox, Coptic, profess that Jesus Christ is King of All Nations, and we await His return in triumph, then it follows that all true and professed Christians are 'anti-Semitic.' To proclaim anything other than a Jewish natural messiah, is in Zionist terms 'anti-Semitic.'

The term Semite refers to a member of a people speaking a Semitic language, in particular the Jews and Arabs. Although the world in general applies 'Semites' to Jews and Arabs alike, such connotation is inaccurate. Noah had three sons, Shem, Ham, and Japheth. Shem was the eldest son of Noah, and as the first born son had the inheritance of the father. Shem is the father of the Semites who are the present day Jews, and Ham was the father of Canaan, the present day Arabs. The Semites populated the area east of the Jordan to include present-day Iran, and the sons of Ham inhabited Canaan (present day Israel), Arabia and northern Africa. Japheth moved to the islands north and west - Europe (Gn 10:1-32).

When we use the word 'anti-Semite' we must see it in two ways. **First**, it is a derogatory term meaning anti-Jewish. No Christian should use this term to mean anti Jewish. Remember that a true Christian is a spiritual Jew, for Jesus Christ is our Savior, whose ancestors are Jews as expressed in the first chapter in the Gospel of Saint Matthew. I am a spiritual Jew. Remember that Jesus said: "You shall love your neighbour as yourself" (Mk 12:31). Who is my neighbour? Remember the 'Good Samaritan! (Lk 10:30-36).

Second, the term is used in another way which is necessary! Zionism has fostered 'Semitism' as a goal for a Zionist kingdom with control over the whole world. This is their 'naturalism' which denies the Supernatural authority of Christ the King of All Nations. Those who support the Zionist kingdom are anti-Christs. Those who support Christ's Super-natural and Supra-national Kingdom are anti-Semites. When Jesus Christ was tried by the Jewish Sanhedrin and handed over to Pontius Pilate, they said: "We have no king but Caesar" (Jn 19:15). They denied the Covenant and the promise of a Supernatural Messiah, and proclaimed for themselves, a natural messiah, a king like Caesar. When Jesus died on the Cross, three things happened which are germane to this point: "1.the veil of the temple was rent in two from the top even to the bottom, and 2.the earth quaked, and 3.the rocks were

rent" (Mt 27:51). Almighty God in these acts, made void the covenant between His chosen people, the Jews who denied Him, while He, Jesus Christ was a Jew. Let us examine this more closely:

- 1. When He tore the veil of the temple in two, He tore up entry for the denying Jews into the temple. He gave entrance to those who believed in Him, into His Supernatural and Supranational Kingdom, on earth as it is in Heaven. Saint Paul wrote to the Jewish converts explaining the meaning and rewards of the tearing of the veil: "Having therefore, brethren, a confidence in the entering into the holies by the Blood of Christ, a new and living way which He has dedicated for us through the veil, that is to say, His Flesh, and a High Priest over the house of God" (Hb 10:19-21). To those Christians who accept this, the Israeli Jews consider them 'anti-Semitic,' that is against their material king and kingdom.
- 2. When He shook the earth in the earthquake, He took away from them the right to "the promised land."
- 3. When the rocks were rent, He took away their temple building so that they could no longer offer sacrifices. Jesus was the all encompassing Sacrifice.

Jesus, the Messiah, also gave them their demand which they made at His trial: "The whole people answering, said: His Blood be upon us and upon our children" (Mt 27:25). Since that time, they have not had peace, and Jewish blood has been shed ever since.

Anti-Semitism is a label given to those Christians who accept the spiritual meaning of the names Israel, Jerusalem, and Zion. They have particular spiritual, mystical and symbolic meanings:

ISRAEL is all God's people who have called on the Name of the Lord. JERUSALEM is all of those who live in an orderly and lawful arrangement called the Church.

ZION is the place of the law, the Church.

Recall the destruction of the temple in three days, just 40 years after death of Jesus. (The Romans entered the temple on 8 August 70 completely destroyed it on 10 August 70). When Jesus died the veil of Temple was torn and all mankind had direct access to the Holy of Holies. Some Jews did not believe this. "...their minds were closed; indeed, until this very day, the same veil remains over the reading of the Old Testament: it is not lifted, for only in Christ is it done away

with" (2Co 3:14). Jesus said that He came not to abolish the Law but to fulfill the Law. He is the total sacrifice.

In Jesus the old temple is gone, the new Temple is His Mystical Body, the Church, and the Church is the members: "Know you not that you are the temple of God and that the Spirit of God dwells in you? But if any man violate the temple of God, him shall God destroy. For the temple of God is holy, which you are" (1Co 3:16,17). With this in mind, consider the verse: "What agreement has the temple of God with idols? For you are the temple of the living God: as God says: I will dwell in them and walk among them. And I will be their God, and they shall be My people" (2Co 6:16). The old is gone, the new is here! That the old temple is no more to be considered, it is written to the true Catholic Christian believers: "There was given me a reed, like unto a rod. And it was said to me: Arise, and measure the temple of God and the altar and them that adore therein. But the court which is without the temple, cast out and measure it not, because it is given unto the Gentiles, and the holy city they shall tread under foot, two and forty months" (Apoc 11:1,2). Later on in the Apocalypse, the absence of the temple is emphasized: "I saw no temple therein. For the Lord God Almighty is the temple thereof, and the Lamb" (Apoc 21:22). Zionists are the "wormwood" of the Apocalypse in that they are deviously in every fabric of society, by finance, intimidation, and accusation. They control the movie industry, and the press. Anyone who opposes them is called antisemitic. "And the third angel sounded the trumpet: and a great star fell from Heaven, burning as it were a torch. And it fell on the third part of the rivers and upon the fountains of waters, and the name of the star is called Wormwood. And the third part of the waters became wormwood. And many men died of the waters, because they were made bitter" (Apoc 8:10,11). The bitter water is the Zionist propaganda fed to the world through the Freemasons and Communists.

We must stand against all kinds of abuse poured out upon all our brothers and sisters in the world, regardless of nationality or religion. We must protect them, no matter their creed, color, class or citizenship. We must protect the Catholic, Protestant, Jew or Muslim, so that they may live in dignity, and practice their beliefs, according to their freewill. But that does not mean that we must give up the rights of the

True Supernatural Messiah, Christ the King, the King of All Nations, the Head of the Mystical Body of Christ. Jesus is the only Door to the Kingdom, He and none other. He won for us the promise of the Kingdom of His Father.

Are the present day Israeli Jews the children of the promise? No they are not! St. Paul says: "For I wished myself to be an anathema from Christ, for my brethren, who are my kinsmen according to the flesh, who are Israelites, to whom belongs the adoption as of children, and the glory, and the testament, and the giving of the law, and the service of God, and the promises, whose are the fathers and of whom is Christ, according to the flesh, Who is over all things, God blessed for ever. Amen. For all are not Israelites that are of Israel. Neither are all they that are the seed of Abraham, children, but in Isaac shall thy seed be called. That is to say, not they that are the children of the flesh are the children of God: but they that are the children of the promise are accounted for the seed. Even us, whom also He has called, not only of the Jews, but also of the Gentiles.

As in Hosea He says: I will call that which was not My people, My people; and her that was not beloved, beloved; and her that had not obtained mercy; one that has obtained mercy. And it shall be in the place where it was said unto them: you are not My people; there they shall be called the sons of the Living God. And Isaiah cried out concerning Israel: If the number of the children of Israel be as the sand of the sea, a remnant shall be saved.

But Israel, by following after the law of justice, is not come unto the law of justice. Why so? Because they sought it not by faith, but as it were of works. For they stumbled at the stumbling stone. As it is written: Behold I lay in Sion a stumbling-stone and a rock of scandal. And whosoever believes in Him shall not be confounded" (Rm 9:3-8,24-27,31-33).

True Christians are the sons of the free woman, all others, Jews, and Muslims, etc., are the sons of the bond woman. The sons of the free woman, have no right or authority to sell their freedom to the bond woman: "Tell me, you that desire to be under the law, have you not read the law? For it is written that Abraham had two sons: the one by a bondwoman and the other by a free woman. But he who was of the bondwoman was born according to the flesh, but he of the free woman

was by promise.

Which things are said by an allegory. For these are the two testaments. The one from Mount Sinai, engendering unto bondage, which is Hagar. For Sinai is a mountain in Arabia, which has affinity to that Jerusalem which now is, and is in bondage with her children. But that Jerusalem which is above is free, which is our mother.

For it is written: Rejoice, you barren, that bears not, break forth and cry you that travail not: for many are the children of the desolate, more than of her that has a husband.

Now we, brethren, as Isaac was, are the children of promise. But as then he that was born according to the flesh persecuted him that was after the spirit, so also it is now. But what says the scripture? Cast out the bondwoman and her son, for the son of the bondwoman shall not be heir with the son of the free woman. So then, brethren, we are not the children of the bondwoman but of the free, by the freedom wherewith Christ has made us free" (Ga 4:21-31).

Zionism is at enmity with Christianity, and with non-Zionist Jews, as well as all non-Jews. The following article is an enlightenment on how they think. The majority of Zionists are Jews, but only a few Jews are Zionists. In order to understand the threat and scope of Zionism, here are some extracts taken from "The Protocols of the Learned Elders Of Zion" (*The Mystical Body of Christ in the Modern World*). It should be noted that these 'extracts' are strenuously denied by 'Jews in the know.' They claim it is false and of no substance.

"Our call of Liberty, Equality, and Fraternity brought whole legions to our ranks from all four corners of the world through our blind agents, and these legions carried our banners with enthusiasm. In the meantime these ideas were eating, like so many canker-worms, into the well-being of the Christians (Goyim) and were destroying their peace, quiet and solidarity, thus ruining the foundations of States. As we shall see later on, it was this action which brought about our triumph. Amongst other things, it gave us the possibility of playing our mastercard, namely, the abolition of privileges: in other words, the existence of the Gentile aristocracy, which was the only protection nations and countries had against us.

On the ruins of the natural and hereditary aristocracy of the Goyim we set up an aristocracy of our own, rounded upon wealth, of which we had control and upon science promoted by our scholars...The Press in the hands of existing Governments is a great power, by which the control of peoples' mind is obtained...It is in the Press that the triumph of freedom of speech finds its incarnation. But the Goyim States have not known how to make use of this force; and it has fallen into our hands. Through the Press we have obtained influence while remaining ourselves in the background. Thanks to the Press, we have accumulated gold, though it has cost us oceans of blood...But it has paid us, though we have sacrificed many of our people...

Nowadays, with the destruction of the aristocracy, the people have fallen into the clutches of merciless profiteers who have laid a pitiless and cruel yoke upon the necks of the workers. We intend to appear on the scene, as though we were the liberators of the worker from this oppression, when we shall propose to him to join the ranks of our fighting forces--Socialists, Anarchists and Communists. The latter we always patronize, pretending to help them, in accordance with the principle of fraternity and the general interest of humanity, evoked by our Socialistic Masonry...

Our strength lies in keeping the workingman in perpetual want and misery...We move the masses by making use of feelings of jealousy and hatred, enkindled by oppression and need. With their hands we shall sweep aside all those who impede our advance...This hatred will become still more acute, thanks to an economic crisis, which will stop dealings on the Exchanges and bring industry to a standstill. We will create by all the secret underhand methods known to us and with the help of gold, which is all in our hands, a universal economic crisis, whereby we shall throw upon the streets whole mobs of workers, simultaneously in all the countries of Europe. These mobs will run with delight to shed the blood of those whom, in the simplicity of their ignorance, they have envied from childhood, and whose possessions they will then be able to loot. Ours they will not touch, because the moment of the attack will be known to us and we will take measures to protect our interests...

Gentile Masonry blindly serves as a screen for us and for our purposes, but the plan of action of our force and even our headquarters remain perpetually unknown to the world at large. Even liberty might be harmless and have its place in the economy of States, without injury to

the well-being of peoples, if it rested upon the foundation of faith in God, upon the brotherhood of man, unconnected with the idea of equality, which is negatived by the very laws of creation...With such a faith as this, the people might be governed by their parish-rulers and would walk contentedly and humbly under the guiding hand of their spiritual pastors, submitting to the dispositions of God upon earth. Hence it is indispensable for us to undermine all faith, to tear out of the minds of the Christians (Goyim), the very idea of God, and replace it by arithmetical calculations and material needs.

In order to divert the minds of the Christians (Goyim) from our policy, it is essential that we should keep them occupied with trade and commerce. Thus all nations will be striving for their own advantage, and in this world-wide struggle will not remark their common enemy. But, so that liberty may entirely dislocate and ruin the Goyim (Christian) communities, we must put industry on a speculative basis. The result of this will be, that the wealth of the land extracted by industry, will not remain in the hands of the Goyim (Christians), but will come through speculation into our coffers. The struggle for supremacy and the unceasing speculations in business will create a demoralized, selfish and heartless society. Such a society will become completely indifferent to and even disgusted with religion and politics. Lust of gold will be their only guide and will become with them a veritable cult, for the sake of the material pleasures which they can procure by its means. Then the hour will have arrived, when the lower classes of the Goyim, not for a noble motive nor even for the sake of wealth, but purely and simply out of hatred for the upper classes, will follow our lead against our rivals, the more intelligent amongst the Christians (Goyim)...

The aristocracy of the Christians (Goyim), as political force, is dead---we need not take it into account; but as landed proprietors they can still be dangerous to us, because their independence is secured, thanks to their resources. It is essential therefore for us to deprive them of their land at whatever cost. To attain this object the best method is to force up rates and taxes, thus increasing the burdens upon landed property. These measures will keep landowners in a state of humble and unconditional submission...

At the same time we must give all possible protection to commerce and

industry, but above all to speculation, of which the principle role is to act as a counterpoise to industry. In the absence of speculation, industry would multiply capital in private hands and would serve to restore agriculture, by freeing the land from indebtedness to the land banks. What we seek to bring about is that industry should drain the land of all its riches and that speculation should transfer into our hands all the wealth of the world. Thus the Goyim will be thrown into the ranks of the proletariat. Then the Goyim will bow down before us, in order to obtain a precarious right to exist.

In order to ruin the industry of the Goyim and to help speculation, we will encourage the desire for boundless luxury, which we have already developed. We will raise wages, but this will not bring any advantage to the workers, for at the same time we will raise the prices of the first necessaries of life...We will also artfully undermine the basis of production, by sowing the seeds of anarchy among the workmen... In order to prove that all the Goyim Governments of Europe are subject to us, we will show our power to one of them by means of crimes of violence, that is to say, by a reign of terror, and in case they all rise against us, we will respond with American, Chinese or Japanese guns... When we introduced the poison of Liberalism into the State organism, its whole political complexion underwent a change. States have been seized with a mortal illness, blood-poisoning. There remains only to await the end of their agony...

What prompted us to adopt such line of action, if it was not because we could not, as a scattered race, attain our object by direct means, but only by circumvention? This was the real cause and origin of our organization of Masonry which those Goyim cattle do not fathom, and the aims of which they do not even suspect. They are attracted by us into the 'show' army of Masonic lodges in order to throw dust in the eyes of their fellows... (my emphasis).

When we at last definitely come into our kingdom...we shall make it our task to see that against us such things as plots no longer exist...Every kind of new institution of anything like a secret society will also be punished with death; those of them which are now in existence are known to us, serve us, and have served us, those we shall disband and send into exile to continents far removed from Europe. In this way we shall proceed with those Goyim Masons who know too

much; of these as we may for some reason spare, will be kept in constant fear of exile. We shall promulgate a law making all former members of secret societies liable to exile from Europe... Meantime, however, until we come into our kingdom, we shall act in the contrary way: we shall create and multiply Masonic lodges in all the countries of the world, (my emphasis), absorb into them all who may become or are prominent in public activity, for in these lodges we shall find our principal intelligence offices and means of influence. All these lodges we shall bring under one central administration, known to us alone and to all others absolutely unknown, which will be composed of our learned elders. The lodges will have their representatives who will serve to screen the above-mentioned administration of Masonry and from whom will issue the watchword and program. In these lodges we shall tie the knot which binds together all revolutionary and liberal elements...The most secret political plots will be made known to us and will fall under our guiding hands on the very day of their conception...The class of people who most willingly enter into secret societies are those who live by their wits, careerists, and in general people, mostly light minded, with whom we shall have no difficulty in dealing and in using to wind up the mechanism of the machine devised by us...It is natural that we and no others should lead Masonic activities, for we know whither we are heading (my emphasis). We know the final goal of every form of activity, whereas the Goyim have knowledge of nothing...The Goyim enter the lodges out of curiosity or in the hope, by their means, to get a nibble at the public pie, and some of them in order to obtain a hearing before the public for their impracticable and groundless fantasies: they thirst for success and applause, of which we are remarkably generous. And the reason why we give them this success is to make use of the high conceit of themselves to which it gives birth.

In order to keep the Goyim from discovering for themselves any new line of action in politics, we will also distract them with amusements, games, pastimes, passions, people's palaces, and so on. Soon we shall start advertising in the Press, inviting people to enter for various competitions in art, in sport of all kinds: these interests will finally turn away their minds from questions in which we should find ourselves compelled to oppose them...

We have taken great care to discredit the clergy of the Christians (Goyim) in the eyes of the people, and thus have succeeded in ruining their mission, which could have been very much in our way. The influence of the clergy on the people is lessening daily. To-day freedom of conscience prevails everywhere, and now only a few years divide us from the time when Christianity will finally crumble away...We will confine the clergy and their teachings to such a small part in life, and their influence will be made so uncongenial to the populace, that their teachings will have the opposite effect to that which they formerly had."

It is certainly understandable why the 'Jews in the know' would claim these 'Protocols' to be false and of no substance.

The planned establishment of the 'kingdom of Zion' is the work of the devil in his plan to conquer the world. In the account related in the previous chapter about the vision given to Pope Leo XIII, it should be noted that: "The devil led Him (Jesus) into a high mountain and showed Him all the kingdoms of the world in a moment of time, and he said to Him: 'To Thee will I give all this power and the glory of them. For to me they are delivered: and to whom I will, I give them. If Thou therefore wilt adore before me, all shall be Thine" (Lk 4:5-7). I propose that the vision of 'all the kingdoms of the world in a moment of time...' is the world of today with all its 'power and glory.'

Jesus did not adore the devil, but the Zionist did, and have, and do. The Zionist has taken the hand of Satan and in becoming one in him, he has accepted the power and the glory of the infernal one.

There is one more group which we must examine before we can put together the totalitarian plan of the evil one, and see his path to world dominance.

It is in this understanding that we now look at Ecumenism, before we expose the final step of Totalitarianism.

Chapter 5 Ecumenism

Ecumenism is the act of engaging in political compromise, in order to advance the religion of man, at the expense of truth. Ecumenism is the giving away the rights of God, in order to give the 'rights of man' to sinful man, and establish the 'golden calf' idol of a world dominated by Satan. It is the denial of true Catholic Christian values as given to us by Jesus Christ.

Let us first assert that the fundamental beliefs of Christianity is the basic belief in the Ten Commandments, and that Jesus Christ is truly present in Holy Eucharist. A true Christian is one who believes, and lives, the Seven Sacraments, namely: Baptism, Confessions, Holy Eucharist, Confirmation, Matrimony, Holy Orders, and Extreme Unction. A person who denies any one of these, or who does not live them, is not a Christian, but a pseudo-Christian, a thief and a robber, who have come to steal, and to kill, and to destroy (Jn 10:1,10). Where did the current Roman Catholic Church leave the strict teachings of Jesus Christ and follow the desires of man? I believe that in the Second Vatican Council (Vatican II), which encouraged recognition and acceptance of 'inter-religious' participation, that the watering down of the True Faith was encouraged, and acceptance of basic errors were proclaimed by the Council in their various 'Documents.' The Vatican II Roman Catholic Church left Christianity and joined the other nonchristian churches of Protestant, Orthodox and Coptic who all call themselves 'Christians,' which they are not! In spite of all this, the pope is still the Vicar of Christ, and until Jesus Christ says or does otherwise, he remains the Vicar in the Chair of Peter.

The council opened on 11 October, 1962 and closed on 8 December 1965, a total of 1,155 days, about three years and a half. It was prophesied: "After sixty-two weeks Christ shall be slain: and the people that shall deny Him shall not be His. And a people, with their leader, that shall come, shall destroy the city, and the sanctuary, and the end thereof shall be waste, and after the end of the war the appointed desolation. And he shall confirm the covenant with many, in one week: and in the half of the week the victim and the sacrifice shall fail: and there shall be in the temple the abomination of desolation: and

the desolation shall continue even to the consummation, and to the end" (Dn 9:26,27). In the prophesy given to Daniel, a week is seven years, a half of a week is three years and a half, the period of time in which the Vatican II was held.

I further believe that any movement away from the teachings of the Holy Fathers is a violation of the command of Jesus to Saint Peter His appointed ruler: "Thou art Peter; and upon this rock I will build My Church, and the gates of hell shall not prevail against it. And I will give to thee the Keys of the Kingdom of Heaven. And whatsoever thou shalt bind upon earth, it shall be bound also in Heaven: and whatsoever thou shalt loose on earth, it shall be loosed also in Heaven" (Mt 16:18,19). If the rulings of one Pope are negated and replaced by another, where then is the continuance and consistency of the authority of "Jesus Christ, yesterday, and today: and the same for ever"? (Hb 13:8). Writing in the Encyclical Letter, "Mortalium Animos" on 6th January, 1928, His Holiness Pope Pius XI stated: "...efforts are being made by some, in connection with the New Law promulgated by Christ our Lord. Assured that there exist few men who are entirely devoid of the religious sense, they seem to ground on this belief a hope that all nations, while differing indeed in religious matters, may yet without great difficulty be brought to fraternal agreement on certain points of doctrine which will form a common basis of the spiritual life. With this object congresses, meetings, and addresses are arranged, attended by a large concourse of hearers, where all without distinction, unbelievers of every kind as well as Christians, even those who unhappily have rejected Christ and denied His divine nature or mission, are invited to join in the discussion. Now, such efforts can meet with no kind of approval among Catholics. They presuppose the erroneous view that all religions are more or less good and praiseworthy, inasmuch as all give expression, under various forms, to that innate sense which leads men to God and to the obedient acknowledgment of His rule. Those who hold such a view are not only in error; they distort the true idea of religion, and thus reject it, falling gradually into naturalism and atheism. To favor this opinion, therefore, and to encourage such undertakings is tantamount to abandoning the religion revealed by God. Nevertheless, when there is a question of fostering unity among Christians, it is easy for many to be misled by the apparent excellence

of the object to be achieved...The energy with which this scheme is being promoted has won for it many adherents, and even many Catholics are attracted by it, since it holds out the hope of a union apparently consonant with the wishes of Holy Mother Church, whose chief desire it is to recall her erring children and to bring them back to her bosom. In reality, however, these fair and alluring words cloak a most grave error, subversive of the foundations of the Catholic faith...Conscious, therefore, of Our Apostolic office, which warns Us not to allow the flock of Christ to be led astray by harmful fallacies, We invoke your zeal, Venerable Brethren, to avert this evil...Furthermore, in this one Church of Christ no man can be or remain who does not accept, recognize, and obey the authority and supremacy of Peter and his legitimate successors (My emphasis). Did not the ancestors of those who are now entangled in the errors of Photius and of the Reformers obey the Bishop of Rome, the chief shepherd of souls? Their children, alas, have left the home of their fathers; but that house did not therefore fall to the ground and perish for ever, for it was supported by God. Let them. then, return to their Father, who, forgetting the insults in the past heaped upon the Apostolic See, will accord them a most loving welcome. If, as they constantly say, they long to be united with Us and Ours, why do they not hasten to enter the Church, "the mother and mistress of all Christ's faithful?" (My emphasis). Let them heed the words of Lactantius: "The Catholic Church is alone in keeping the true worship. This is the fount of truth, this the house of faith, this the temple of God; if any man enter not here, or if any man go forth from it, he is a stranger to the hope of life and salvation..." Because of its importance I have quoted the full text of Pope Pius XI's encyclical "Fostering True Religious Unity" in Appendix 4.

That was clear language in 1928, and certainly today, there are few who can dispute its meaning. At the time of the encyclical, the man who would be the second Pope after Pius XI was already 47 years old, and a priest of 24 years. He would be Pope John XXIII (1881-1963). Born of a peasant family near Bergamo, ordained in 1904, and was a Chaplin in World War I. He had a very distinguished career, being Apostolic Delegate to Bulgaria, Turkey and Greece. In 1944 he was appointed Papal Nuncio to the newly liberated country of France. While there he

fought successfully for the very liberal and controversial system of worker priests. That is, the priest became a layman and did not trust in God's provision. He was appointed Patriarch of Venice in 1953 by His Holiness Pope Pius XII, and was elected his successor on October 1958 on the 12th ballot. He convened the 2nd Vatican Council, under the title of Ecumenical Council, in order to seek unity between the various religious sects.

Before dealing with his enthusiasm for ecumenism, we will examine another two men who were major parts in the Vatican II. One was Cardinal Montini, who would become Pope after John XXIII. Born in 1897 the son of the editor of a Catholic daily newspaper, he was ordained in 1920. He spent his entire life in the Vatican diplomatic service until 1944. He was then appointed Archbishop of Milan, some people believe that he was removed from the Vatican because of his very liberal views. In 1958 he was appointed Cardinal by his old friend Pope John XXIII, many of whose liberal opinions he shared, and returned to his favorite grounds of the Vatican. Father Montini was already a priest of 8 years when His holiness Pope Pius XI issued his encyclical 'Mortalium Animos.'

On the feast of Saints Peter and Paul, 29th June, on the ninth anniversary of his coronation as Pope in 1972, Pope Paul VI made the statement "**The smoke of Satan has entered the Vatican.**" He was referring to the dissension of a number of the hierarchy to his 'ecumenism.' Pope Paul VI was excellent in his teachings on Human Life (*Humanae vitae*), and Priestly Celibacy (*Sacerdotalis caelibatus*). He set the stage for ecumenism to progress as he was elected pope (1963) before the Council closed (1965), and for 13 years afterward he directed the postconciliar Church (he died August 6, 1978). The next pope, would be Pope John Paul I, who was elected on August 26, 1978, reigned for only 33 days, before his untimely demise on

The man who would be the successor to him was Pope John Paul II, was only 8 years old when the encyclical of Pope Pius XI was issued. Karol Josef Wojtyla, was born in 1920, ordained priest in 1946, became Professor of Moral Theology at University of Lublin and at Cracow, from 1964 to 1978. He was elected Pope in 1978.

September 28, 1978.

Pope John Paul II has said that "ecumenism is here to stay." I say that

his brand ecumenism is not here to stay. Liberal ecumenism is anathema to Jesus Christ Who said: "Going therefore, teach ye all nations: baptizing them in the Name of the Father and of the Son and of the Holy Ghost. Teaching them to observe all things whatsoever I have commanded you. And behold I am with you all days, even to the consummation of the world" (Mt 28:19,20). Liberal ecumenism is contrary to Sacred Scripture: "But though we, or an angel from Heaven, preach a gospel to you besides that which we have preached to you, let him be anathema" (Ga 1:8). Who are the angels of whom Saint Paul is speaking? "For the lips of the priests shall keep knowledge, and they shall seek the law at his mouth, because he is the angel of the Lord of Hosts" (Mal 2:7). We must remember that any Pope is first a priest, and always a priest.

Pope John Paul II pushed ecumenism to the limit. He wanted unity between all religions and peoples. On the surface this was not a bad thing, but in reality he was not upholding the truth. He was zealous in his pursuit and did not want to offend anyone. He fostered diplomacy, but this was error. Jesus Christ was certainly not a diplomat by today's standard, calling the scribes and Pharisees hypocrites (Mt 23:13), brood of vipers (Mt 3:7), and thieves (Mk 11:17). These words do not say much for liberal ecumenism as Jesus confronted the church and state. I disagree with liberal ecumenism and state squarely that it is a false religion.

It is the moral obligation of the Church to oppose error and sin. It is also the moral obligation for every Christian to withhold taxes from any body of government which fosters:

- 1) Contraception,
- 2) Divorce,
- 3) Abortion,
- 4) Sterilization,
- 5) Euthanasia,
- 6) Homosexuality,
- 7) Transgender manipulations.

Any person who condones any of these most grievous sins, is guilty of them: "Who, having known the justice of God, did not understand that they who do such things, are worthy of death, and not only they that do them, but they also that consent to them that do them" (Rm 1:32).

Any country, state or nation which endorses or accepts common law marriages or adultery, is guilty of those sins, and will be punished by the wrath of God. Any country, state or nation which fosters same sex marriages, that is homosexual marriages, is guilty of that sin, and will also be punished by the wrath of God: "For the wrath of God is revealed from Heaven against all ungodliness and injustice of those men that detain the truth of God in injustice...Because that, when they knew God, they have not glorified Him as God or given thanks, but became vain in their thoughts. And their foolish heart was darkened. For, professing themselves to be wise, they became fools. And they changed the glory of the incorruptible God into the likeness of the image of a corruptible man. Wherefore, God gave them up to the desires of their heart, unto uncleanness, to dishonor their own bodies among themselves. Who changed the truth of God into a lie, and worshiped and served the creature rather than the Creator, who is blessed for ever. Amen. For this cause, God delivered them up to shameful affections. For their women have changed the natural use into that use which is against nature. And, in like manner, the men also, leaving the natural use of the women, have burned in their lusts, one towards another, men with men, working that which is filthy and receiving in themselves the recompense which was due to their error. And as they liked not to have God in their knowledge, God delivered them up to a reprobate sense, to do those things which are not convenient. Being filled with all iniquity, malice, fornication, avarice, wickedness: full of envy, murder, contention, deceit, malignity: whisperers, detractors, hateful to God, contumelious, proud, haughty, inventors of evil things, disobedient to parents, foolish, dissolute: without affection, without fidelity, without mercy" (Rm 1:18,21-31). It is necessary for the Church to fight against the state and uphold the dignity and religious welfare of the citizens of the world. The Church must fight against the unjust taxation, legal system, and the war against the poor and the helpless: "Religion clean and undefiled before God and the Father is this: to visit the fatherless and widows in their tribulation, and to keep one's self immaculate from this world" (Jm 1:27). Nice words and speeches are for diplomats, but not necessarily for the furthering of the Kingdom of God: "Know you not that the unjust shall not possess the Kingdom of God? Do not err. Neither fornicators, nor

idolaters, nor adulterers, nor the effeminate, nor liers with mankind, nor thieves, nor covetous, nor drunkards, nor railers, nor extortioners, shall possess the Kingdom of God" (1Co 6:9,10). Any church, which does not actively condemn these sins, calls down the wrath of God upon them selves, and they shall be punished most severely.

Does or will the current Pope Benedict XVI believe the message of La Salette? Does or will he believe the prophecy of St. Malachy, as has been stated in some of my previous communications with him? Does he believe in fact that his predecessor Pope Paul VI said: "The smoke of Satan has entered the Vatican," and if so, what is he going to do about it?

It is the responsibility of the Vicar of Christ to not only oppose, but also to lead the opposition against the world of political, economic and ecclesiastical compromise. The act of ecumenical compromise is leading the world into the hands of the conspirators, who are on the brink of accomplishing their One World Government, their New World Order, the kingdom of Zion, the ultimate totalitarian state.

Chapter 6 Totalitarianism

Political totalitarianism is absolute power in the hands of one man, or a very few, who regard not the right of God over His creation, and seek only dominance of mankind, by whatever means necessary.

Governmental totalitarianism is the centralized, dictatorial, and requirement of complete subservience to the state.

Zionism uses Freemasonry and Communism as the prime agents in bringing about it's Totalitarian Satanic empire. It first establishes the 'rights of man' with total disregard for the rights of Jesus Christ, King of Heaven and earth, as we saw for example in the French Revolution. It establishes a natural religion, first using ecumenism to make all things plausible for all men. It gradually imposes the rights of evil over the rights of life. It finally establishes evil itself, as god.

These evils are promulgated and enforced by the Anti-Christ and the False Prophet, who are Jews and Zionists. There are three beasts in the Apocalypse which we need to understand:

The first is the Red Dragon - the devil (Apoc 12:3).

The second is the beast coming up out of the sea- the Anti-Christ (Apoc 13:1).

The third is the beast coming out of the earth - the False Prophet (Apoc 13:11).

After the red dragon, who is the devil himself, the other two are totally possessed by the him. All three are the devil in various forms, doing various specific duties. The dragon is the devil who wages war in Heaven, and is cast out. He uses human beings on earth to disguise his presence, and again emerges with his great power in these the last days in someone who operates in the background, and gives his clandestine commands to the other humans. With the defeat of the beast coming out of the sea, and the beast coming out of the earth, the devil is finally flushed out and takes command himself, before he is finally defeated and cast forever into hell.

Understand the scripture: "I saw a beast coming up out the sea, having seven heads and ten horns, and upon his horns, ten diadems, and upon his heads, names of blasphemy. And the beast which I saw was like to a leopard, and his feet were as the feet of a bear, and his mouth as the mouth of a lion. And the dragon gave him his own strength and great

power. And I saw one of his heads as it were slain to death, and his death's wound was healed. And all the earth was in admiration after the beast. And they adored the dragon which gave power to the beast. And they adored the beast, saying: Who is like to the beast? And who shall be able to fight with him?" (Apoc 13:1-4). The Antichrist is the beast coming up out of many nations (the sea), is the political leader appointed by the Devil to set up his diabolical kingdom of hatred and violence in the world, to bring all humanity into subjection to his evil works. The horn is a means of commanding, and also is an instrument of amplification, a way of making one's voice heard, and a powerful means of communication, like news print, radio, TV, and internet. Control of the media of the world is the 'voice' and the 'horn' is the reins of absolute control. The 'ten' means 'fulness,' and so the beast has complete and full authority to make his commands heard, and obeyed, throughout the entire world.

A diadem is a crown of authority, and in this case full authority, and here we see that the 'beast' with the laws, edicts, the commandments to oppose the Ten Commandments of God, and with his power through the means of communication, orders all of humanity to disobey the Ten Commandments of God, and therefore obey the commandments of the Devil. Complete headship or supremacy over the whole world is given to the rulers to violate the word of God, and oppose the seven cardinal virtues of Faith, Hope, Charity, Prudence, Fortitude, Justice and Temperance, with the seven deadly sins of Pride, Lust, Greed, Anger, Sloth, Envy, and Gluttony.

The leopard crouches in hiddenness, ready to pounce at the most opportune time for him, with powerful ability to pull apart like a bear, and with the roar of his 'lion' voice, to strike fear into all who oppose him, thus destroying all his enemies. This 'leopard' is the secret societies of Zionism, Freemasonry and Communism. Zionism is the financial arm of the Devil's machinations, Masonry is the political arm, and Communism is the experimental system for total world domination. In short, the Antichrist is the beast coming up out of many nations is the political leader appointed by the Devil to set up his diabolical Zionist kingdom of hatred and violence in the world, to bring all humanity into subjection to his evil works. This diabolical man is now in the world (as of 2012), and will soon make his ascent to the control room of evil.

Through the power given him, by use of legalisms, money, war, sabotage, famine, and all acts of terrorism, he leads the world into the Great Tribulation.

The dragon, the devil incarnate is truly the head of Freemasonry in the USA, the European Union, all the supposed 'free democratic' nations of the world; all the Communist nations, as well as the Muslim nations throughout the world.

The world today is in awe and perhaps fear of the imperialistic power, might, and greed of the New World Order, the Alliance of Nations, mostly led by the power brokers in the United States of America. The American people are perhaps the most uninformed people in the western world, also once known as the 'free world'. I say 'uninformed' because their national news media is controlled as what to say. This "Alliance" have the greed, and the desire, and the power, and the might, to wage war in any country of their choosing, and anyone who does not join with them, is considered as being against them, and so subject to violence for their non-cooperation. The opposition is labeled as terrorists or 'rogue nations.'

Former president, George W. Bush, and also son of a former president, said in a speech prepared for him by his boss, a former senior Bush cabinet member: "You are either with us or you're not" (US News & World Report 24 Sept, 2001). His intent was to punish those nations who did not assist him in his personal war. Terrorism at all levels must be obliterated. The private citizens who take matters into their own hands and wage a war against soft targets, like unsuspecting citizens is a terrorist. It is the moral duty of every sovereign government to defend themselves, and root out the terrorists, no matter who or where they may be. Private terrorists can have no safe havens. It is also the duty of private citizens to defend themselves against the terrorism of sovereign governments, that is public terrorists, who wage war against its citizens. In this case, the war family of the U.S.A., the Bush family, under the direction of their Masonic boss, wages war for profit.

It is my opinion, the 33 degree Masonic ultimate boss is the most violent and dangerous man in the world today. He has competition for this position, but no one has the power, money, and suave of this war monger.

He ruled the Bushes with an iron fist, and uses his might to achieve his

objective, which is, total control over the whole world, using the umbrella of "The New World Order." Scripture says of him: "They had over them a king, the angel of the bottomless pit {whose name in Hebrew is Abaddon and in Greek Apollyon, in Latin Exterminans destroyer\" (Apoc 9:11). This verse alludes to another verse "And they adored the dragon which gave power to the beast. And they adored the beast, saying: Who is like to the beast? And who shall be able to fight with him?" (Apoc 13:4).

The dragon is the devil. The beast is a man who is totally possessed who does only and always, the will of the devil. "There was seen another sign in Heaven, and behold a great red dragon, having seven heads and ten horns, and on his heads seven diadems. And his tail drew the third part of the stars of heaven and cast them to the earth...And that great dragon was cast out, that old serpent, who is called the devil and Satan, who seduces the whole world. And he was cast unto the earth, and his angels were thrown down with him...And he stood upon the sand of the sea" (Apoc 12:3,4,9,12,18). Satan is now cast out of Heaven and he is on the earth, hiding behind 'the beast,' the Anti-christ. With his fall, he has taken the 'rulers of the world' - Freemasons, and the 'stars of heaven' - the rulers of the churches, synagogues, mosques, etc.

- Ecclesiastical Masonry, with him.

With his control and power over the economic system and money supply, he sets up a new currency, the mark of the beast, a micro-chip, imbedded in a credit card, which will later be made more personal - 'for security reasons.'

"And he shall make all, both little and great, rich and poor, freemen and bondmen, to have a character in their right hand or on their foreheads, and that no man might buy or sell, but he that has the character, or the name of the beast, or the number of his name. Here is wisdom. He that has understanding, let him count the number of the beast. For it is the number of a man, and the number of him is six hundred sixty-six" (Apoc 13:16-18). We spoke in the previous chapter about the Zionists, Freemasons, Communists, Bilderbergers, Tri-lateral Commission, The Council on Foreign Relations, and the Carlyle Group, understand that all of these are really one and the same, having the same boss - Satan. See them now as one entity working for the same objective - the New Order of the World - the Zionist demonic 'Kingdom of Zion.'

When asked in an interview by TV journalists in December 1992, what he planned to do after he left office, James Baker III replied that he would open an office in Washington to 'formulate policy.' Make no mistake about it, his policy is total dominance of the world, at any and all costs by the New World Order. To emphasize this point, I include for the sake of making the point, the following interesting article which appeared in "The International Herald Tribune" on Tuesday, March 6, 2001, written by Leslie Wayne, of the New York Times Service. "For the Old Bush Team, a Whole New Ballgame. Star Power and Connections Are Paying Off for Ex Officials in Private Equity Business.

WASHINGTON. During the presidential campaign last year, former President George Bush took time off from his son's race to call on Crown Prince Abdullah of Saudi Arabia at a luxurious desert compound outside Riyadh to talk about American-Saudi business affairs.

Mr. Bush went as an ambassador of sorts but not for his government. In the same way, Mr. Bush's secretary of state, James Baker 3rd, recently met with a group of wealthy people at the elegant Lanesborough Hotel in London to explain the Florida vote count.

Traveling with the fanfare of dignitaries, Mr. Bush and Mr. Baker were using their extensive government contacts to further their business interests as representatives of the Carlyle Group, a \$12 billion private equity company.

Based in Washington, the Carlyle Group has parlayed a roster of former top-level government officials, largely from the Bush and Reagan administrations, into a moneymaking machine.

In a new spin on Washington's revolving door between business and government, where lobbying by former officials is restricted but soliciting investments is not, Carlyle has upped the ante and taken the practice global.

Mr. Bush and Mr. Baker were accompanied on their trips by former Prime Minister John Major of Britain, another of Carlyle's political stars.

With door openers of this caliber, along with shrewd investment skills, Carlyle has gone from an unknown in the world of private equity to one of its biggest players.

Private equity, which involves buying up companies in private deals

and reselling them, is a high end business open only to the very rich. Over the last decade, the Carlyle empire has grown to span three continents and includes investments in most corners of the world. It owns so many companies that it is now in effect one of the biggest U.S. defense contractors and a force in global telecommunications. Its bluechip investors include major banks and insurance companies, billiondollar pension funds and wealthy investors from Abu Dhabi to Singapore.

In getting business for Carlyle, Mr. Bush has been impressive. His meeting with the crown prince was followed by a yacht cruise and private dinners with Saudi officials, including King Fahd, all on behalf of Carlyle, which has extensive interests in the Middle East.

And Mr. Bush led Carlyle's successful entry into South Korea, the fastest growing economy in Asia. After his meetings with the prime minister and other government and business leaders, Carlyle won a tough competition for control of KorAm Bank, one of the few healthy Korean banks.

The steady flow of politicians to lucrative private sector jobs based on their government contacts is a familiar Washington tale. But in this case, it is being played out for more dollars, on a global stage, and in the world of private finance, where the minimal government rules prohibiting lobbying by former officials for a given period are not a factor.

These rules say nothing about potential conflicts when former government officials use their connections and insights for financial gain. They may attract more notice now that George W. Bush is president.

Many of those involved with Carlyle, which invests largely in companies that do business with the government or are affected by government regulations, have ties to the Oval Office.

For instance, Frank Carlucci, a secretary of defense under President Ronald Reagan, who as much as anyone is responsible for Carlyle's success, said he met in February with his old college classmate, Donald Rumsfeld, the new secretary of defense.

He also met with Vice President Dick Cheney, himself a defense secretary under former President Bush, to talk about military matters at a time when Carlyle has several billion-dollar defense projects under consideration.

Carlyle officials contend that the company's activities do not present any potential conflicts. They say that former President Bush, Mr. Baker and other former Republican officials now at Carlyle including Mr. Carlucci, who is Carlyle's chairman, and Richard Darman, who was Mr. Bush's budget director do not lobby the federal government. Carlyle executives point out that many corporations have former government officials as board members.

"Mr. Bush gives us no advice on what do with the Federal government," said David Rubenstein, the company founder and a former aide in the Carter White House. 'We've gone over backwards to make sure that we do no lobbying."

Others, however, see little difference between potential conflicts involving lobbying and those involving investments.

"Carlyle is as deeply wired into the current administration as they can possibly be," said Charles Lewis, executive director of the Center for Public Integrity, a nonprofit public interest group based in Washington. "George Bush is getting money from private interests that have business before the government, while his son is president." And, in a really peculiar way, George W. Bush could, some day, benefit financially from his own administration's decisions, through his father's investments. "The average American doesn't know that," he said, "and, to me, that's a jaw-dropper."

It is difficult to determine exactly how much money the senior Mr. Bush and Mr. Baker have made. Mr. Baker is a Carlyle partner, and Mr. Bush has the title of senior adviser to its Asian activities. With a current market value of about \$3.5 billion on Carlyle's equity and with the firm owned by 18 partners and one outside investor, Mr. Baker's Carlyle stake would be worth about \$180 million if each partner held an equal stake. It is not known whether he has more or less than the other partners.

Unlike Mr. Baker, Mr. Bush has no ownership stake in Carlyle; as an adviser and an investor, he is compensated by obtaining stakes in Carlyle investments.

Carlyle executives cited, for example, Mr. Bush's being allowed to put money he earns giving speeches for Carlyle into its investment funds. Mr. Bush generally receives \$80,000 to \$100,000 for a speech. He sits

on no corporate boards other than Carlyle's.

Carlyle also gave the Bush family a hand in 1990 by putting George W. Bush, who was then struggling to find a career, on the board of a Carlyle subsidiary, Caterair, an airline catering company.

From Carlyle's point of view, the involvement of Mr. Baker and the former president is invaluable.

"It punches up the brand awareness for us globally," said Daniel D'Aniello, a Carlyle managing director. 'We are greatly assisted by Baker and Bush. It shows that we are associated with people of the highest ethical standards."

With \$12 billion from investors, Carlyle claims to be the largest U.S. private equity fund and makes money by investing in undervalued companies and reselling at a profit.

These numbers put Carlyle in the same league as better known private equity firms like Kohlberg Kravis Roberts Co. and Forstmann Uttte Co. The California state pension fund invested \$305 million with Carlyle, and the Texas teachers pension fund whose board was appointed when George W. Bush was governor gave Carlyle \$100 million to invest in November. Carlyle also works as a financial adviser to the Saudi government.

"Let's say Carlyle is going fund-raising in the Middle East and they bring Bush along," said David Snow, editor of Private Equity Central, a trade publication. "He led the U.S. Army into that region." That will catch the attention of very wealthy investors in Saudi Arabia and Kuwait. The fact that Mr. Bush is involved does not mean that Carlyle will make great investment decisions. But it will get them access to certain deals and certain countries that they might otherwise not have. A former Carlyle employee said, "The firm understands that having Bush and Major around is like having movie stars around." Yet Carlyle's success is not just because of its high powered connections. Carlyle has done well for its investors, returning an average of 34 percent a year over the last decade, in line with other private equity funds. It has done this by buying what it knows best companies that are regulated by government. Nearly two thirds of its investments are in defense and telecommunications companies, which are affected by shifts in government spending and policy. Carlyle has become the nation's 11th largest defense contractor, owning

companies that make tanks, aircraft wings and a broad array of other military equipment. It also owns health care companies, real estate, Internet companies, a bottling company and even Le Figaro, the Paris newspaper.

In Europe, Carlyle has assembled an advisory board that besides Mr. Major includes Karl Otto Poehl, former president of Germany's Bundesbank, and the past or present chairmen of BMW, Hoffman LaRoche, Nestle, LVMHMoet Hennessy Lo'uis Vuitton, and Aerospatiale, the French Airbus partner.

Carlyle's Asia advisory board, which helps raise money and finds and reviews deals, includes former President Fidel Ramos of the Philippines; a former prime minister of Thailand, Anand Panyarachun, and the executive director of the Abu Dhabi Investment Authority. A former South Korean prime minister, Park Tae Joon, was also an adviser to Carlyle.

This star power is a source of great pride for Carlyle and part of an acknowledged long-term strategy to associate the firm with brand-name politicians and business executives in order to attract more of the same along with their money, insights and connections.

That said, Carlyle partners bristle at any suggestion that the company's success is based only on high powered schmoozing. "If our track record was not good, people would not invest with us," said Mr. Rubenstein, the founding partner. "No one would gives us money just because is one of our advisers."

For further information on this article go on the internet to: http://www.iht.com/articles/12509.html." - End of the article. We see here the power of greed, manipulation, money and politics. If we look closer we see the new visible embryo of the New World Order. I believe that when Baker was head of the re-election committee for George Bush, he threw the election to Clinton. When Bush went to visit Baker at his Yellowstone National Park ranch, (the only way in to the high security ranch is by helicopter!), it was there that Bush was informed of the plans to leave the White House, and make ready for the New World Order take over of the entire world. After leaving office in January 1993, Baker held a summit of all the chosen people around the world who would rule under the New World Order. This meeting was held at The Mount Washington Hotel, Bretton Woods, New Hampshire,

in the Spring of '93. For this meeting, such people as Gorbachev, and selected members of the Saudi Royal family, and all the top leaders of the 33o Supreme Council, as well as top Zionists, were in attendance. The CIA (that is the Central Intelligence Agency, no less) sealed off the entire area, and the main floors were re-carpeted and re-decorated for the meeting. The entire staff was replaced by the chosen staff of the Masonic gathering.

It is interesting to note that the brochure for the hotel says: "A masterpiece of Spanish Renaissance architecture, The Mount Washington Hotel was a two-year labor of love for 250 master craftsmen." Remember the steps in Masonry, the 1st degree is an Entered Apprentice, the 2nd degree is a Fellow Craft, and the 3rd degree is a Master Mason, also known as a Master Craft. It was also in this same Hotel that President Nixon took the USA and so the world, off the gold standard.

By accepting that the forces of evil are working to overthrow the Kingdom of God on earth, and seek total dominion over the whole world including the cosmos, then let us examine the 'economic downturn' and the 'banking crises' of 2008 and onwards. We will stay focused on the USA as they do not any longer call themselves a 'superpower' but the 'Mega Power' of the world.

During the Bush, Clinton, Bush presidencies, credit cards were encouraged and expanded to almost anyone who applied. Limits were set on the amount borrowed, and often raised to extravagant heights. Banks lent money at times to 100% of the stated value of the pledged asset. Stock markets reached dizzying heights, and the upper middle class gave way to millionaires, who in turn gave way to billionaires. New skyscrapers were built reaching into the clouds. New churches, synagogues and mosques of mega-size sprung up, old ball parks became new churches, old churches were 'renovated' and many more became pubs and restaurants. It was Babylonian boom-time like no other!

The controllers, makers, and manipulators of money were in their hayday. They saw the realization of their dream on the horizon. The day for the final push had arrived, and they sacrificed to 'bankruptcy' the great Wall Street financial institution called Lehman Brothers in New York. Then started their 'economic upturn' which was the 'economic

downturn' to the unsuspecting public. As bank after bank, company after company, mortgage after mortgage failed, the Zionist manipulators of money had their puppets - the Freemasons in governments, 'nationalize' or bail-out the failed institutions. The private citizen could not pay, so he was indebted to the bank. The bank gave its ownership to the government, the government borrowed from the Zionist owned Federal Reserve, and gave them ownership of their citizens and all their assets, and now the manipulators through the easiest and slickest moves, made the private citizen indebted and enslaved to the New World Order, through their 'elected representatives' who sold them down the river. Bearing in mind that the same scenario happened in every country of the world, and each country 'nationalized' their banks, institutions and citizens. If each country nationalized their assets and citizens to the same organization the Zionists - then what happened in 2008 and later was that each country, asset and citizen was 'globalized' to the same entity - the Zionists.

Now comes te next stage which is total subjection to the kingdom of Zion. This is a bit more tricky, bur yet very simple. Through the UN and all of its affiliates (including the army, IMF, World Bank, World Trade Organization, etc.), as well as the World Council of Churches, the world has been divided into two major 'alliances' - the Western Alliance which consists of USA, Canada, Mexico, Australia, New Zealand, European Union, and a few other small nations. The 'Unholy Alliance' presently consists of the core group of: Russia, China, N. Korea, Japan, Indonesia, Pakistan, India, Iran, Iraq, Saud Arabia, The Emirates, Yemen, Syria, Turkey, Afghanistan, Serbia, Sudan, and Libva. There will be a cold war among them to the destruction of each other, but there will appoint a suave, charismatic, young, brilliant, energetic man to bring peace and security. He will heal the economic 'death wound, and all the earth was in admiration after him' (Apoc 13:3). He will introduce a 'painlessly' new credit card system with micro-chip, and save the world from famine and hunger. Who is he? It could be the current president of the USA, Barak Hussein Obama, or I suspect that it could be one under him, time will tell. I do believe that the person is revealed in the presidency of this current term. There are many under him who are ruthless beyond description, who have been

appointed by the C.F.R. Remember that the Bilderberg plan is to have all in place by 2012!

The descending order of authority in the Satanic kingdom of Zion would be: 1. Zionist. 2. Financial Systems. 3. National Governments, and lastly 4. Citizens/slaves.

The leaders of totalitarianism, that is the leaders of the Zionist/Freemason/Communist troika, have their own agenda and scoff at the word which God said: "Man shall not be strengthened by wickedness, and the root of the just shall not be moved" (Pr 12:3).

Chapter 7 The Final Battle

The final battle and the end of times are not happy thoughts for most people, and indeed it is hard to think about, never mind accept! It is better to think on the good times and life as never ending. An old Irish priest was giving a sermon one Sunday and during it he said that we are in the end of times. One of the faithful parishioners quipped: "Thank God, I thought he would never finish!"

The end of times is not the end of the world as most people think. It is the end of this era of evil government, as we know it. It is the beginning of something more beautiful than words can describe. It is the beginning of Heaven upon earth. For those who believe, it is time to intensify your prayers, for those who do not believe, it is time to take stock.

As we in the Western World have lived in an abundance of material wealth, it is hard to imagine that poverty is just around the corner. It is hard for the believer, never mind the unbeliever. For the faithful, it is time to reach out in help to these latter kind.

Arrogance and pride, coupled with instant demands for satisfaction have created a society in which the greater majority rely on their own self for all needs. These needs are material, emotional and spiritual. Authority is regarded as unethical, and everyone does what seems right in his own eyes (Jg 21:24).

In this mentality of "I AM..." these people are in no way willing to hear of their errors or the possibility that the good time has ended. To them it is incomprehensible that famine, want, and defeat are coming. They are the ones who need to hear the message of Jesus Christ, and unfortunately they are the ones who will not listen.

They do not see that the world is now in tribulation in various parts. These areas are expanding and gradually creeping all over the earth. But for these haughty, it is over in some unknown place like Rwanda, Zimbabwe, or Bosnia, or Haiti, but not here, as our problems are only temporary and will be fixed. How unfortunate they are. The good times will end very soon for the smug, and sooner than soon for most. The good times will arrive very soon, sooner than soon for the few. It is to these few, those who will keep the word of God to the end, who are

numbered at less than one third of the world population, to whom this message is addressed. If you are able to reach out and convert just one erring person, there will be great rejoicing in Heaven (Lk 15:7), and your reward will be great (Mt 5:12).

Scripture beseeches us: "Love therefore is the fulfilling of the law. And that, knowing the season, that it is now the hour for us to rise from sleep, for now our salvation is nearer than when we believed. The night is passed and the day is at hand. Let us, therefore cast off the works of darkness and put on the armour of light. Let us walk honestly, as in the day: not in rioting and drunkenness, not in chambering and impurities, not in contention and envy. But put ye on the Lord Jesus Christ: and make not provision for the flesh in its concupiscenses" (Rm 13:10-14). Be ready, reach out, be thankful.

The argument is made that Saint Paul wrote this letter in 57 AD and that the time for fulfilling it has not yet come. This is poor thinking as some in their natural minds want to equate our time as God's time. This cannot be for "with the Lord, a day is like a thousand years, and a thousand years are like a day" (2P 3:8), or as King David said "a thousand years in Thy sight are like a yesterday which has passed" (Ps 89:4 (90:4)).

If we are to take the world from Creation of man (about 4000 BC) and count each millennium as a day we find that we have completed the sixth day, and so are in the seventh day, the Day of The Lord.

(Creation) 4000 BC to (The Flood) 3000 BC The First Day

3000 to 2000 BC
2000 to 1000 BC
The Second Day
The Third Day
The Fourth Day
The Fifth Day
The Sixth Day
The Second Day
The Third Day
The Fifth Day
The Sixth Day
The Second Day
The Fourth Day

I would like to examine the third, fourth and sixth days, and see the striking parallels contained therein with the world in the present day.

2000 to 1000 BC - The Third Day

It was during the third day that the Judges ruled for 400 years. At the end of those days everyone did that which was right in his own eyes. People established their own standards, religion, morality and church as they saw fit. They appointed their own priests who fulfilled the requests

of their masters, not The Master. After the time of the Judges, the people clamored for a kingdom, and got it. Some time later the kingdom which they demanded, was divided by greed and power. The people of that period of history resemble the people of this the 'Seventh Day.' Today the majority feel that any government and church will do them, and some even have no need for God.

There is a deadly parallel between the latter time of the Judges and today. Independence and corruption were the keys of living. The Judges in the end of that period were dishonest, they said one thing and did another (1S 8:1-5). The politicians of today tell the voting public what they want to hear. These people are so intent in their own selves that they never verify the actions of the politicians. They elect liars. They get what they deserve.

In a sense, the Judges could be compared to the different nations of the world today. Each one is different in style and culture, but the same basic error is being made by the people, they perish for a lack of knowledge of times (Ho 4:6), events and the truth of the word of God. They are being led astray by political leaders who have regard only for their own personal gain, and an agenda of the hidden Zionist government of money. They are being deceived by religious leaders Ecclesiastical Masonry whose only goal is wealth achieved by preaching a scurrilous doctrine which the ignorant buy into. Little do these poor unfortunates know that their laziness, haughtiness and pride have set them up for a takeover by the Zionist kingdom of hatred and horror, fueled by an arrogance that only Satan himself could infuse into the hearts of the most eager and corrupt pupils. Prime among the egoistic scoundrels of these latter days have been the United States Presidents who promote the New World Order. Nixon has gone on to his judgement and we shall pray for his soul.

Reagan was a great salesman but one of very limited intelligence and foresight. In his ego he allowed himself to be duped by the leaders of the New World Order to continue the sale of the assets of the United States of America to the Zionist rulers of darkness, in exchange for a piece of debt ridden paper. Nothing of value was received for this, just a computer entry at the international bank level. Reagan's then assistant and successor was his vice president, George Bush, who continued on with the plan of the establishment.

The older Bush was perhaps the most cunning and devious of all recent presidents. He continued the give away of the United States of America to the United Nations in exchange for a promise of position in the New World Order. After his defeat in the 1992 election, this CIA trained executive gave the United Nations a military base in Montana. In the spring of 1993 he met with the leaders of the New World Order in Mount Washington, New Hampshire to further the plans of the total enslavement of the world to the forces of Antichrist, who uses the UN. This meeting was under the protection of the CIA. Reagan and Bush between them increased the national debt from 1 trillion dollars to approximately 11 trillion dollars in their twelve years of elected power. This figure does not include the money "borrowed" from the various pension funds.

In Clinton, the New World Order had their perfect patsy. With a thirst for power at any cost, he accepted the patronage of deceitful money, powered his way through a state government with all sorts of skullduggery, and with so many crimes under his belt, he did what he was told or else...Clinton continued the policies which were in operation by his predecessors. There is no difference between Democrat or Republican when it comes to the Masonic operation of the White House. The enemy has created its own opposition in having two political parties. Both are parties of deceit. Their objective is the complete establishment of the New World Order under the banner of the United Nations (Zionism) at any cost. The world citizens would be enslaved while the rulers live sumptuously: "Two pounds of wheat for a penny, and thrice two pounds of barley for a penny: and see you hurt not the wine and the oil" (Apoc 6:6). Pay the workers small money, rob them through taxes, but do not interfere with the pay of the political rulers, as they must have their luxuries.

The New World Order is another name for the United Nations. Under the UN are the different "world" organizations like, World Bank, IMF, World Trade Organization, World Health Organization, World Council of Churches, and others. All these are under the control of the Zionists/Freemasons/Communists, and they in turn are owned by the families who own the central banks of all the nations, Rothschild, Rockefeller, and others. It is to these organizations that the presidents of the USA give their allegiance, not to the people or the flag, or the

constitution. The US Constitution is now a relic of the past. It can be, and is being circumvented by "executive orders." Bush/Clinton/Bush used them freely, and Obama has continued on the same course. Their boss is the Zionist UN.

These faithless rulers of America can be compared to the time of the divided kingdom of Israel. The time preceding the fourth day saw the end of the rule of the Judges and the beginning of the kingdom with the reign of King Saul (1050 - 1010 BC) and the beginning of the kingship of David (1010 - 970 BC).

1000 to 1 BC - The Fourth Day

King David's son, Solomon (970 - 931 BC) with his divided heart {he had 700 wives as queens, and 300 concubines: and the women turned away his heart} (3K 11:3 - 1K 11:3 in Hebrew numbering), caused the kingdom to be divided after his death. In 931 BC after his death there was an assembly at Shechem (1K 12). His two sons Roboam and Jeroboam (who had returned from exile in Egypt) attended.

Roboam who was to rule the entire kingdom, consulted with the elders who had attended his father and asked for advice on what he should do to rule his people. They told him to be gentle and kind. He also consulted with his own advisers who were young and had been brought up with him. They told him to be ruthless and increase the burden on the people. He choose the latter. The nation was divided.

The kingdom of Judah with Roboam as its king was set up in the south, which included the tribe of Benjamin.

The northern tribes revolted and set up their own kingdom, consisting of ten tribes, and Jeroboam was its king. They called this kingdom Israel. Jeroboam made idols of two golden calves and had the ten tribes worship them.

This schism divided the kingdom of Israel. No one remained loyal to the House of David, except the tribe of Judah (1K 12:20).

There were a total of 39 kings in Israel and Judah after the schism. Until the time of deportation, Israel had 19 kings, none of whom did what was right in the eyes of the Lord. Until the time of the Babylonian exile Judah had 20 kings, eight of whom did what was right in the eyes of the Lord. They were Asa (1K 15:11), Jehoshaphat (1K 22:44), Jehoash (2K 12:3), Amaziah (2K14:3), Uzziah (2K 15:3), Jotham (2K 16:34), Hezekiah (2K 18:3), and finally from 640-609 Josiah (2K 22:2)

who conducted the religious reform. These numbers of 39 and 8 will have further significance as we shall see a little later.

I liken this time to the present rulership in the world. Personal greed has precedence over right rulership. In this sell-out of the people by the Antichrist and his troika of Zionists/Freemasonry/Communists to the Satanic kingdom of Zion, the politicians leave the people of the world with an inheritance of total slavery.

1000 to 2000 AD - The Sixth Day

We can compare the unfortunate event of the schism to the Protestant Revolution which essentially began in 1300 with the Albigensian heresy and found its completion in Martin Luther in 1519. (The schism of the Coptic {Egyptian} and Greek Orthodox had already taken place). There has been a continuing revolt within Protestantism since then with over a thousand dissenters establishing their own brand of "religion" for the sake of their "flock."

We can also compare the schism to the events which happened in the Roman Catholic Church where revolutionaries established their own "church" and are calling it the American Catholic Church, the Old Roman Catholic Church, etc. These leaders are as Lucifer and Luther in their disobedience and say: "I will not serve. I will not accept authority." There is a power struggle going on to take control of this church and this deadly conflict is leading to the final confrontation with the golden calf of the False Prophet (Apoc 19:20), who would in fact set himself up as a 'pope,' but would be in fact an anti-pope. There have been 38 anti-popes in the history of the Church and so the Zionist False Prophet would be the 39th the Anti-pope, completing the 39 kings of Israel as stated above.

We must not forget Europe and the rest of the world. The European Union has a major role to play in the final events. In absolute arrogance against the Church, the Common Market (known originally as the Nations of Six - notice the use of '6'), made the 'annunciation' to the world - 'The Treaty of Rome,' which in essence is the formation of the new Roman Empire. The founders chose the date of the anniversary of the Feast of the Annunciation of Our Lady, on 25th March, 1957, to make their declaration. Since Jesus was born on the 25th December, if we take nine months prior to that we have the 25th March, which is designated the Annunciation by the Archangel Gabriel to Mary. Their

intent was to discredit the birth of Jesus and the Roman Catholic Church. The original signatures were the 6 nations of: Italy, Germany, France, Belgium, Luxembourg, and The Netherlands (Holland). In 1962 it became known as The European Economic Community, the EEC, and later the name was changed to it's present title, the European Union (EU), which has 27 member states by March 2009. This Union fulfills part of the prophecies in Revelation (Apoc 17:12) and bring about the final positioning of the nations as the Battle of the Ages concludes.

It is an error to examine political events without religious and natural occurrences. Because of religious schism, apostasy and heresy, there will be disasters natural, economic and political. Apostasy is an abandonment of faith. Schism is the preaching of a different doctrine. Heresy is a belief or opinion contrary Catholic doctrine and profoundly at odds with Biblical and sacred traditions. All of these events are evident in the so called 'Christian' Churches today. Any person who denies the Seven Sacraments, and the authority of the Vicar of Christ, is not a Christian. Thus, the Coptic, Orthodox and Protestant churches are not Christian. As we stated above, there is an open split in the Roman Catholic Church with a large number of "Catholics" opposing the authority and teaching of Christ's Vicar on earth. This is an open schism, and those break-away entities are not Christian. The 'ecumenism' of the Second Vatican Council is error, and to teach ecumenism is heresy.

The Pope should be the last barrier confronting the reign of the False Prophet and the advent of the Antichrist: "For the mystery of iniquity already works: only that he who now holds do hold, until he be taken out of the way" (2Th 2:7).

There was a lot of significance to Pope John Paul II going to the United Nations in October 1995. The UN is the heart of the empire of the Antichrist. Just as the Holy Ghost sent the first pope, Saint Peter, along with Saint Paul into the heart of the pagan Roman Empire, so too John Paul was sent by the Holy Ghost to the headquarters of the Satanic and therefore pagan United Nations empire to speak truth.

A great number of the American bishops were and are openly opposed to the Pope and his magisterium (teaching authority). Through one of the visionaries in the last decade, Jesus has warned the Catholic bishops

of America that if they divide His Church, He will divide their country. Generally speaking not much heed is given to a living prophet or visionary (Mt 13:57), because most commonly they are giving God's warning and message to the world, which are usually unpopular. The world does not want to listen as it wants to live as it sees fit. In order to be 'politically' correct it is the 'proper thing' to stay with the 'establishment.' Even though the prophet Joel states: "It shall come to pass after this, that I will pour out My Spirit upon all flesh: and your sons and daughters shall prophesy: your old men shall dream dreams, and your young men shall see visions. Moreover upon My servants and handmaids in those days I will pour forth My Spirit" (JI 2:28,29). Some believe this, many do not. Pity and pray for the unbeliever, they are most in need of prayer.

Because of the apostasy, schism and heresies, God has punished all the world with an economic collapse. This disintegration has caused political breakdown. The ability of the governments of today to finance the disasters which are following is zero. We dealt with the economics in the previous chapter, but now famines, earthquakes and cosmic disasters will increase in frequency and intensity leading us into the Great Tribulation into which we are now entering.

It is interesting here to note the following prophecy by Saint Hildegard, who died in 1179 at the age of 101 (Dictionary of Saints. p. 286). {My comments are in brackets}.

"The time is coming when princes and people will renounce the authority of the Pope. (e.g. the Protestant revolt starting in the early 1500's. As I stated above, a great number of bishops throughout the world have already turned their backs on the leadership of the Pope). Individual countries will prefer their own Church rulers to the Pope. (How about the Greek Orthodox, Russian Orthodox, American Catholic Church, or the Catholic Church of America following the example of King Henry VIII's Church of England?). The German Empire will be divided. (Since 1100 this is so). Church property will be secularized. (Mexico as an example). Priests will be persecuted. (In Ireland since the reign of Henry. Latin America in the 1990's). After the birth of Anti-Christ heretics will preach their false doctrines undisturbed, resulting in 'Christians having doubts about their holy Catholic faith.' (Antichrist is already in the UN. Since 1960 the attendance at the

Catholic Church has dropped significantly, by about 50%. It is not uncommon to hear professed 'Christians' proclaim that all the churches are the same).

Toward the end of the world, mankind will be purified through sufferings. (Bosnia, Somalia, Rwanda, Zimbabwe, Darfur, Haiti, China, Florida, the Mississippi valley, Los Angeles, N. Ireland, Philippines, El Salvador, Nicaragua, Peru, Iran, Iraq, just to name a few as the list grows at an alarming rate).

A powerful wind (nuclear?) will rise in the North carrying heavy fog and the densest dust by divine command, and it will fill their throats and eyes so they will cease their savagery and be stricken with great fear. So after that there will be so few men left that seven women will fight for one man, that they will say to the man: 'marry me to take the disgrace from me' (Is 4:1), for in those days it will be a disgrace for a woman to be without child, as it was by the Jews in the Old Testament. (I wonder if the disgrace of abortion and artificial insemination was considered)?

Before the Comet comes (Has this anything to do with the comet crashing into Jupiter in 1994? Has the last been heard of these comets)? many nations, the good excepted, will be scoured with want and famine (This is already fulfilled, Biafra, Somalia, Rwanda, Darfur, *India, etc).* The great nation in the ocean that is inhabited by people of different tribes and descent, by an earthquake storm and tidal waves will be devastated. (Note here that America was not known to the European world until over 300 years later! What a way to describe the *United States*). It will be divided, and in great part be submerged. That nation will also have many misfortunes at sea, and lose its colonies in the East through a Tiger and a Lion (two other nations such as China the Tiger, and a Muslim country? Does the 'east' mean the area across the international dateline)? The Comet by its tremendous pressure, will force much out of the ocean and flood many countries, causing much want and many plagues. All sea coast cities will be fearful and many of them will be destroyed by tidal waves, and most living creatures will be killed and even those who escape will die from a horrible disease. (The Tsunami in 2004). For in none of those cities does a person live according to the laws of God.

Peace will return to Europe when the white flower (The house of

Bourbon: Great Monarch) again takes possession of the throne of France. During this time of peace the people will be forbidden to carry weapons and iron will be used only for making agricultural implements and tools (Is 2:4). Also during this period the soil will be very productive and many Jews, heathens and heretics will join the Church" (Prophets and Our Times. p.139). {I take this to be the 27 days between the resurrection of the two faithful witnesses, Enoch and Elijah 1263.5 days (Apoc 11:3.9, Dn 12:11) after they begin their mission and 1290 days when the Antichrist and false prophets are destroyed}. The above is a private prophecy and as such does not have to be believed. When read and studied in line with scripture it may not be a bad idea to keep it close to mind as we continue toward the Great Tribulation. Most people in some of the above mentioned countries would not need much convincing that they are living in the Great Tribulation. Most people living in the splendor of the present day European Union and America do have great difficulty in accepting that there is a Great Tribulation going on elsewhere, and approaching them. As the drive for total world dominance continues, and the major players are all in place, the time for the conclusive final battle is here. A Financial Crisis Network, also called Financial Crimes Network has been established with its headquarters in Vienna, Virginia. This operation known as FINCEN, operates an army consisting of CIA, FBI, and military personnel, such as the Green Berets, Frogs, paratroopers etc. They are called 'the black army' because they dress in black and have all of their vehicles painted black, including, jeeps, trucks, cars, tanks, armored personnel carriers and aircraft including the now common sight of black helicopters. None of these vehicles are numbered. At the airports of the USA, the Air Traffic Controls are not permitted to report on the activity, flight pattern or frequency of the flights of the black army aircraft. (What really was behind the strike of Air Traffic Controllers during Reagan's term)? Under FINCEN, this army operates in a clandestine manner and may search without warrant, hold without cause, and confiscate any property without accountability. FINCEN has over 300,000 troops under its control at the present time, including foreign soldiers. A great number of these foreigners are Chinese. A counter-terrorism bill states that the US Government will hire members of the Royal Hong Kong Police to assist the US

Government in counter insurrection. It is a strange thing that Chinese will assist in the locating of the Chinese invaders! In addition to these operatives, FINCEN has entered into agreement with the different gangs in the major US cities to assist them in counter insurrection. Additionally there are over 40 detention centers set up across the USA plus a number overseas, and transit centers for the sorting of 'insurrectionists' and forwarding to the major concentration camps. At least one of these centers is currently equipped with gas chambers. The then President Reagan stated that the UN was the 'silk glove on the iron fist,' and since then the diplomatic coups by the White House have been purely decoy moves to further the goals of the New World Order (NWO), which in essence is the 'kingdom of Zion.' If the UN is 'the silk glove' then FINCEN is 'the iron fist' which will soon have a national police force to follow through on the UN directives. The national police force was encouraged by the former Presidents Bush/Clinton/Bush. Three patriots? In addition, the majority of the US military surplus vehicles are now painted white just waiting for the instructions to paint on the UN (NWO) decal.

I have a very basic question about FINCEN. If they did not expect financial crisis, or major financial crimes, then why have such an illegal but government sanctioned unit? The answer is simple but not one that will be liked. If there is to be a financial crisis, then someone is planning it. It is the Satanic Zionist owners of the UN, and the world banks. How do they do this. Easy! Stop buying American bonds, notes and Treasury bills! The US would then not be able to pay the interest on the Reagan/Bush/Clinton/Bush 11+ trillion dollars of debt the have encumbered the USA taxpayer with. You bet there is a financial crisis. Compare the US statistics since the end of the gold standard 1971, and see the plight of the ordinary taxpayer with no loop-holes:

	1971	2007	Increase since 1971
Population (millions)	208	305	68%
GNP (trillions=T\$) Budget. a (T\$) Debt. b (T\$)	\$1.2	\$11	916%
	\$.19	\$2.9	1,526%
	\$.52	\$11	2,115%
Annual interest on Debt (T\$) Per person share of Natl Debt c Per family share of Natl Debt d Minimum Wage Silver per ounce	\$.03	\$9	3,000%
	\$2.5k	\$30k	1,216%
	\$7.9k	\$60.1k	760%
	\$1.60	\$6.55	409%
	\$1.50	\$17	1,133%
Gold per ounce	\$35	\$783	2,237%
Ratio silver/gold (11 Feb '91)	23:1	224:1	2,036%

- a. Office of Management of the Budget.
- a.US Bureau of Debt.
- b.The US Dept. of Treasury reports that this is the total debt over time is divided into two areas, Marketable and Non-Marketable (e.g. US Savings Bonds). The above amount excludes the Non-Marketable interest in the amount of T\$1.85.
- d. As of the end of 2007, the Government's liabilities exceeded its assets (net position) by \$9.2 trillion per person share of National Debt. The national debt equates to \$30,400 per person U.S. population, or \$60,100 per head of the U.S. working population, as of February 2008. As of 2012 the National debt is in the region of 15 Trillion. Does there appear that there might be a financial crises and worse? There is, and what happens now? All the paper currency will be recalled, all bank assets will be seized, and the populace will be issued the dread debit card system. All credit cards would cease to function, and all banks, businesses, institutions, agencies, schools and citizens would have to belong to the 'Federal Reserve Bank System' and they could only transact business through the one world debit card system. The Federal Reserve Bank is the private property of the Zionists. It does not belong to the U. S. Government as most people think. They "will bring it about that no one may be able to but or sell, except him who has the mark, either the name of the beast or the number of its name" (Apoc 13:17). This debit card now in existence is the forerunner of the One World ID card. It is an international 18 digit ID number, electronically encoded transponder biochip, that cannot be changed by the individual, but only by the computer source. The chip itself is so small that it can be injected on your forehead or your hand with the same speed and ease

as a virus shot.

The financial system must be examined in conjunction with the other actions of the government. The American Military on its own have never been allowed to win a war in this century except for such invasions as Granada and Panama (with partial help from the local Panamanians). In my opinion the US soldier is the finest in the world. Yet the failure in Korea, Viet Nam, Beirut, Iraq and Afghanistan still hurts. Why? The answer would appear to be that the powers did not want them to win. The US Forces were defeated politically each time. Not because they were inferior, but because the UN did not want them to win. Why? Because the UN wants world dominance for itself, therefore some independent nation like the United States would not be allowed to usurp the power of the forces of the antichrists. The US would come under the Zionist One World UN dictatorship, with the Zionist Antichrist as its ruler. George Bush said on 9/11/90 when speaking of the alliance with the Communist countries fighting Iraq: "Out of these troubled times a New World Order can emerge, under a United Nations that performs as envisioned by its founders." Exactly 11 years later was THE 9/11.

While it looks like these forces of evil are in complete control of all things, they are not: "The Lord brings to nought the counsels of nations, and he rejects the devices of people, and casts away the counsels of princes" (Ps 32:11 (33:11)). There is a blessing which the US citizens have and that is that there is a trained military force of ex-GI's who value their country and who know that their skills were thwarted by political maneuvering in times of combat. This will be the force which will oppose the black army and their UN counterparts. The gun control laws are trying to disarm this force, but the end is not to be as evil intends. Militias are authorized by the U. S. Constitution, and each militia force have or will probably adopt it as its by laws. The same type of resistance will be found throughout the world. The One World Government shall control with an iron fist.

The Zionist False Prophet will lead the world into the one world religion, under the World Council of Churches, which institution was formed in Amsterdam in 1948. With the continuing economic and political crisis the Antichrist will come on the scene and will receive endorsement from the False Prophet, who in actual fact is an anti-pope.

With this kind of acknowledgment, the Antichrist, the one despised: "shall come privately, and shall obtain the kingdom by fraud" (Dn 11:21). The Antichrist will become leader of the world (Gog and his UN army Magog), assisted by the False Prophet.

Wars in various places increased in numbers causing the start of World War III which began in 2000. During WW III, fire will engulf the earth, cities such as New York, London, Paris, Rome and Tokyo will be destroyed. These wars will lead to the Battle of Armageddon and the conclusion of times as we know them.

"But the counsel of the Lord stands for ever, the people whom He has chosen for His inheritance" (Ps 32:11 (33:11)).

Chapter 8 The Beginning of the End

The plan of God will succeed. The plans of evil will not succeed. The Zionist UN agenda is about to come to a bloody halt. God has made known to us through His merciful graces: "the Sacrament of His will, according to His good pleasure, which He purposed in Himself, in the dispensation of the fullness of times, to re-establish all things in Christ, that are in Heaven and in earth, in Him...according to the counsel of His will...which is the pledge of our inheritance, to the redemption of acquisition, unto the praise of His glory" (Ep 1:9-14). The Sacrament of His will defeats the Satanic kingdom of Zion's plans.

God says: "I will grant unto my two witnesses to prophesy for a thousand two hundred and sixty days (1260), clothed in sackcloth" (Apoc 11:3). It is believed that they are Enoch and Elijah. With their arrival, the trumpet will have sounded alarming all the nations that the end of the reign of Satan is near. This 'near' is according to man's time, measurable, understandable and foreseeable. Their arrival will coincide with the arrival of the Antichrist.

The latter will have come to power because the nations of the world will have been in turmoil: "Why have the Gentiles raged, and the people devised vain things? The kings of the earth stood up, and the princes met together, against the Lord, and against His Christ" (Ps 2:1,2). The upheaval caused by the world wide economic and political collapse will see the 'father of deceit' sending his 'son' to assume power. Since the beginning of time the wicked one has had to have his antichrist ready for this hour, that is why there have been so many tyrannical antichrist rulers at all times in history. He never knew when this hour would be, as scripture says: "You know not when the time is" (Mk 13:33), and again it says: "But of that day and hour no one knows, no not the Angels of Heaven, but the Father alone" (Mt 24:36). So Satan did not and does not know, and he must always be ready with his antichrist. Some people say that he will be 30-33 years old when he arrives, others say he will live for 666 months, that is 55 and a half years. All that is speculation, and most probably error. What we do know is that he will arrive and be defeated, and that we must be prepared.

This then is the Battle of the Ages. This is the final hour of wickedness. Satan believes that by sending his son, 'the man of iniquity' to take control of the earth, that he will make his grand entrance when the forces of good are overcome. In his arrogant pride it has never entered into his evil head that he could be defeated!

So much is written about the time of the Great Tribulation and what the forces of evil are going to do. Let us examine together what God says is going to happen. This way we have the facts exactly as they are prophesied and so we know the outcome.

Christ's representative on earth will identify the False Prophet and the Antichrist. All true Christians will be sought after by the forces of evil and be martyred for their faith. In addition to these Christians, good people of other faiths such as Jews and Muslims etc. will also be persecuted. Jesus said: "Other sheep I have, that are not of this fold, them also I must bring and they shall hear My voice, and there shall be one fold and one Shepherd" (Jn 10:16). They will be executed for their hatred of the evil ruling the world, and for their belief that the God of Creation has allowed this tribulation for the purification of the world. A Zionist/Masonic cardinal will call a conclave of all the schismatic cardinals in the world. This conclave will be attended by only those unfaithful to the word of God. These Ecclesiastical Zionist/Masonic cardinals and will endorse the Zionist False Prophet as 'pope,' and he will be in fact the Anti-pope, the 39th in the history of Christianity. As there were 39 kings in the divided kingdom of Israel, so too there will have been 39 anti-popes in the divided church of Christianity. Pope Pius IX (died 1878) wrote: "The Church will suffer exceedingly. Her servants and her chieftain will be mocked, scourged and martyred" (Prophets and our Times, p. 206). This has happened - except for the 'chieftain' being martyred - unless we consider that Pope John Paul I was murdered.

Pope Saint Pius X (died 1914) wrote: "I saw one of my successors by name fleeing over the corpses of his brethren. He will flee to a place for a short respite where he is unknown, but he himself will die a cruel death" (Prophets and our Times, p. 216). Pius X family name was Giuseppe Sarto. Giuseppe translates to Joseph in English. Pope Benedict's family name is Joseph Ratzinger, so if this prophecy is to come true, Pope Benedict is the one to flee the Vatican!

Jacinta of Fatima (died 1920) said: "I saw the Holy Father in a very big house. He was kneeling before a table holding his face in his hands and he was weeping. Outside there were many people, some were throwing stones, others were cursing at him and saying many ugly words to him." This has not happened as of March 2012.

There will be only two popes after Benedict XVI, the last being "Petrus Romanus." Saint Malachy says of him in the only commentary of any of the popes foretold: "In the final persecution of the Holy Roman Church there will reign Peter the Roman, who will feed his flock among many tribulations; after which the seven hilled city will be destroyed and the dreadful Judge will judge the people" (Prophecies of St. Malachy, p. 96). I do not believe that he will necessarily be from Rome. but that he will be an original pre-Vatican II type of believing Catholic. I believe that Petrus Romanus will be elected or appointed true Pope. and that he will be the last Pope. The Church will never be without a shepherd and "the gates of hell shall not prevail against it." (Mt 16:18). Petrus Romanus will lead the Church into the New Garden of Eden. The reason I think that there will be only two Popes after Benedict XVI, is taken from my understanding of scripture. Let me give here my interpretation of the Apocalypse chapter 14:14-20. Remember that the book of Revelation is full of symbols like stars, dragons, beasts, horns and trumpets and mysteries, etc. Jesus gives us one of the meanings: "The seven stars are the angels of the seven churches" (Apoc 1:20). With the thought that the angels are the bishops, the leaders of the church, then the overall leader is the Vicar of Christ, the Pope. "And I saw and behold, a white cloud, and upon the cloud one sitting like to the Son of man, having on his head a crown of gold and in his hand a sharp sickle" (14:14).

Let us make an identification here. 'One sitting like to the Son of man...a crown of gold and in his hand a sharp sickle,' is the Great Monarch. He is a 'lay man,' and is not identified as 'an angel,' but is one as such. He is not a priest, but the cooperation between he and the Vicar of Christ is perfect harmony, as Zachariah says: "...and the counsel of peace shall be between them both" (Zc 6:13). 'in his hand a sharp sickle' signifies his temporal power.

As we will see in verses 17-20 that this 'angel' is Eucharistic man, who is given authority (crown of gold) and power (sharp sickle in his hand)

from God to execute judgements on the Devil, the Antichrist, the False Prophet and their followers. The 'cloud' is a symbol of threatening storm, and 'white' is the victorious Throne from which Eucharistic man operates.

"And another angel came out from the Temple, crying with a loud voice to him that sat upon the cloud: 'Thrust in your sickle and reap, because the hour is come to reap. For the harvest of the earth is ripe." (14:15). The hierarchal advisors within the Eucharistic Church let the Monarch, the temporal authority, know that all is now ready to begin the final battle.

And he that sat on the cloud thrust his sickle into the earth, and the earth was reaped" (14:16).

He followed the advice, and cast his sickle into the earth, and the earth was reaped. The *sickle* into the earth is the release of all the power of God to destroy those who destroy the inhabitants of the earth by promoting the evil of Satan.

"And another angel came out of the Temple which is in heaven, he also having a sharp sickle" (14:17).

This bishop coming out of the Eucharistic Church represents the spiritual power of Eucharistic man to defeat Satan and his cohorts: "Not with an army, nor by might, but by My Spirit, saith the Lord of hosts" (Zc 4:6). It is here understood that the armies of God in Heaven are ready to march: "And the armies that are in Heaven followed him on white horses, clothed in fine linen, white and clean" (Apoc 19:14). "And another angel came out from the Altar, who had power over fire. And he cried with a loud voice to him that had the sharp sickle, saying: 'Thrust in thy sharp sickle and gather the clusters of the vineyard of the earth, because the grapes thereof are ripe.' (14:18).

Again we see a member of the Eucharistic hierarchy who has power over excommunications *(fire)* to give the edict that those who do not turn away from following the 666 beasts and their sinful ways will be excommunicated. Last chance.

And the angel thrust in his sharp sickle into the earth, and gathered the vineyard of the earth, and cast it into the great press of the wrath of God, and the press was trodden without the city, and blood came out of the press, up to the horses' bridles, for a thousand and six hundred furlongs" (14:19-20).

We saw at the opening of the fifth seal, the Altar, and the souls of them that were slain for the word of God, and asking 'How long O Lord...?' We saw that they were told to 'rest for a little time till their fellow servants and their brethren, who are to be slain even as they, should be filled up.' Now the time is come, and the final command is given. The angel, Eucharistic man, had power over fire to cleanse and purify the atmosphere, the environment, and to destroy those who caused such sin, pollution, and anguish, to the citizens of the earth. The great winepress of the Lord is His promised tribulation to those who prefer the Devil to God. The press is 'trodden without the city', that is, it is outside the City of God, the Eternal Virgin Eucharistic Church, for no slaughter will be made evermore in God's creation. This is the final cleansing of sin from the earth.

When it is written: 'blood came out of the press, up to the horses' bridles, for a thousand and six hundred furlongs', it is meant that the number of deaths in this battle of the ages is immense, as foretold by the Prophet Zachariah: "And there shall be in all the earth, saith the Lord, two parts in it shall be scattered and shall perish..." (Zc 13:8). The distance of 'a thousand and six hundred furlongs' is 200 miles, or 333 kilometers in our modern measurements. But there is a spiritual meaning.

Understand first the spiritual meaning of numbers used here:-

1,000 is an immense number.

100 is plenitude, sufficient, or fulness.

6 is imperfection, iniquity.

Therefore, there is an immense number of people who will be destroyed, and who make up the fulness of the great number of iniquities which cover the earth.

Gloria Olivae, "The glory of the olive," is perhaps the second last Pope mentioned by Saint Malachy. His prophecies do not specifically mention that there shall be no Popes between Gloria Olivae and Petrus Romanus, nor on the other hand that there will be others. Since the Irish Saint does include anti-popes as part of the prophecy without identifying them as such. Gloria Olivae is Benedict XVI, as the Benedictine order is also called the "Olivetans," so the Gloria Olivae is fulfilled.

The time for the arrival of the "Great Monarch" on the scene with

miraculous wealth will arrive unnoticed for some time. There will be a holy and inspired co-operation between he and Petrus Romanus: "These are the two sons of oil who stand before the Lord of the whole earth...Yea, he shall build a temple to the Lord, and he shall bear the glory, and shall sit, and rule upon his throne, and he shall be a priest upon his throne, and the counsel of peace shall be between them both" (Zc 4:14, 6:13). We will see the spiritual and the temporal authority of God working in complete harmony, like in the days of Moses and Aaron.

There was a private prophecy given to a Joanne Kriva in December 1994 which I would like to quote here: "Peace to you. With great tenderness and gentle yearning, I look with compassion upon the suffering of those caught in the web of lies that hold them bound in error and confusion. There is a light on the world who leads you in truth, if you would but listen. Surely, I say to you, this light is My light, for it is granted to him to lead My church in this time of great danger. He teaches in My name and acts by My hand. Recognize in him My own authority. I have placed upon him My royal scepter, the diadem of My Eternal Priesthood. This one who serves Me so diligently, is the voice crying in the wilderness of your apostasy (Lk 3:4). Truly I say unto you his voice shall not be stilled until the man of righteousness appears. Thus in this beloved son of Mine, for it is I who speak with his voice. He too is My beloved son in the order of the priesthood of My only begotten Son, Jesus, Eternal God, Eternal Priest. Thus say I, Eternal Father, hear him and believe, and you shall be led to reunion with the truth that sets all people free from bondage to falsehood and deception. The Light that shines in the darkness (Jn 1:5), and the Light sets you free" (Tribulations and Triumph. p 230). In 1994 when this prophecy was written, where were the 'web of lies...error and confusion... apostasy...bondage to falsehood and deception'? Was this the schism in the Roman catholic Church? Was this Light Pope John Paul II? If this is true, then when did it come to pass that 'the man of righteousness' appeared? I loved John Paul II but I did not agree with his ecumenism. I have difficulty in saying that he led the apostasy. I have greater difficulty in saying that Benedict XVI is 'the man of righteousness.'

Leave all the arguments for a moment, and let us move on to why I

think there will be a Great Monarch? There are two very prominent passages in Scripture which refer directly to him. The first is in Isaiah which states: "Behold a king shall reign in justice, and princes shall rule in judgement" (Is 32:1). This chapter further describes the cooperation between the king and the rulers of the Church, that is of the entire earth: "And the work of justice shall be peace, and the service of justice quietness, and security for ever. And My people shall sit in the beauty of peace, and in the tabernacles of confidence, and in wealthy rest" (Is 32:17,18). Is it possible that this is 'the man of righteousness'? Possible!

The second passage is in the book of the Apocalypse which states: "I saw another mighty Angel (the Great Monarch), come down from Heaven (a True Catholic), clothed with a cloud (humble and modest), and the rainbow (he will bring the covenant of peace to the world) was on his head, and his face was as the sun (wisdom, talents and title), and his feet as pillars of fire (power and zeal).

- 2. And he had in his hand a little book open (he will rule with justice), and he set his right foot upon the sea but his left foot upon the earth (he will exercise power over the world).
- 3. And he cried with a loud voice as when a lion roars (he will put fear into the wicked), and when he had cried, the seven thunders uttered their voices. {The above italicized notes are taken from Venerable Bartholomew Holzhauser, who died in 1658} (Prophets and our Times, p. 172).
- 4. And when the seven thunders (the G-7 Group of seven financial control nations of the world, England, Germany, France, Italy, United States, Canada and Japan) had uttered their voices, I was about to write, and I heard a voice from Heaven saying to me: "Seal up the things which the seven thunders have spoken, and write them not." (Seven is also the spiritual number for completion, perfection. 'Write them not,' that is not to be revealed at this time).
- 5. And the Angel whom I saw standing upon the sea and upon the earth, lifted up his hand to Heaven,
- 6. and swore by Him that lives forever and ever, Who created Heaven and the things which are therein, and the earth and the things that are in it, and the sea and the things which are therein, that, time shall be no longer (the end of time):

- 7. but that in the days of the voice of the seventh angel, when he shall begin to sound the trumpet, the mystery of God shall be finished, as He has declared by His servants the prophets. {"For the Lord God does nothing without revealing His secret to His servants the prophets"} (Am 3:7).
- 8. And I heard a voice from Heaven again speaking to me, and saying: "Go, and take the book that is open, from the hand of the angel who stands upon the sea, and upon the earth."
- 9. And I went away to the angel, saying unto him, that he should give me the book. And he said to me, "Take the book, and eat it up, and it shall make thy belly bitter, but in thy mouth it shall be sweet as honey." (The bitter time to come of the Great Tribulation fostered by the Satanic kingdom of Zion, but the sweetness of the Kingdom of God).
- 10. And I took the book from the hand of the angel, and ate it up, and it was in my mouth, sweet as honey, and when I had eaten it, my belly was bitter.
- 11. And he said to me: "Thou must prophesy again to many nations, and peoples, and tongues, and kings" (Apoc 10:1-11).

God made the earth to be lived in and not to be a battle ground of nations and an ecological nightmare: "He did not create it in vain, He formed it to be inhabited" (Is 45:18). All must be returned and renewed as God wants it: "For He created all things that they might be, and He made the nations of the earth for health, and there is no poison of destruction in them, nor kingdom of hell upon the earth. For justice is perpetual and immortal" (Ws 1:14,15).

God has His Master Plan for the salvation of the world. Infidels, heretics and all the followers of Satan are as a mere puff of wind compared with the might of the Creator of all things. The script is written, the stage is set, the trumpet will sound, and all is in readiness as we live out the final days. All is to be returned to God by Eucharistic man, just as He gave all to the immaculate man in the Garden of Eden.

Chapter 9 The Mystery Revealed

In the year 1619 there was a prophecy given to a saint whose name is unknown to me at this time. I have included this prophecy (See Appendix 5) and will follow the general plan revealed in it for the purpose of enlightenment on the events which I deem are imminent and pertinent for these times.

During the Great Tribulation into which we are now entering, there shall be a continuing, gradual and "full redemption of Christ. This is a hidden mystery not to be revealed, or understood, without the revelation of the Holy Spirit." This is "the mystery that has been hidden from worlds and generations, but now is manifested to His saints, to whom God would make known the riches of the glory of this Sacrament in the Gentiles, which is Christ in you the hope of glory" (Col 1:26,27). By a full redemption of Christ is meant that all that has been given to mankind will be restored to its original state as God had given to us. By 'all' is meant everything as received in its immaculate and pure state in Paradise.

The primary restoration is man returning into his intended pure and immaculate state. Jesus gained this victory for us on the Cross. It remains for us to "work out our salvation with fear and trembling" (Phil 2:12). This restoration also means the earth and the fullness thereof. It calls for the accumulation and gathering together into one place or entity "the restitution of all things" (Ac 3:21). This 'one place' is the Kingdom of God on earth. In the understanding of 'all things' I necessarily include such visible items as the Ark of the Covenant, the Chalice which Jesus used at the Last Supper, the nails, spear, crown of thorns and the Cross among other sacred things. Jesus said: "Elijah indeed shall come, and restore all things" (Mt 17:11), and part of the mystery unfolding is that the time of the physical return of Elijah is close at hand, and the recovery of those items.

It is only through the gift of the Holy Ghost that revelation is given to those holy seekers and loving inquirers. The revelation and understanding will not be given if serious preparation is not made. The first and necessary part of this preparation is for each of us to have a pure heart. For Catholics this is frequent confessions, at least monthly,

yet weekly would be better. All other 'churches' must return to the stronghold and pillar of Truth. The completion of such redemption is withheld and abstracted by the seals of revelation. Bit by bit, and item by item is how the gift will be revealed, both particularly to each individual and to the Church universally. "In the gradual opening of the mystery of redemption in Christ does consist the unsearchable wisdom of God, which will continually reveal new and fresh things to the worthy seeker."

I will concentrate next primarily on the Government of the Kingdom of God on earth, and the restoration in certain areas. When Jesus said: "Elijah indeed shall come, and restore all things," He meant everything. "All things" include the earth and its fullness, land, rivers, lakes, oceans, buildings, animals, birds, the air we breath, our system of living, etc. Included in the earth is the government of the earth. When the prophet Isaiah said: "A Child is born to us, a Son is given to us, and the government is upon His shoulder" (Is 9:6), the meaning is clear and simple. The government of God is upon the shoulder of Christ, and all power in Heaven and earth has been given to Him (Mt 28:18), and in turn this authority has been given to His disciples (Apoc 2:26), and they shall, under His direction, execute His judgements in the earth (Ps 149:9). Since this authority is given, and since Elijah must come to restore all things, then one of the first things to be corrected in the "restoration" is the government in the world. By the 'government on his shoulder' is meant that we have to carry it, pulling and pushing and putting our shoulder to the work at hand.

Included in the world government is such areas as social, law, justice, economics etc. Man has corrupted the entire systems of all he has touched because he has not been faithful to God. To understand what God means by the "restoration of all things" it is necessary to understand what He gave to us in the first place.

When He created the earth, He furnished it with beautiful plants, rivers, animals, fish and birds. He made man and placed him in the Garden. God gave Adam authority over all which He had created (Gn 1:28). Adam was totally centered on God, and the Creator was his God. Adam was obedient to, and was God centered. After some time God gave man the beautiful gift of woman, "a help like unto himself" (Gn 2:18). So man and woman were made in the image of God. God does not go back

on His word and gave to man full authority over His earth.

Eve disobeyed God and joined Satan in his rebellion. In participating in the feast of the forbidden fruit, Adam consummated Eve's disobedience to God and handed over the earth to Satan (Gn 3:6). God gave the earth free and clear with no sin, no contamination, no pollution, no debt, and no mortgage to Adam. Adam gave the earth to Satan, now it had sin, contamination and pollution, but it had no financial debt and no mortgage. The world was no longer in an immaculate state but in a state in need of restoration. When our Lord asked Adam for an accounting of his actions, he blamed Eve, she blamed the serpent, and no one asked for forgiveness (Gn 3:12,13). I wonder what would have happened if Adam in the first place had prayed for discernment in taking a decision which contradicted the order from God? (Gn 2:17). I further wonder what would have happened if Adam would have asked for pardon! But it seems that he did neither. Instead he accused.

Satan had received man in bondage to himself, thus completing his first arrogance of refusing to serve man. He said man would serve him. By disobeying God, Adam gave authority to Satan over all which God had given to man, including his family. Satan then set about enslaving the entire world in his darkness and wickedness. Selfishness was the first sin he had fallen man commit. Then came jealousy, followed by murder, and after that man fell deeper and deeper into the valley of death (Gn 4).

One of the priorities on the Satanic list for destruction after the family was the economic system. He created unjust weights, scales and balances. Gold and silver was established by God as a means of monetary communication (Gift of Morning Star, p. 33). This procedure was too honest, too restrictive for the devious. After having been given the means to measure in an honest way the precious metals, fallen man had to resort to another Satanic scheme called "floating currencies." This was the height and arrogance of greedy man making unjust weights, scales and balances for his complete control of the innocent. In 1971 the United States abandoned God's gold standard system and accepted Satan's floating paper money scheme. This plan is dependent upon the truthfulness of fallen greedy man in his obsession for power! "A kingdom is translated from one people to another, because of injustices, and wrongs, and injuries, and divers deceits" (Si 10:8). Lying

presidents, kings, prime ministers, rulers, are now the norm, their truthfulness or lack of it is discovered.

To go about the correction of all things which were in error and which would be made error, God sent His only begotten Son Jesus Christ to redeem man from his sin. Only Jesus could redeem us from sin. During His 33 years on earth Jesus gave man the outlines of the Kingdom of God. Man with the help of Jesus Christ is to take back from Satan all that has been stolen. For this great gift we give "thanks to God and the Father, Who has made us worthy to be partakers of the lot of the saints in light; Who has delivered us from the power of darkness, and has translated us into the Kingdom of the Son of His love, in Whom we have redemption, the remission of sins. Who is the image of the invisible God, the firstborn of every creature: for in Him were created all things in Heaven and on earth, visible, and invisible, whether Thrones, or Dominations, or Principalities, or Powers, all things were created by Him, and in Him: and He is before all, and by Him all things consist. And He is the head of the body, the Church; Who is the beginning, the firstborn from the dead: that in all things He may have primacy: because in Him it has well pleased the Father, that all fullness should dwell: and through Him to reconcile all things unto Himself, making peace through the Blood of His Cross, both as to the things on earth, and the things that are in Heaven" (Col 1:12-20). In Jesus was created all things, and this includes the system of government, with all it's various parts like economics and justice etc. So when our Lord says that there will be a restitution of all things, He means "all things" in Heaven and on earth. He has His people ready to accomplish His will. The Old Testament concludes with the verses, "Behold I will send you Elijah the prophet, before the coming of the great and dreadful day of the Lord. And he shall turn the heart of fathers to the children, and the heart of the children to their fathers" (Mal 4:5,6). This is the return of the family. This turning of children's hearts to fathers includes not just the paternal families, but also the parishioners to their pastors, pastors to their bishops, bishops to their Pope, all to God our Father. Of Elijah it is also said: "He was taken up in a whirlwind of fire, in a chariot of fiery horses. Who is registered in the judgements of times to appease the wrath of the Lord, to reconcile the heart of the father to the son, to restore the tribes of Jacob" (Si 48:9,10). Since Elijah is to come, so also is the other man who did not die, Enoch (Gn 5:24). "No man was born upon earth like Enoch: for he also was taken up from the earth...(and he) pleased God, and was translated into Paradise, that he may give repentance to the nations" (Si 44:16; 49:16). Both men in Paradise have been especially prepared by Jesus for the final restoration.

I see the arrival of Enoch and Elijah in the not too distant future. They will arrive at about the same time as the Antichrist, because they will prophesy for 1260 days (Apoc 11:3), and Antichrist will rule for 1290 days (Dn 12:11). It is an understanding that the Antichrist will martyr them in either Rome or Jerusalem when they have finished this part of their mission (Apoc 11:7).

In the accomplishing of His will, Enoch and Elijah will set up the physical Kingdom of God upon earth: "In the days of those kingdoms the God of Heaven will set up a Kingdom that shall never be destroyed, and His Kingdom shall not be delivered up to another people, and it shall break in pieces, and shall consume all these kingdoms, and itself shall stand for ever" (Dn 2:44). Those 'kingdoms' are the United Nations, the evil kingdom of Zion, which is opposed to the Kingdom of God. The intent of the UN is the 'iron fist' of the New World Order. Since the rule of the UN is gradually spreading across the entire earth and inserting its force, then this is what the Kingdom of God "will break in pieces." The Zionist New World Order may be best described as the order from Satan to the UN to rule by tyranny. The titles New World Order, and United Nations, the One World Government, and the kingdom of Zion are synonymous.

Through Christ the enemies of righteousness will be destroyed: "And His zeal will take armor, and He will arm the creature for the revenge of His enemies. He will put on justice as a breastplate, and will take true judgment instead of a helmet. He will take equity for an invincible shield. And He will sharpen His severe wrath for a spear, and the whole world shall fight with Him, against the unwise" (Ws 5:18-21). All the people who do not acknowledge God will be destroyed, but the children of the Most High will rejoice in the victory: "Moreover when the nations had conspired together to consent to wickedness, she (wisdom) knew the just, and preserved him (the just) without blame to God, and kept him strong against the compassion for his son" (Ws 10:5). The plan of the man of iniquity is already far advanced in the UN. The

introduction of the new credit/debit card is the precursor for an implanted microchip card which will control all the financial activities of everyone in the world, as we saw earlier. Additionally, whoever has the microchip will be easily traced as to their precise location and friends. Those who do not have the microchip will be incarcerated for lack of identity and for lack of respect to the Antichrist. The rulers of the nations of the world do not see any interference to their goal. The Bible states that they will be overthrown, but arrogance cannot listen to Truth. Jesus Christ is Truth.

The arrival of the two faithful witnesses also coincides with the time when God shall appoint special leaders upon the earth. They will receive a Divine Commission to complete the Master Plan of God: "They that are far off shall come and shall build in the temple of the Lord" (Zc 6:15). Under the direction of Enoch and Elijah they shall operate from special places within the Kingdom of God on earth. The plan of God will be successful in them: "For it is God that works in you both to will and to accomplish, according to His good will" (Phil 2:13). Although the identity of those who have received the Divine Commission is not now known, they shall be seen as it were as coming out of the wilderness all of a sudden. A good number have already received their commission, but cannot move on it until they are given the marching orders by the Commander of the Armies of Heaven. These are they who will have received instructions from Jesus Himself: "they that are learned shall shine as the brightness of the firmament; and they that instruct many to justice, as stars for all eternity" (Dn 12:3).

The 1619 prophecy states that "Christ will literally appear to some chosen vessels to bring into the Promised Land the full, new creation state." Where do the learned get their instruction from? None other than from Jesus Himself. The numbers will multiply and propagate universally, against whom Satan will make and intensify war continually: "But a prophet and a most prophetical generation will the Most High God raise up who shall deliver His people by force of spiritual arms, for which there must be raised up certain head powers to bear the first office, who are persons in favor with God (*True Devotion to Mary, p. 26f*), whose dread and fear shall fall upon all nations, visible and invisible, because of the mighty acting power of the Holy Spirit

which shall rest upon them." The spiritual arms is Divine power, and authority, acting in these people which is the mystery and the simplicity of this operation. This Divine power is God living in man, and man in God in the fulness of Eucharistic unity and oneness, that is the new creature, the new man, Eucharistic man.

The 1619 prophecy states that "Egypt doth figure in this servile creation under which Abraham's seed does groan." Part of Satan's army is the UN. In September 1994 the UN held the World Population summit in Cairo, at the same time the secretary General of the UN was an Egyptian, the Freemasons use Egyptian symbols, and finally the US dollar bill has the pyramid depicted on it. All these symbols have one thing in common - Egypt. Creation is groaning under the yoke of unfair taxation which is imposed on the people to pay for the oppression to be imposed even further upon them. The UN is planning fines (taxes) on nations for environment violations, trade violations and others. All this in addition to the over-taxation already imposed. Their plans are soon to be defeated because God "has rescued us from the power of darkness and transferred us into the Kingdom of His Beloved Son" (Col 1:13).

The Divine Assistance

Taking control of the entire world can only be done through the mighty power of God, by force of spiritual arms.

In this final great conflict Heaven will be joined to earth. The angels will assist man in this battle: "At that time shall Michael rise up, the great prince, who stands for the children of your people; and a time shall come as never was from the time that nations began even until that time" (Dn 12:1).

It is going to be some battle! Whatever has happened in the preceding history of humanity cannot compare to what is happening now, or to what will happen in the near future. Angels have been our helpers and warriors from the creation of man: "It came to pass that through the whole city of Jerusalem for the space of forty days there were seen horsemen running in the air, in gilded raiment, and armed with spears, like bands of soldiers" (2M 5:2). God's people will be protected in a mighty way: "But when they were in the heat of the engagement there appeared to the enemies from Heaven five men upon horses, comely with golden bridles, conducting the Jews: two of whom took Machabeus between them, and covered him on every side with their

arms, and kept him safe: but cast darts and fireballs against the enemy, so that they fell down, being confounded with blindness, and filled with trouble" (2M 10:29,30). Yes, I suppose if I saw a few angels protecting my enemy and throwing darts at me I too would be filled with more than trouble!

In this warfare, Eucharistic man is the vanguard for the Heavenly armies. He is the spearhead, and the armies are that in Heaven cannot and will not come to this particular battle on the earth until Eucharistic man is in place. The reason for this is quite simple: since man gave Satan control over himself and the earth, then man in Eucharistic unity in Christ Jesus, must take the earth and all therein back from Satan. Eucharistic man renders to Caesar the things that are Caesar's (Mk 12:17), he attacks and destroys the synagogue of Satan, pulls down all his ramparts and strongholds, where he dwells (Apoc 2:9,13), and pours darkness upon the seat of his power (Apoc 16:10). In the power and authority of Eucharistic man, he renders to God the things that are God's. He takes back all the kingdoms of the world, and the power and the glory of them, which were given to the devil by Adam and Eve (Lk 4:6), and restore them all to our God and Father (1Co 15:24). This final battle they will be even more terrible than we can imagine: "For then there will be great tribulation, such as has not been from the beginning of the world until now" (Mt 24:21). In addition to the assistance from the angels, there will also be "many of those who sleep in the dust of the earth" (Dn 12:2), some to help us, some to fight against us as we saw earlier.

The lineup is impressive! Enormous! The battle is more than we can imagine. God is sparing nothing, no thing, in this war. All of created eternity will participate, with the exception of those souls in Purgatory, a few souls who are already in Heaven, and those demons who have been recently bound and sent back to hell for all eternity. This should give us an idea of how terrible it is going to be. When we think about it we are unable to comprehend the immensity of what is to happen. Part of the plan will be the amassing of economic wealth taken from the economic collapse. This is quite a simple but extraordinary event. Satan may be compared to Caesar, so that when Jesus said: "Render therefore to Caesar the things that are Caesar's, and to God the things that are God's" (Mt 22:21), this thing will be fulfilled to the last iota. The world

must render to God the things that belong to God, the earth and the fullness thereof. The simplicity of the plan is fantastic. The world has rejected the economic standard established by God and accepted the deviousness of Satan. O.K. then have it your way says the Lord. Through the miraculous power of God, the faithful servants will be given "hidden treasures, and the concealed riches of secret places" (Is 45:3), so that they will bring the downfall of Babylon. The rulers of the darkness of this world will receive their paper floating money in exchange for the hard assets of the earth. Darkness will have the paper float in which they have put their questionable faith and trust, and in exchange, they will have given to God's people the title to all the material things of this earth. The floating currency, built on quicksand, will be given in exchange for the gold standard system set by God. Thus Caesar will render to God. The simplicity of the plan of the Creator: "And they marveled at Him!" (Mk 12:17). Since scripture says: "All things obey money" (Ec 10:19), then the present rulers of darkness must give way to righteousness. Why did they marvel at him? Because here was a prophecy which is now ready to be fulfilled. Rendering to God the things that are God's. The amassing of economic wealth taken from the economic collapse, and rendering to Satan his phoney money, 'the floating currency.' "Go to now, ye rich men: weep and howl in your miseries, which shall come upon you. Your riches are corrupted: and your garments are moth-eaten. Your gold and silver is cankered: and the rust of them shall be for a testimony against you and shall eat your flesh like fire. You have stored up to yourselves wrath against the last days" (Jm 5:1-3).

When Jesus comes to take the earth and deliver it to our Father, it must be free and clear of all encumbrances. No debt, no mortgage, and everything must be in the name of the authority which He has given to us, namely Morning Star (Apoc 2:28).

The True Authority

The 1619 prophecy goes on to state: "The birth of this Virgin Church was typified by John's vision where the Great Wonder appeared in Heaven, bringing forth the first-born that was caught up to the Throne of God (or identified with the authority of the Throne of God). For, as a virgin woman brought forth Christ after the flesh, so shall the first-born bring forth the Virgin Church after the Spirit, Who shall be endowed

with the seven spirits of God. This Church so brought forth and sealed with the mark of Divine Authority (the full stature of Jesus), will have no bonds of impositions; but the holy unction and anointing among these new born spirits will be all in all. There is not this day (the year 1619) visible up on the earth such a church. All profession has been found light when weighed in the balances. Therefore, they are all rejected by the supreme Judge, which rejection will be for this cause that out of them may come a new and perfect, glorious Church. Then the glory of God and the Lamb shall so rest upon this typical tabernacle that it shall be called the Tabernacle of Wisdom.

Before the Ark of Testimony {The Ark of the Covenant} (2M 2:4-7), shall be opened before the end of the age, the Living Testimony (Christ's Body), herein contained, shall be unsealed. The Presence of the Divine Ark (Eucharistic man, that is Jesus in man, man in Jesus in Eucharistic oneness) will constitute the life of this Virgin Church. Wherever the Body is, there must be, of necessity, the Divine Ark (Eucharistic man). Along with the unsealing of the Living Testimony (Eucharistic man), with the Ark of God (Holy Eucharist), must begin the promulgation of the everlasting gospel of the Kingdom. The proclamation of this Testimony (Eucharistic man) will be as a sounding of a trumpet to alarm the nations and peoples of professed Christendom. There shall be authority given by Christ to the putting to an end all controversy concerning the True Church that is born of the New Jerusalem mother. His decision will be the actual sealing of the Body of Christ with the Name of God, giving them commission to act by the same authority. This new Name (Eucharistic man) will distinguish them from the 7,000 names of Babylon (the multiplication of so called 'Christian' Churches). The election and preparation of this Virgin Church is to be after a secret and hidden manner even as David. in his ministry, was chosen and anointed by the prophet of the Lord, yet was not admitted to the outward profession of the kingdom for a considerable time afterward. The stem of David, a Virgin Church which has known nothing of man or human constitution is to be born. It will require some time for it to get out of the minority and arrive at the full, mature age."

These firstborn are those referred to earlier who will have been awakened from "the dust of the earth."

The Great Apostasy

The final schism follows the great apostasy. The False Prophet (Apoc 19:20), is a Zionist Jew who is also the Anti-Pope, and will lead the world to the Antichrist. The Antichrist who is a Zionist Jew will become leader of the world (Gog and his army Magog, through the UN), assisted by the False Prophet.

"Wherefore, the spirit of David shall revive in the Church, and especially in some elect members of it, as the blossoming root. These will have authority and power given to them to overcome the dragon and his angels even as David overcame the Philistine army. I see this as the beginning few Eucharistic man, who will gradually increase to the number of 144,000. It will be these who will be the ministers of the greatest evangelization in the history of creation, for they will accomplish their mission in a very short period of time.

The Final Trial

But none shall stand under God but those who have become tried stones after the pattern and similitude of Christ. This will be a fiery trial through which only a few will be able to pass or bear up in it. Whereby the waiters for this visible breaking forth are strictly charged to hold fast and wait together in pure love. These trials will be of absolute necessity for the clearing away of all remaining infirmities of the natural mind and the burning of all wood, hay and stubble, for nothing must remain in the fire, for as a refiner shall He purify the sons of the Kingdom.

There will be some who will be fully redeemed, being clothed upon with a priestly garment after the order of Melchizedek. This will qualify them for governing authority. Therefore, it is required on their part to suffer the spirit of burning and fanning of the fiery breath, searching every part within, until they arrive at a fixed body, from whence the wonders of God will flow out.

Upon this body will be the fixation of urim and thummin (Hebrew words meaning Doctrine and Truth, and illuminations and perfections) that is the portion of the Melchizedek priesthood whose descent is not counted in the genealogy which is the new creation. Hence, these priests will have a deep, inward search and Divine insight into the secret things of deity. They will be able to prophesy in a clear ground, not darkly or enigmatically, for they will know what is couched in the

first originality of all beings in the eternal ante-type of nature. They will be able to bring them forth according to Divine counsel and ordination."

This is the 144,000 referred to above, and their training and instructions will be extremely trying and difficult. It will be for them a time in which they have to die to the world, die to self, and be renewed in spirit and truth: "If so be that you have heard Him and have been taught in Him, as the truth is in Jesus: to put off, according to former conversation, the old man, who is corrupted according to the desire of error, and be renewed in spirit of your mind: and put on the new man, who according to God is created in justice and holiness of truth" (Ep 4:21-24). It is this new man, beginning with the 144,000 who will lead all mankind back to Jesus, in truth and in righteousness.

The Time of the End

"The Lord swears in truth and righteousness that from Abraham's line, according to the Spirit, there shall arise a holy seed, produced and manifested in the last age. The mighty spirit of Cyrus is appointed to lay the foundation of this third temple and support it in building. There are characteristics and marks whereby the pure virgin Church shall be known and distinguished from all others that are low, false and counterfeit."

Some events which will signal the time of the end should be noted. The Ark of the Covenant will be recovered and made known to the world. Whether it will be made known immediately it is brought out of Mount Nebo or later is not evident at this time.

According to prophecies given to four young children who had received messages and apparitions from our Blessed Mother and Saint Michael during the years 1962 to 1965 (the same time as the Vatican II Council was in session), a "Permanent Sign" will occur at Garabandal in Northern Spain before the end of the world.

There are three time frames mentioned in Holy Writ:

1260 days (Apoc 12:6). "The woman fled into the wilderness, where she had a place prepared by God, that there they should feed her, a thousand two hundred sixty days." This is the time of the Great tribulation 1290 days (Dn 12:11). "And from the time when the continual sacrifice shall be taken away, and the abomination unto desolation shall be set up, there shall be a thousand two hundred ninety

days." This is the time of the great Evangelization.

1335 days (Dn 12:13). "Blessed is he that waits, and comes unto a thousand three hundred thirty-five days." This is the time of the horrible reign of Satan in person before he is cast into hell for all eternity. The martyrdom of Enoch and Elijah after they have been witnessing for 1260 days (Apoc 11:3). After lying in full view of television cameras for three and a half days their bodies will come to life and they will ascend up to Heaven in full view of the world (Apoc 11:10). This will cause the final Great Evangelization for 30 days (difference between 1290 and 1260) bringing us to the time of the 1290th day.

"There must be a manifestation of the Spirit to edify and raise up this Church, whereby bringing Heaven down upon earth and representing here the New Jerusalem State, in order to which spirits are thus begotten and born of God and ascending to the New Jerusalem above, where their Head in majesty doth reign. None but those who have ascended and received His glory can descend (condescend) and communicate the same, being thereby His representatives upon earth and subordinate priests under Him now. He (Jesus) has ascended and become glorified, has made Himself, as it were our debtor. Consequently, He will not be lacking in qualifying and furnishing

certain high and principal agents or instruments who shall be most humble and as little regarded as David was, whom He will dignify with honor and priestly sovereignty for drawing to them the scattered flocks and gathering them into one fold out of all the nations."

At the end of this time will come the death of Antichrist and the False Prophet. They will be killed at about the 1290th day and their death brings Satan himself in person to the earth to conclude his terror. His time will be shortened to 45 days (Mt 24:22), difference between 1335 and 1290, after which time he will be sealed in Hell for all eternity (Apoc 20:10).

Satan's head will be crushed by Our Blessed Mother's heel (Gn 3:15), that is by her little children who believed in her messages, and who stand firm at the end of time in he Great Tribulation.

We had previously referred above that "another Angel (3rd Pope called Petrus Romanus), came out from the altar, he who had power over fire, and he cried with a loud voice to him that had the sharp sickle, saying: "Thrust in thy sharp sickle, and gather the clusters of the vineyard of

the earth; because the grapes thereof are ripe." This Pope has power over the fire and so I believe he is the one who will seal the pit of the abyss: "There came down fire from God out of Heaven, and devoured them: and the devil who seduced them, was cast into the pool of fire and brimstone, where both the beast and the False Prophet shall be tormented day and night for ever and ever" (Apoc 20:9,10). It is interesting to note that it is written of the False Prophet: "And he did great signs, so that he made ALSO fire to come down from heaven unto the earth, in the sight of men" (Apoc 13:13).

The end of the rulers of darkness in the world who would not accept Jesus as Lord and Savior will be terrible: "But as for those My enemies, who would not have Me reign over them, bring them hither and kill them before Me" (Lk 19:27).

Let us look at some of the other religions of the world and see what they may be prone to do as they experience all the events happening around them.

Judaism. It is during the Great Evangelization that we will see the final conversion of the Jews: "For the children of Israel shall sit many days without king, and without prince, and without sacrifice, and without altar, and without ephod, and without theraphim. And after this the children of Israel shall return and shall seek the Lord, their God, and David, their king: and they shall fear the Lord, and His goodness, in the last days" (Lk 19:27). Saint Paul takes up this thought and says: "A partial blindness only has befallen Israel until the full number of the Gentiles should enter, and thus all Israel shall be saved" (Rm 11:25). It will be difficult for them to accept that Judaism is fulfilled in Christianity, and that Christianity is fulfilled in Eucharistedness. They will come directly into Eucharistic man.

Islam (al-Islam), a word which indicates submission to God. Many sects of Muslims Sunnis, Shiites; Ismalites; Nusayrites; Kharijites; Ibadites, all seek a union with God as their goal, and proclaim "I am the Truth." They all wait for the Messiah, whom they proclaim as the man of all wisdom and knowledge and power, and even call His Name Jesus (Issa in Arabic). They deny that Jesus Christ is THE Prophet, The Messiah, and that He did not resurrect from the dead. A number will be converted when they see the events to take place.

Buddhism denies a personal world-creator. It denies that there is an

immortal soul, but affirms that there is personal continuity from life to life through reincarnation. All kinds of Buddhists are agreed that the supreme goal is Enlightenment. A very few will be converted.

Zen is a Chinese-Japanese branch of Maha yana Buddhism, and in their view, Zen's form of Buddhism is a natural development to 'Look within, you are the Buddha.' Zen encourages the people to 'see into one's own nature.' Few converts.

'Hindu' is a Persian word and it means simply 'Indian' - meaning the 'eternal dharma' which is the very stuff of Nature and the Divine as the Hindus see them - perpetual change seen against a changeless and timeless background. There will be a fair number of converts from here. I state that the conversion of the different religions of the world is only speculation on my part. I wish that all would convert, and in the Prayer for the Healing of the Nations (*Appendix 3*), I pray as stated: "As Jesus called His friend Lazarus out of the tomb, where he lay dead, stinking, and bound, so too He calls those who are bound with the word of faithless man, to come forth out of the tomb" (Jn 11:39-44). All things are possible with God! (Mk 10:27).

Chapter 10 The Arrival of Morning Star

Morning Star is Eucharistic man. Morning Star prepares the way for the arrival of the Bright and Morning Star - Christ Jesus. As the morning star announces the arrival of a new day, so too, Eucharistic man, Morning Star, announces the arrival of the great day of the Lord. This phenomenal gift is given to us by Jesus Christ at the moment of His Resurrection from the dead, when His Divine Nature 'Christ' took preeminence over His human nature 'Jesus,' and His Name was changed from Jesus Christ to Christ Jesus, the New Man. So very few accept, believe, or strive to enter into this gift of Eucharistic man, to enter into the unity offered to us by "Jesus, the root and stock of David, the Bright and Morning Star" (Apoc 22:16).

How does this event come about? If we look for a moment at the history of God, His care and protection for His people and His creation, we will readily understand the gradual arrival of His 'morning stars' on earth. Every human being that was ever created was in the heart of God the Father from all eternity (Ps 109:3), and so He asks us: "Where were you when I laid the foundations of the earth...when the morning stars praised Me together, and all the sons of God made a joyful melody?" (Jb 38:4,7).

In the beginning He made man to His own image (Gn 1:27), and gave them *(male and female)* the beautiful grace filled garment of the original justice of God. The original state of man in the Garden of Eden therefore, was a glorified state made in the image of God.

Man fell from this grace through original sin and consequently the newgrace filled garment of original justice was rejected by Adam and Eve of their own free will. The loss of the garment of original justice to the first parents was lost to all mankind and was replaced by Satan's sin and death, and remained so until the coming of our Redeemer, Jesus Christ.

Man clothed himself in an 'old garment' of disobedience and self justification, and this old garment is the old man enslaved to the sin and death of Satan. Adam was expelled from the Garden of Eden, which was the first heaven: "The Lord sent him out of the Paradise of Pleasure...and placed before the Paradise of Pleasure Cherubims, and a

flaming sword, turning every way, to keep the way of the Tree of Life" (Gn 3:23,24). This 'Tree of Life' is Jesus Eucharist, the Bright and Morning Star. The 'flaming sword, turning every way' is the Ten Commandments and the Seven Sacraments of the Church, which together are the only way to Jesus, and consequently to the Father (Jn 14:6).

Jesus came to destroy sin and death, to make all things new, and to restore all things in Himself. He gave us a choice between the old garment of sin and death, or the new grace-filled garment of original Justice. Jesus said to the Baptist: "It becomes us to fulfil all justice" (Mt 3:15). Jesus gave the original Justice 'method' or 'way' to Saint Peter and his successors, that is, He gave to us the Keys to the Kingdom of Heaven as stated above, the Kingdom built on the faith of God (Mk 11:22), and not on the will of man. He gave us His Church with Himself as Head, leaving the care of His Church to faith-filled man, so that when He comes again He: "might present it to Himself a Glorious Church, not having spot or wrinkle, or any such thing, but that it should be holy and immaculate" (Ep 5:27).

The Church, the one, true, holy, catholic, and apostolic Church, was placed in the care of Saint Peter. Throughout the ages, some of the successors of that great Apostle have been less than 'one with God,' less than faith-filled, less than true to their calling, less than holy in their duties, less than catholic or universal in their commitment to the Gospel of Christ, and less than attentive to their apostolic vocation. Saint Paul saw that the church of his day was fractured among many special interest groups, who, for example, wanted circumcision, or special scriptures based on Jewish laws, or claims to notoriety for being baptized, or friends with the various church leaders, and so he proclaimed to the faithful followers: "I have espoused you to one Husband, that I may present you as a chaste virgin to Christ" (2Co 11:2). This 'chaste virgin' is the 'Glorious Church, not having spot or wrinkle, or any such thing, but that it should be holy and immaculate,' and it must of necessity be 'eternal,' and 'virgin,' and in Christ Jesus it must be 'Eucharistic' and it must have known nothing of man's interference. When we put these necessary attributes together, we have the "Eternal Virgin Eucharistic Church." It has been prophesied by Daniel as: "the stone was cut out of a mountain without hands, and it

struck the statue upon the feet thereof that were of iron and clay, and broke them in pieces" (Dn 2:34). Man's will is not the architect which designed and built the Church, but God Himself.

If we return for a moment to the history of the beginning of man on the earth, we find that Cain exasperated his sin of envy, and having seen that the just Abel sacrificed of the firstlings of his flock to God (Gn 4:4), which sacrifice was pleasing to God, Cain murdered his brother Abel, went away from the face of the Lord and set up the 'city of man' east of Eden (Gn 4:16), to oppose the City of God just outside of Eden. Here in this act, there is a permanent division between the faith-filled 'sons of God,' and the faith-less 'sons of man.' For a brief moment, the 'sons of God' pursued the beauty of God's creation, and there were now two 'cities,' the 'city of God,' and the 'city of man.'

It was the faithful 'sons of God,' who did not follow the 'sons of man,' and so we see Enosh, grandson of Adam, with solemnity and worship, calling upon the Name of the Lord (Gn 4:26), in the first recorded 'church' congregation. However it is written that later, the 'sons of God' were enticed to the lures of the world, and turned away from God: "After that men began to be multiplied upon the earth, and daughters were born to them, the sons of God seeing the daughters of men, that they were fair, took to themselves wives of all which they chose. And God said: 'My spirit shall not remain in man for ever, because he is flesh, and his days shall be a hundred and twenty years'" (Gn 6:1-3). At that time, in all of His creation, God found only one believing family and it was through this faithful family of Noah, that God saved creation from extinction" (Gn 6:8,9,18,22; 7:1,16). After the Flood, man again separated into 'sons of God, and 'sons of man,' but only for a very short span of time.

As we move on very briefly in history, the Patriarch Abraham believed God, and laying the wood upon the shoulders of his son Isaac, was willing to sacrifice his son to God. However, it was God Who provided the sacrifice of the sheep bound in thorns (Gn 22:2-13), which was a prophesy of Jesus crowned with thorns, carrying His own wood, for man's salvation.

Again in a preview of the Sacrifice of the Last Supper of the transubstantiation of bread and wine into the Body and Blood of our Savior, and also of His Passion and Death, Abraham participated in the

holy sacrifice of bread and wine which the high-priest Melchizedek offered unto God (Gn 14:18), and in faith, Abraham also prepared the way for Moses (Gn 15:18). Moses, in Judaism, brought us the Law and the sacrifices, celebrated the Pasch of the Lord (Ex 12:11), which was a prefiguring of the perfect sacrifice of Jesus, Son of God. In the miracle of the Red Sea, Moses showed a prefiguring of Baptism (Gn 14:27-30). Moses also prophesied the coming of the Messiah (Dt 18:15), and so the Law and the Prophets foretold the arrival of Jesus, the Christ (Lk 24:44).

Jesus Christ came and bearing the Crown of Thorns and His own Cross of wood (Jn 19:5,17), offered Himself for the salvation and redemption of mankind. The Lamb of God gave us Himself in Holy Sacrifice (Lk 22:20), and showed us the way to God our Father (Jn 14:6). Jesus, the Messiah, the Christ, fulfilled the promise of Judaism in Christianity. Without doubt, Christianity is the fulfillment of Judaism. Jesus is the total and perfect sacrifice, doing away with the sacrifice of animals and birds. Remember that God killed the first sacrifice to cloth Adam and Eve, so now He allows the sacrifice His own Son, Who is the Second Person of the Holy Trinity, in order that all of creation could be returned to the Creator. The animal and human sacrifices are completed in the Son of God. The Jews could no longer sacrifice their birds and animals in the Temple according to the Law, because it was totally destroyed as Jesus had foretold (Mt 24:2). To we who believe in Jesus Christ, He destroyed sin by the sacrifice of Himself in His passion and ignominious death on the Cross. For those who refuse to believe in Jesus Christ and His gift of Redemption, Hell awaits them for their eternity.

The moment Jesus Christ rose from the dead, He was no longer Jesus Christ, He was now Christ Jesus - the New Man - Eucharistic Man. His Divinity 'Christ' took precedence over His humanity 'Jesus' as we saw earlier. The moment of His Resurrection, is the moment when Holy Eucharist is born, that is the New Man to which we are called. Because of the supreme and perfect sacrifice of Jesus, we are all called to be more than Christians, we are called to be 'sons of God,' by entering into Eucharistic union in God. This Eucharistic unity can only be attained through the valid reception of Holy Eucharist. This unity is called Eucharistic man, the new creation, the new man: "For if we have

been planted together in the likeness of His death, we shall be also in the likeness of His resurrection. Knowing this, that our old man is crucified with Him, that the body of sin may be destroyed, to the end that we may serve sin no longer, for he that is dead is justified from sin. Now, if we be dead with Christ, we believe that we shall live also together with Christ, knowing that Christ, rising again from the dead, dies now no more, death shall no more have dominion over Him. For in that He died to sin, He died once, but in that He lives, He lives unto God. So do you also reckon that you are dead to sin, but alive unto God, in Christ Jesus our Lord" (Rm 6:5-11). We state this another way, that our old man is the corrupt state which we inherited from Adam, and our redeemed state is our new man given to us by Christ Jesus.

We arrive at this state of the 'new man,' by living the Seven Sacraments. By the continual and valid reception of Holy Eucharist, we gradually become the 'image' as well as the 'likeness' of God, we become His 'new man,' His sons and daughters.

This is when and how God births His generation, as was foretold by the Prophet Isaiah when He said: "Shall not I that make others to bring forth children, Myself bring forth, saith the Lord? Shall I, that give generation to others, be barren, saith the Lord thy God?" (Is 66:5,9). Saint John elaborated on this 'new man,' 'sons of God,' when speaking of Jesus he wrote: "As many as received Him (*Jesus*), He gave them power to be made the sons of God, to them that believe in His Name, who are born, not of blood, nor of the will of the flesh, nor of the will of man, but of God" (Jn 1:12,13). Holy Eucharist is God, our 'burning bush' of today to those who want to believe.

The gift proposed for us was foretold from all eternity when in the womb before the day-star Almighty God begot His Eucharistic children (Ps 109:3), and so Eucharistic man, the brightness of His saints are in the Sacred Heart of Jesus from all eternity, transfigured and revealed now at the end of times.

Eucharistic man has an inward glorified body the same as Jesus, Enoch and Moses showed us at the Transfiguration on Mount Tabor. Eucharistic man has the gift to be one moment here and the next moment elsewhere, that is, he has the ability to bi-locate in many places at the one time. He also has the power to create food (for example) out of nothing. Eucharistic man is the first born of the 144,000. These are

the first ministers of the Great Evangelization.

Almighty God has kept His promise to create a new thing upon the earth, as the Woman (the Church) has compassed the man (Jr 31:22), and through Holy Eucharist, Holy Co-union, Eucharistic man is born of God, he is the son of God. In total and unwavering belief, we receive the Supernatural Grace of God, and by the Baptism, Passion and Cross of Jesus, we believers are transformed into the completion of His glorious Resurrection, in Eucharistic man, Christ Jesus. Therefore this New man, continues in God's new creation, and in all things he grows up in Christ Jesus, Who is the Head (Ep 4:15), he walks in newness of life, in the likeness of the Resurrection of Christ Jesus (Rm 6:4,5), until he then comes to be 'perfect man,' unto the measure of the age of the fulness of Christ (Ep 4:13).

Eucharistic man, the new creature, is in the fulness of the Body of Christ, which is the triumph of the Sacred Heart of Jesus, and the Immaculate Heart of Mary in the world, in the Eucharistic Reign of Christ on earth. Mary, who is the only woman who can call Jesus "Son," is the example for all of us to believe and have Christ Jesus come to live in us in unity. Jesus prayed to the Father: "That they all may be one, as Thou, Father, in Me, and I in Thee; that they also may be one in Us" (Jn 17:21). Saint Paul elaborates this triumph of the two hearts when he writes: "But yet neither is the man without the woman, nor the woman without the man, in the Lord. For as the woman is of the man, so also is the man by the woman, but all things of God" (1Co 11:11,12).

In order to arrive at this new state, Eucharistic man, the new man, there is a sacrifice which we must make, and that is to die to the world and all it's concupiscenses. In this act we fill up those things that are wanting of the sufferings of Christ, in our flesh, for His Body, which is the Church (Col 1:24). By receiving Jesus Eucharist, we become one in Him. He said: "Who is My mother and My brethren? And looking round about on them who sat about Him, He said: Behold My mother and My brethren. For whosoever shall do the will of God, he is My brother, and My sister, and mother" (Mk 3:33-35). Eucharistic man does the Will of God, and His Will is done on earth a it is in Heaven, thus completing the prayer Jesus taught us, known as 'The Lord's Prayer (Mt 6:10).

The Seven Sacraments

We come into the new state of Eucharistic man only by using the Keys to the Kingdom, and these are the Seven Sacraments of the Church. The true Christian is one who believes, and lives, the Seven Sacraments, namely: Baptism, Confessions, Holy Eucharist, Confirmation, Matrimony, Holy Orders, and Extreme Unction.

The Seven Sacraments were more than just symbols to early Christians: "Let a man so account of us as the ministers of Christ, and the dispensers of the mysteries of God" (1 Co 4:1). The Seven Sacraments are the Seven Spirits of God, and all has a purpose and all has a meaning.

In **Baptism** we are born again. After Baptism, the next necessary step is the Holy Sacrament of Confessions. Many people are accepting the notion that Confessions to a priest is nonsense. I assure you that the Sacrament of Confessions is of absolute necessity in advancing in Jesus. For those people who say that they confess only and directly to God are in denial of the verse: "Confess therefore your sins one to another" (Jm 5:16).

In **Confessions** God heals the soul which has sinned against Him. **Holy Communion** (Holy Eucharist) is the daily Bread by which the life of the soul is maintained. Jesus said: "I am the Living Bread which came down from Heaven. If any man eat of this Bread, he shall live for ever: and the Bread that I will give is My flesh, for the life of the world" (Jn 6:51,52).

In **Confirmation** we grow up to perfect men in Christ.

Matrimony is the symbol of the unity of man in God.

Holy Order was instituted at the Last Supper, so that the Church may be nourished and governed by those whom God has set over her, may be fed by the Word of Life and with the other six Sacraments. When death is near, **Extreme Unction** comes to remove the last

remnant of infirmity and prepare the soul for final glory. In this 'Highest Anointing' the person is healed physically, or the soul is prepared for judgement.

It is necessary to re-emphasize the meaning and impact of the Seven Sacraments, which are the seven pillars of wisdom, and are the Keys of the Kingdom of Heaven (Mt 16:19).

The first two Sacraments, Baptism and Confessions, are given to us for

our personal preparation in pleasing our Triune God.

The second two Sacraments, Holy Communion and Confirmation, are for our gaining co-union and unity in our God.

The third two Sacraments, Matrimony and Holy Order, are for our perfection and station in life.

The last Sacrament, Extreme Unction, is the final anointing of our eternal unity forever in His Eternal Word.

It is these fulfillment of the Divine Promises that we are able to reestablish all things in Christ as He intended from the beginning. The Seven sacraments assist us in growing perfect in the Seven Cardinal Virtues, which are good works and habits of right conduct, and they are: Faith, Hope, Charity, Prudence Fortitude, Justice, and Temperance. In living the Cardinal virtues, we are better equipped to fight against the seven deadly sins which are: Pride, Lust, Greed, Anger, Sloth, Envy, and Gluttony.

Sometimes we need to reflect on the **Ten Commandments** which God wrote for us in stone, there was no 'erase button.' They are:

The First Commandment: I am the Lord thy God, Who brought thee out of the house of bondage. Thou shalt not have strange gods before Me.

The Second Commandment: Thou shalt not take the Name of the Lord thy God in vain: for the Lord will not hold him guiltless that shall take the Name of the Lord his God in vain.

The Third Commandment: Remember that thou keep holy the Sabbath day. Six days shalt thou labor, and shall do all thy works, but the seventh day is the Sabbath of the Lord thy God: thou shalt do no work on it.

The Fourth Commandment: Honor thy father and thy mother, as the Lord thy God has commanded thee, that thou may live a long time, and it may be well with thee.

The Fifth Commandment: Thou shalt not kill.

The Sixth Commandment: Thou shalt not commit adultery.

The Seventh Commandment: Thou shalt not steal.

The Eighth Commandment: Thou shall not bear false witness against thy neighbor.

The Ninth Commandment: Thou shalt not covet thy neighbor's wife.

The Tenth Commandment: Thou shalt not covet thy neighbor's

goods, nor his field, nor his employees, nor any thing that is his. Almighty God has given us all the keys for entry into His Kingdom, all we have to do is be obedient to His commands and prompts, and so welcome first in our hearts the arrival of Morning Star. It is through Eucharistic man that God re-establishes all things.

Chapter 11 Re-establish All Things

By believing and observing all which Jesus has taught us, we come into the fulness of times, because God has made known to us the Sacrament of His will, which is - to reestablish all things in Christ (Ep 1:9,10), in His glorious and immaculate Eternal Virgin Eucharistic Church. This 'chaste virgin' is as we stated earlier, the stone which was cut out of a mountain without hands, which has known no intervention from man's will or man's ways, but is the way and thought of Almighty God alone. By re-establishing all things, and God means 'all things,' and it is to be believed that He means to re-establish all things 'in His new Garden of Eden,' Paradise re-opened and re-established. In the human mind of today we see this as overwhelming, but with God all things are possible. In an ecclesiastical world locked in fixed principles, rules, laws, ideas and stubbornness, it seems that it is not possible for the ecclesiastical custodians to abandon themselves to total faith in God. It appears that it is not possible for them to 'fix themselves' from within, and so Almighty God has foretold what He would do, has reemphasized what He would do, and now He has done it: 'All things are made new,' as previously stated.

By making all things new, it follows that He will make His Church 'new,' and it follows that He will re-establish His Church in the Glory He intended: "Who is left among you, that saw this house in its first glory, and how do you see it now? Is it not in comparison to that as nothing in your eyes?" (Hg 2:4). This 'new' Church would have to be made without the intervention of man, so the 'new' would be 'a chaste virgin.' We use the title of this new Church: "The Eternal Virgin Eucharistic Church" because 'eternally,' it was conceived in the Heart of God the Father, in the 'virgin' womb of Immaculate Mary, before the creation of the daystar (Ps 109:1-7), that is, before the creation of the heavenly angels and cosmos, and it was brought to completion in the Perfect Sacrifice of Jesus Eucharist, the Head of the Church, the New Creation.

It is in this union in the Eternal Virgin Eucharistic Church that all on earth are united into 'one fold and one shepherd' (Jn 10:16), united in "One Lord, one faith, one baptism, One God and Father of all, Who is

above all, and through all, and in us all" (Ep 4:5,6). It is by the Grace of God that many will believe, and come into His Eternal Virgin Eucharistic Church, which is the Kingdom of God on earth, as it is in Heaven. This is His 'New Terrestrial Paradise,' where Christ Jesus will reign for ever and ever. Those of us who believe this mighty prodigy, can join with the seventh angel who sounded the trumpet, and the great voices in Heaven, in saying: "The Kingdom of this world is become our Lord's and His Christ's, and He shall reign for ever and ever. Amen" (Apoc 11:15). In this spectacular event begins the total restoration, the reestablishing of all things in Christ Jesus.

Because we are redeemed with the precious Blood of Jesus Christ, the Immaculate and undefiled Lamb, the Faithful Witness, the First begotten of the dead, the Prince of the kings of the earth, Who loved us, and washed us from our sins, in His own Blood, and because we believe in Him without wavering, and receive Him in Holy Eucharist, that He makes us a Kingdom, and priests to our God and Father. To Him be glory, and empire, for ever, and ever (Apoc 1:5,6). This 'Kingdom, and priests to our God' is Eucharistic man, the new man, the new creature, and the 'new creation.' We who believe in His Body and Blood, and receive Him worthily by practicing the first two of the Seven Sacraments, are those of the Church Militant on earth, members of the Mystical Body of Christ, who re-establish all things in Christ, and make way for the ransomed to return in glory.

To we who believe and participate in the Holy Sacrifice of the Mass, and receive Jesus worthily by being forgiven our sins in the Holy Sacrament of Confessions, we are in Christ Jesus, the New Creation, Eucharistic man (2Co 5:17), the chosen generation, the kingly priesthood, the holy nation, the purchased people. It is we who declare His virtues, Who has called us out of darkness into His marvelous Light (1P 1:19; 2:9). It is this new creation who re-establish all things in Christ. We also saw the meaning of virtue in the previous chapter. Jesus is the Living Bread which came down from Heaven, for the life of the world. The true believers eat of this Living Bread, and so live for ever. Our Lord Jesus Christ said: "Except you eat the Flesh of the Son of man and drink His Blood, you shall not have life in you. He that eats My Flesh and drinks My Blood has Everlasting Life, and I will raise him up in the last day" (Jn 6:34,51,52,54,55). The true believers in

absolute faith always receive this Bread, and it is through the Body and Blood of our Lord Jesus Christ, that we give praise, glory, and thanks, for this is how we become His new creation, Christ Jesus.

When we receive Jesus, the Living Bread, True Manna from Heaven, He gives Himself to us completely, and remains ever present in us. Our union and unity into complete oneness grows, we in Him, and He in us, reciprocity, transubstantiation taking place as we saw earlier. He has given us power to be made the sons of God, to we who believe in His Name (Jn 1:12). When we become Eucharistic man, all of us are the sons of the Most High (Ps 81:6), and we then know the fulness of the charity of Christ, which surpasses all knowledge, because we are filled unto all the fulness of God (Ep 3:19).

When we are become Eucharistic man, then we will recall what Jesus said: "In that day you shall know that I am in My Father, and you in Me, and I in you" (Jn 14:20), fulfilling the promise given to us of peace, Oneness, and Life Everlasting.

Through Holy Eucharist, we have the Unction (anointing) from the Holy One, and abide in the Son, and in the Father. The Unction, which we have received from Him abides in us, and His Unction teaches us of all things, for we abide in Him, Perfect Man. It is recorded: "This shall be the covenant that I will make with the house of Israel, after those days, saith the Lord: I will give My law in their soul, and I will write it in their heart: and I will be their God, and they shall be My people. And they shall teach no more every man his neighbour, and every man his brother, saying: Know the Lord: for all shall know Me from the least of them even to the greatest, saith the Lord: for I will forgive their iniquity, and I will remember their sin no more" (Jr 31:33,34). When we have received this Divine gift of oneness in God through Holy Eucharist, we rejoice, and our joy is full (1Jn 2:20,24,25,27; 1:4). It is this state of immaculacy to which Jesus has called us, and since He is the head of the Church, for which He delivered Himself, and sanctified it, now He presents it to Himself, a glorious Church, 'not having spot or wrinkle or any such thing, but that it should be holy and immaculate,' as we said before.

Eucharistic man, the new creature, the new man, is the Mystical Body of Christ (1Co 12:27), and though being many, we are one body in Him (Rm 12:5). We are members of His body, of His flesh, and of His bones

(Ep 5:30). He is the Saviour of His body, and we His Church are subject to Him (Ep 5:23,24). For of Him, and by Him, and in Him, are all things, to Him be glory for ever (Rm 11:36).

The Mystical Body includes archangels, angels, and saints in Heaven, who are the Church Triumphant; the souls in Purgatory, who are the Church Suffering; and we on earth who are the Church Militant. It is in this Divine Unity in God that we are called to re-establish all things in Christ. This re-establishing can only be accomplished by His new creature, Eucharistic man, that is the unity of His Divine nature, in our perfected human nature. Eucharistic man is the fulfillment and the desire of Jesus Christ. Eucharistic man is that perfected unity which can only be accomplished in Christ Jesus, the completion of His Resurrection, and this is achieved <u>only</u> through the valid reception Holy Eucharist.

As the fulfillment of Judaism is in Christianity, then there must be a fulfillment of Christianity, and that fulfillment is 'Eucharistic man.' It is imperative for each one of us to pray that we may in all things grow up in Christ Jesus Who is the Head, and walk in newness of life, in the likeness of His Resurrection, and grow to perfect man, and so come unto the measure of the age of the fulness of Christ.

Jesus was offered once to exhaust the sins of many, the second time He appears without sin (*in us*) that is in we who expect Him unto salvation (Hb 9:28). His second coming is in Eucharistic man, in we who believe in His Real Presence, brought about at the Consecration in the Holy Sacrifice of the Mass. We emphasize this as follows:

The first coming was as man, the second coming is in man, and

the third coming is to judge man.

The consecration at the Holy Sacrifice of the Mass, and valid reception by the true believers, completes the resurrection of Jesus Christ, true Eucharist, Eucharistic man: "Buried with Him in baptism, in Whom also you are risen again by the faith of the operation of God, Who has raised Him up from the dead" (Jn 19:30).

This extraordinary and valid reception of Holy Eucharist, fulfills what Jesus said on the Cross: "It is consummated" (Jn 19:30). We are His Human Nature, He is our Divine Nature. As all is brought to perfection, we are restored to the beauty of His Divine Nature and Power, which

Almighty Father God gave us in His Heart from all eternity (2P 1:2,3). The Eternal Virgin Eucharistic Church can rejoice, and give praise together, and exult in glory, and resound with joy, for the Lord God Almighty has comforted His people, He has redeemed Jerusalem -Alleluia! (Is 52:9). Mystically, Jerusalem is the soul, and also the Eucharistic Church is Jerusalem, that is, Justice and Peace. The Eternal Virgin Eucharistic Church thanks Almighty God for His protection, and government throughout the universe (Si 10:4), for uniting all true believers in His Church (Apoc 7:3), for their continued belief in their faith, and faith in their belief. Because all things are made new, (it is done), this Church, has accepted the obligation to walk, keeping the law, fulfilling with honor, the First and Second Testaments (Ac 21:24), bringing to pass that which has been written: "one jot, or one tittle, shall not pass of the law, till all be fulfilled" (Mt 5:18). The New and Eternal Covenant is fulfilled in the Third Testament, which is the Eucharistic Reign of Christ on earth, in the Virgin Eucharistic Church.

Eucharistic man gives praise and glory and honor to Almighty God, for into the hands of His Eucharistic Church, He has placed the keys to the Kingdom of Heaven (Mt 16:19), completing the Mystical Body of Christ, fulfilling the New and Eternal Testament, in the New and Eternal Covenant, which is, God in man, and man in his God, in the fulness of unity, and oneness.

This is the fulfilling of re-establishing all things. But there has to be an orderly way in which this fulfilling is done.

Chapter 12 Christianity Fulfilled

The Keys of the Kingdom were given to Saint Peter because of his faith and trust in Jesus Christ. It was on this 'rock,' the rock of faith, that Jesus built His Church. Saint Peter moved to Rome and set up the administration of the Church, Saint Paul moved there too and helped to establish the spirituality of the Church.

Throughout the centuries there have been many wonderful apostolic Popes carrying on the Apostolic tradition of the two great Apostles. There have been no 'bad popes,' just some popes who did bad things. However, in the latter half of the last (20th) century, the Apostolic tradition gave way to personal agendas, culminating in the horror called the Second Vatican Council (Vatican II).

Before the last of the validly ordained priests who were ordained under the Papacy of Pope Pius XII, died, and valid Masses were being celebrated, Jesus brought to Heaven and ordained a man, outside of the established Church, in the same way as He had brought Saint Paul to Heaven and ordained him outside of the established Church (2Co 12:1-4). The Apostle also elaborates on this: "Paul, an apostle, not of men, neither by man, but by Jesus Christ and God the Father, Who raised Him from the dead...But though we, or an angel from Heaven, preach a gospel to you besides that which we have preached to you, let him be anathema...For I give you to understand, brethren, that the gospel which was preached by me is not according to man, for neither did I receive it of man: nor did I learn it but by the revelation of Jesus Christ" (Ga 1:1,8,11,12).

The ordination carried out in the latter half of the 20th century was not one in competition with the established Roman Catholic Church. No, it was a preparation for the arrival of Morning Star on earth, and in preparation for a place of refuge to which the Church shall flee during the time of the intensity of the Great Tribulation, and the measuring of 'the temple of God and the altar and them that adore therein,' which we addressed earlier, and which shall soon come to pass.

Before the time of the Great Tribulation into which we are now entering, it will be necessary for God to remove the Keys of the Kingdom before the False Prophet and the transgressors who are aligned with him can get them. Jesus will hold them and when all is in place, He will give them to Petrus Romanus. In the parable of the talents Jesus said: "Take ye away therefore the talent from him and give it him that has ten talents. For to every one that has shall be given, and he shall abound: but from him that has not, that also which he seems to have shall be taken away. And the unprofitable servant, cast ye out into the exterior darkness. There shall be weeping and gnashing of teeth" (Mt 25:28-39). We may interpret this as a foretelling of the events to take place during the Tribulation.

The extraordinary ordination is not the establishment of a contrary church, rather it is the renewing of the Catholic Church, the renewing of the face of the earth (Ps 103:30), which then is the 'new and glorious Church' which in itself is part of making 'all things new,' and this 'new Church' is part of 'the new creation, the new man, the new thing.' As Jesus arose from the dead the New Man, so too the Catholic Church after receiving abuse for sinful man, will arise from the dead a New and Wonderful Church. This 'new Church' is the fullness and the newness of the Resurrected Jesus, the 'new man,' Eucharistic man, and this 'new man' bows down in humble adoration to Jesus, the New Covenant, the New Creation, the First Born of all creation in Eucharistic Man (Col 1:15-18).

The event of the Resurrection was the solemn act which completed Judaism in Christianity, and this 'new thing' is the fulfilling of Christianity in Eucharistic man, to whom there is but one God - the Father - from Whom are all things, and for Whom we exist, and one Lord - Jesus Christ - through Whom are all things, and through Whom we exist (1Co 8:6), filled with the consolation of the Holy Ghost (Ac 9:31). This new man, 'Eucharistic man,' is made the justice of God in Christ Jesus (2Co 5:20,21), Who dwells in them, and walks among them. Jesus is their God, and they are His Personification, His people (2Co 6:16).

It is in Eucharistic man, the Eucharistic Church, that the mystery of God is finished, as declared by His servants, the prophets (Apoc 10:7). Eucharistic man is the Temple of God, and the Altar, and those that adore therein (Apoc 11:1), for all things are made new. It is done. These words are most faithful and true (Apoc 21:5,6), fulfilling the praise of the Psalmist: "O Lord Thou art faithful in all Thy words, and holy in all

Thy works (Ps 144:13). Now is fulfilled that which the prophet Jeremiah foretold that the days have come, God has made the new covenant with His Eucharistic children, the true Israel, for 'Israel' means 'the people of God' (Jr 31:23-33).

It is now that the transfer takes place, from the Christian man to Eucharistic man from our earthly body to our glorified body. This is when we come into Mount Sion, the City of the Living God, the Heavenly Jerusalem on earth, the Eternal Virgin Eucharistic Church of the Firstborn, who are written in the heavens. Therefore, Eucharistic man is fellow citizens with thousands upon thousands of angels, and the souls of the just departed since the beginning of the world, who have been sanctified and perfected through trials and tribulations. Eucharistic man is united in the presence of Almighty God, the Judge of all, assembled with Jesus, Triumphant Mediator of the New Testament, the Redeemer of mankind by the sprinkling of His Precious Blood (Hb 12:22-24), Which cried to Heaven on our behalf, for mercy and pardon (Lk 23:34).

Eucharistic man is Mount Sion, the loveliness of God's beauty (Ps 49:2), the Abode, and the Throne, and the City of our God (Ps 47:2; 75:3), bringing forth His law from Sion, and His word from Jerusalem (Is 2:3). Eucharistic man is the Holy City, the New Jerusalem, which is Justice and Peace, come down out of Heaven from our God (Apoc 21:2). The Throne of God, and of the Lamb is in we, Eucharistic man (Apoc 22:3-5).

Eucharistic man, which is now the entire Mystical Body of Christ, will praise God for ever, because He has done it! His Name has been implanted upon us, it is on our foreheads, and the Lord God enlightens us. It is in union and unity in Him, we reign for ever and ever (Apoc 21:2-23), in the Eternal Eucharistic Reign of Christ.

Now is the son of man glorified, and God is glorified in him. If God be glorified in him, God also will glorify him in Himself, and immediately will He glorify him (Jn 13:31,32). This glorified man is Eucharistic man, the fulfillment of the appearance of Moses and Elijah in majesty on Mount Tabor (Lk 9:30,31). In the mercy of the Lord, Eucharistic man is in His Mystical Union. The Authority, Power, Dominion of the Creator is in Eucharistic man, and to Almighty God we sing a new canticle, His praise in the Church of the saints (Ps 149:1).

In the Eucharistic Reign, Eucharistic man calls on Adonai, the Great I Am Who am, Who is forever He Who Is (Ex 3:14). He is God Almighty, and has shown His sons, Eucharistic man, His great Name, Adonai (Ex 6:3), which He did not show to even Abraham, Isaac, and Jacob.

It is therefore fitting that the New Creation, Eucharistic man, prays in thanksgiving the fulfillment of the Lord's Prayer as follows:

Our Father, Who art in Heaven which is now joined with earth, Hallowed be Thy Name.

Thy Kingdom is come.

Thy will is done in Heaven united on earth.

We have been delivered from evil, forever. Amen (Mt 6:9-13). Now begins the Reign of the Kingdom of God on earth as it is in Heaven, with no intervention from fallen man. If we were to have a 'Constitution' for the Kingdom, it would be simply: "Be you therefore perfect, as also your Heavenly Father is perfect" (Mt 5:48).

Appendix 1 The Masonic Aggiormento on Vatican II

Effective March 1962.

All warlocks (officers) shall report on the progress of these critical directives! Pope John XXIII will accept them easily!

- 1. Remove St. Michael, the protector of the Catholic Church, from every prayer whether inside or outside of the Mass, once and for all. Remove all of his statues. Say that it detracts from Christ.
- 2. Put a stop to practice of penance during Lent, such as eating no meat on Fridays, or fasting. Halt any acts of self-denial. Replace by acts of joy, happiness and love of neighbor. Say that Christ already won heaven for us, and that the efforts of humans are to no avail.
- 3. Assign Protestant Ministers to revise and desacredize the Mass. Instigate doubts that the Eucharist is closer to the Protestants belief that it is only bread and symbolic.
- 4. Stop all Latin in Mass Liturgy, and devotions and songs. It lends a feeling of mystery and respect. Show it up as mumbo jumbo of soothsayers. People will then stop thinking that Priests are of superior intelligence.
- 5. Encourage the ladies to remove their hats in Church; hair is sexy. And demand to be Acolytes and Priestesses. Base it on the Constitution. Start a women's liberation.
- 6. Stop Communicants from kneeling to receive the Host. Tell Nuns to stop the children from folding their hands to and from Communion. Tell them that God loves them as they are, and wants them to be perfectly relaxed.
- 7. Stop sacred organ music. Bring in Guitars, Jews Harps, Drums, and stomping of the feet. This will prevent any personal prayer or conversation with Jesus. Don't give Jesus time to call children to religious vocations.
- 8. Profane hymns to the Mother of God, St. Joseph. Call it idolatry. Replace with Protestant songs. This will imply that the Catholic Church is finally admitting that Protestantism is the true religion, or at least equal to the Catholic Church.
- 9. Replace all hymns, even to Jesus. This reminds people of their sweet

- childhood, which will in turn remind them of the peace that came from living a rigorous life of self-denial and penance for God. Bring in only new songs, to convince people that the former rites were somehow wrong. Be sure to have at least one song in each Mass that never mentions Jesus, but only love of humans. The young will be enthusiastic about love of neighbor.
- 10. Remove all Saints relics from Altars, and then remove the altars themselves. Replace with Pagan, unblessed tables, which will be used to offer live sacrifice at Satan Masses. Repeal the Church law that says that Mass in Churches can only be said on altars containing Saint's relics.
- 11. Stop the practice of saying Mass before the Holy Eucharist in the Tabernacle. Do not allow any Tabernacles on the tables used for the Mass. Make the table look like a dinner table. Make it portable, to imply that it is not sacred, but could do double duty for anything, such as a conference table or for playing cards. Later, put at least one chair at this table. Make the Priest sit in this, after Communion to signify that he rests after his meal. Never let the Priest kneel at Mass, nor genuflect people don't kneel at meals.
- 12. Remove Saints from the Church calendar, a few at a time. Forbid the Priests the right to talk about Saints, unless mentioned in the Gospel. Say that there might be Protestants in the Church who would not like it.
- 13. When introducing the Gospels, drop the word Saint, in Gospel according to Saint John, or any other Saint. Simply say, Gospel according to John. This will imply that people should not honor them anymore. Keep rewriting Bibles until identical to Protestants!
- 14. Remove and destroy all personal prayer books. This will stop Litanies to the Sacred Heart, the Blessed Mother, St. Joseph, and preparation for Communion. It will also effectively reduce thanksgiving after Communion to a sham.
- 15. Remove all statues and pictures of Angels. Why have statues of our enemies around? Call it a myth or a bedtime story.
- 16. Eliminate the Minor Order of Exorcist, for expelling Devils. Work hard on this one. Sell the idea that there is not a real Devil. Say it is the Bible's way of representing evil, and there can't be a good story without a villain. Then they will not believe in Hell either, and will

- never be afraid of going there. Say that Hell is nothing more but being away from God, and what is so bad about that?
- 17. Teach that Jesus was only a human, who had brothers and sisters, and He hated the establishment. Say that He loved the company of prostitutes, especially Mary Magdalene. Say that He had no use for Churches or Synagogues.
- 18. Remember that you can cause Nuns to quit, by appealing to their vanity, charm and beauty; make them change their Habits, which will automatically make them throw away their Rosaries. Show the world that there is dissention in their Convents, and vocations will dry up.
- 19. Burn all Catechisms. Tell religion teachers to teach love of God's people, instead of love of God. Tell them it is mature, to love openly. Make sex a common word in Religion Classes. Make sex a new Religion.
- 20. Close all Catholic Schools by reducing the number of Nun's vocations. Say that Nuns are just underpaid social workers, and the Church is getting rich off of them.
- 21. Destroy the Pope by destroying his Empire of Universities. Separate universities from the Pope by saying that the government would then be glad to give them grants of money. Change the names of religious institutions to profane names, such as Immaculate Conception School to Compton Heights School. Call it Ecumenical.
- 22. Attack the Pope's authority, by setting an age limit on his services. Reduce this gradually. Say that you are keeping him from being overworked.
- 23. Be bold, weaken the Pope by setting up a Bishop's Synod. The Pope will then be a figurehead, as England is ruled by the House of Lords and the House of Commons. The King takes orders from them. Then weaken the Bishop's authority by setting up a counterpart at the Priest's level. Say that the Priests are finally getting the recognition they deserve. Then weaken the Priest's authority by setting up lay groups to boss the Priests. There will be so much hatred developed, that even Cardinals will leave the Church. Say that the Church is now Democratic. Praise the New Collegiality.
- 24. Reduce Priest's vocations by losing the respect of the Laity. One scandal of a Priest in politics will lose thousands of vocations. Praise fallen away Priests, who give up everything for the love of a woman.

- Call them heroic. Honor laicized Priests, as true martyrs who were being so oppressed that they couldn't take it any longer.
- 25. Start closing Churches, because of lack of Priests, call it economizing, and good business practice. Say that God listens to prayers anywhere, so Churches are extravagant.
- 26. Use Lay Commissions and weak faith Priests to quickly condemn and disapprove of any new apparitions of the Blessed Mother or any alleged miracles, especially of St. Michael, the Archangel. Be absolutely certain that none whatever get approval after Vatican II. Then call it disobedience to authority if anybody follows the messages, or repeats them or EVEN THINKS about them.
- 27. Pass a law to disband the Curia each time a new Pope comes in. This is certain to insure that the Curia will contain many radicals and modernists.
- 28. Elect an Anti-Pope. Say that he will bring the Protestants back into the Church, and maybe even the Jews. Anti-Pope can be elected by giving the vote to the Bishops. There will be so many Popes nominated that an Anti-Pope will get in as a compromise Pope.
- 29. Eliminate Confession before first Holy Communion for 2nd and 3rd Grade children, so that they will not bother about Confession before Communion when they get into 4th or 5th or higher grades either. Confession will then disappear.
- 30. Get women and laity to give Communion, say that this is the Age of the Laity. Start giving Communion in the hand like the Protestants, instead of on the tongue say that Christ did it this way. Collect some for Satan Masses. Then replace individual Communion by a bowl of wafers, to be taken on leaving the Church. Say that they will then carry God's gift into their daily lives. Install Communion vending machines, call them Tabernacles.
- 31. After Anti-Pope reigns, disband Synod of Bishops, Priest's Unions, and lay advisor groups. Forbid any Religious to engage in politics without permission. Say that God loves humility, and hates glory seekers.
- 32. Give supreme power to Pope, to select his successors. Order the Mark of the Beast on all true lovers of God, under pain of excommunication.
- 33. Declare all former Church Dogmas false, except the Dogma of

Infallibility. State that Jesus Christ was a revolutionary that didn't make it. Say that the true Christ will soon come.

34. Order all subjects of the Pope, to fight in Holy Crusades to spread the One World Religion. Satan knows where all lost gold is! Ruthlessly conquer the world. This will give to humanity, what they have always yearned for the Golden Age of Peace.

Appendix 2 Exorcism Prayer

We, Eucharistic man, seal this Holy Church, against all wicked spirits who may try to hear or see, know or understand, what we think, say, or do, and bind them to silence and inactivity, and cast them into the deep recesses of hell. We join with Saint Michael the Archangel, in battle, waging war against the wickedness and the snares of the devil, and all the evil spirits, who prowl throughout the world, seeking the ruin of souls (1P 5:8). We render to Caesar the things that are Caesar's (Mk 12:17), we attack and destroy the synagogue of Satan, pull down all his ramparts and strongholds, where he dwells (Apoc 2:9,13), and pour darkness upon the seat of his power (Apoc 16:10). By the authority and power given to the Eucharistic Church, we the Mystical Body of Christ (Apoc 19:14), join in battle against all the forces of evil, and cast the antichrist, and the false prophet (Apoc 19:20), and the red dragon, who is the devil himself, along with all his evil spirits, down into hell, into the fire burning with brimstone, where they shall be tormented day and night forever and ever (Lk 4:6). In the power and authority of Eucharistic man, we render to God the things that are God's. We take back all the kingdoms of the world, and the power and the glory of them, which were given to the devil by Adam and Eve (Lk 4:6), and restore them all to Thee, our God and Father (1Co 15:24). We also deliver ourselves into Thy hands, so that Thee our God, may be All and in all (1Co 15:28). To the only God our Savior, through Jesus Christ our Lord, be glory and magnificence, empire and power, before all ages, and now, and for all ages of ages. Amen (Jude 1:25).

Appendix 3 Prayer for the Healing of the Nations

O Almighty God,

Father of Lights, of whom all paternity in Heaven and earth is named (Ep 3:15):

Thou hast given the Ten Commandments to all people to be obeyed (Ex 20:1-17).

Strange gods have been put in Thy place, materialism, pride and selfishness. The most holy Name of Jesus, our Lord God, is profaned throughout the earth.

The Sabbath day is turned into a day of commerce, revelry, sports and gambling worldwide. The honor of parents is replaced with disobedience and modernism.

Killing through contraception (Gn 38:9,10) and artificial birth control have replaced Thy gift of life giving creation. Instead man, whom Thou created, tries to dictate to Thee what should be and should not be.

Abortion is rampant throughout the earth as men and women sacrifice their sons and daughters to devils (Ps 105:37), and not only that, they mutilate themselves through sterilization. Adultery and homosexuality are common practices.

Stealing, lying and covetousness is the practice of whole governments and nations and peoples. Companies covet employees of other firms and entice them to themselves.

The sum total of the sins of the people is the sin of the nation.

Thou hast condemned all people and nations practicing and condoning contraception, sterilization, abortion, adultery, homosexuality, fornication and the living together as man and wife outside of marriage.

These and Godlessness and atheistic education are especially practiced and financed by the governments of the United States, China, Japan, England, Russia, France, Italy, Germany, Canada, Saudi Arabia and the

United nations. We ask Father, that all people and nations with such heinous sins repent and desist from such practices (Dt 31:26-29.

We beseech Thee Father, to immediately destroy the red dragon, which is atheistic communism, in China, North Korea, Russia, Serbia, Cuba and elsewhere, where humanity, created by Thee, is tortured,

imprisoned, and deprived of truth and life (Apoc 12:3).

We also beseech Thee to immediately destroy the beast like the dragon, which is Freemasonry, with its deadly grip on the governments and institutions of England, United States, Canada, Japan, France, Germany, Italy and all the Western nations including the United Nations (Apoc 13:1).

Almighty God, Father, Son and Holy Ghost, we further pray Thee to immediately destroy Zionism, fellow conspirator with Freemasonry, which is a pretense political system of prosperity for the country known as Israel, but in fact, id a secret organization, operated by a few, whose objective is the total enslavement of the world through the monetary system. It is from this Satanic group that comes the false messiah, the antichrist himself, with his 666 mark of the beast (Apoc 13:16-18). We also beseech Thee to immediately destroy the beast with two horns, like a lamb, and speaks as a dragon, this is Ecclesiastical masonry, which has infiltrated all the churches including the Roman Catholic Church, and with false teachings and compromised truths have placed greed and power before Thee. From this system comes the false prophet who works in conjunction with the antichrist for the enslavement of the world to Satan (Apoc 13:11).

We further pray Thee that this gospel of the Holy Sacrifice of the Mass be freely and openly celebrated in all the countries of Thy universe (Mt 24:14).

Almighty Father, Thou hast said through Thy servant Moses, "Behold I set forth in your sight this day a blessing and a curse:

A blessing, if you obey the commandments of the Lord your God, which I command you this day.

A curse, if you obey not the commandments of the Lord your God, but revolt from the way which now I show you, and walk after strange gods which you know not" (Dt 11:26-28).

Grant Almighty God, that all peoples and nations turn aside from their evil ways. We pray that they seek Thy blessings and come to Thee with all their heart and soul. We further pray that they come into this One, True, Holy, Eucharistic and Apostolic Church (Is 65:15b-17).

We ask this in the name of Jesus Christ Thy Son, our Lord, who lives and reigns with Thee and in the unity of the Holy Ghost, One God, world without end.

A. Amen.

Appendix 4 Fostering True Religious Unity

MORTALIUM ANIMOS

POPE PIUS XI TO HIS VENERABLE BRETHREN GIVES GREETING AND APOSTOLIC BENEDICTION.

Never perhaps in the past have the minds of men been so engrossed as they are today with the desire to strengthen and extend for the common good of mankind that tie of brotherhood--the result of our common origin and nature--which binds us all so closely together. The world does not yet fully enjoy the fruits of peace; on the contrary, dissensions old and new in various lands still issue in rebellions and conflict. Such disputes, affecting the tranquil prosperity of nations, can never be settled without the combined and active goodwill of those who are responsible for their government, and hence it is easy to understand-especially now that the unity of mankind is no longer called into question--the widespread desire that all nations, in view of this universal kinship, should daily find closer union with one another. It is with a similar motive that efforts are being made by some, in connection with the New Law promulgated by Christ our Lord. Assured that there exist few men who are entirely devoid of the religious sense, they seem to ground on this belief a hope that all nations, while differing indeed in religious matters, may yet without great difficulty be brought to fraternal agreement on certain points of doctrine which will form a common basis of the spiritual life. With this object congresses, meetings, and addresses are arranged, attended by a large concourse of hearers, where all without distinction, unbelievers of every kind as well as Christians, even those who unhappily have rejected Christ and denied His divine nature or mission, are invited to join in the discussion. Now, such efforts can meet with no kind of approval among Catholics. They presuppose the erroneous view that all religions are more or less good and praiseworthy, inasmuch as all give expression, under various forms, to that innate sense which leads men to God and to the obedient acknowledgment of His rule. Those who hold such a view are not only in error; they distort the true idea of religion, and thus reject it, falling gradually into naturalism and atheism. To favor this opinion, therefore, and to encourage such undertakings is tantamount to

abandoning the religion revealed by God.

Nevertheless, when there is a question of fostering unity among Christians, it is easy for many to be misled by the apparent excellence of the object to be achieved. Is it not right, they ask, is it not the obvious duty of all who invoke the name of Christ to refrain from mutual reproaches and at last to be united in charity? Dare anyone say that he loves Christ, and yet not strive with all his might to accomplish the desire of Him who asked His Father that His disciples might be "one" (John 17:21)? Did not Christ will that mutual charity should be the distinguishing characteristic of His disciples? "By this shall all men know that you are My disciples, if you have love one for another" (John 23:35). If only all Christians were "one" it is contended, then they might do so much more to drive out the pest of irreligion which with its insidious arid far-reaching advance is threatening to sap the strength of the Gospel. These and similar arguments, with amplifications, are constantly on the lips of the "pan-Christians" who, so far from being a few isolated individuals, have formed an entire class and grouped themselves into societies of extensive membership, usually under the direction of non-Catholics, who also disagree in matters of faith. The energy with which this scheme is being promoted has won for it many adherents, and even many Catholics are attracted by it, since it holds out the hope of a union apparently consonant with the wishes of Holy Mother Church, whose chief desire it is to recall her erring children and to bring them back to her bosom. In reality, however, these fair and alluring words cloak a most grave error, subversive of the foundations of the Catholic faith.

Conscious, therefore, of Our Apostolic office, which warns Us not to allow the flock of Christ to be led astray by harmful fallacies, We invoke your zeal, Venerable Brethren, to avert this evil. We feel confident that each of you, by written and spoken word, will explain clearly to the people the principles and arguments that We are about to set forth, so that Catholics may know what view and what course of action they should adopt regarding schemes for the promiscuous union into one body of all who call themselves Christians.

God, the Creator of all things, made us that we might know Him and serve Him; to our service, therefore, He has a full right. He might indeed have been contented to prescribe for man's government the

natural law alone, that is, the law which in creation He has written upon man's heart, and have regulated the progress of that law by His ordinary Providence. He willed, however, to make positive laws which we should obey, and progressively, from the beginnings of the human race until the coming and preaching of Jesus Christ, He Himself taught mankind the duties which a rational creature owes to His Creator. "God, Who at sundry times and in diverse manners spoke in times past to the fathers by the prophets, last of all in these days hath spoken to us by His Son" (Heb.1:1, seq.). Evidently, therefore, no religion can be true save that which rests upon the revelation of God, a revelation begun from the very first, continued under the Old Law, and brought to completion by Jesus Christ Himself under the New. Now, if God has spoken--and it is historically certain that He has in fact spoken--then it is clearly man's duty implicitly to believe His revelation and to obey His commands. That we might rightly do both, for the glory of God and for our own salvation, the only-begotten Son of God founded His Church on earth. None, we think, of those who claim to be Christians will deny that a Church, and one sole Church, was founded by Christ. On the further question, however, as to what in the intention of its Founder was to be the precise nature of that Church, there is not the same agreement. Many of them, for example, deny that the Church of Christ was intended to be visible and manifest, at any rate in the sense that it was to be visibly the one body of the faithful, agreeing in one and the same doctrine under one teaching and governing authority. They conceive the visible Church as nothing more than a federation of the various Christian communities, even though these may hold different and mutually exclusive doctrines. The truth is that Christ founded His Church as a perfect society, of its nature external and perceptible to the senses, which in the future should carry on the work of the salvation of mankind under one head, with a living teaching authority, administering the sacraments which are the sources of heavenly grace (John 3:5; 6:48.59, 20:22 seq.; cf. Matt. 18:18, etc.). Wherefore He compared His Church to a kingdom (Matt. 13), to a house (cf. Matt. 16:18), to a sheepfold (John 10:16), and to a flock (John 21:15-17). The Church thus wondrously instituted could not cease to exist with the death of its Founder and of the Apostles, the pioneers of its

propagation; for its mission was to lead all men to salvation, without

distinction of time or place: "Going therefore, teach ye all nations" (Matt. 28:19). Nor could the Church ever lack the effective strength necessary for the continued accomplishment of its task, since Christ Himself is perpetually present with it, according to His promise: "Behold, I am with you all days, even to the consummation of the world" (Matt. 28:20). Hence not only must the Church still exist today and continue always to exist, but it must ever be exactly the same as it was in the days of the Apostles. Otherwise we must say--which God forbid--that Christ has failed in His purpose, or that He erred when He asserted of His Church that the gates of hell should never prevail against it (Matt. 16:18).

And here it will be opportune to expound and to reject a certain false opinion which lies at the root of this question and of that complex movement by which non- Catholics seek to bring about the union of Christian Churches. Those who favor this view constantly quote the words of Christ, "That they may be one ... And there shall be one fold and one shepherd" (John 17:21, 10:16), in the sense that Christ thereby merely expressed a desire or a prayer which as yet has not been granted. For they hold that the unity of faith and government which is a note of the one true Church of Christ has up to the present time hardly ever existed, and does not exist today. They consider that this unity is indeed to be desired and may even, by cooperation and good will, be actually attained, but that meanwhile it must be regarded as a mere ideal. The Church, they say, is of its nature divided into sections, composed of, several churches or distinct communities which still remain separate, and although holding in common some articles of doctrine, nevertheless differ concerning the remainder; that all these enjoy the same rights; and that the Church remained one and undivided at the most only from the Apostolic age until the first Ecumenical Councils. Hence, they say, controversies and long-standing differences, which today still keep asunder the members of the Christian family, must be entirely set aside, and from the residue of doctrines a common form of faith drawn up and proposed for belief, in the profession of which all may not only know but also feel themselves to be brethren. If the various Churches or communities were united in some kind of universal federation, they would then be in a position to oppose resolutely and successfully the progress of irreligion.

Such, Venerable Brethren, is the common contention. There are indeed some who recognize and affirm that Protestantism has with inconsiderate zeal rejected certain articles of faith and external ceremonies which are in fact useful and attractive, and which the Roman Church still retains. But they immediately go on to say that the Roman Church, too, has erred, and corrupted the primitive religion by adding to it and proposing for belief doctrines not only alien to the Gospel but contrary to its spirit. Chief among these they count that of the primacy of jurisdiction granted to Peter and to his successors in the See of Rome. There are actually some, though few, who grant to the Roman Pontiff a primacy of honor and even a certain power or jurisdiction; this, however, they consider to arise not from the divine law but merely from the consent of the faithful. Others, again, even go so far as to desire the Pontiff himself to preside over their mixed assemblies. For the rest, while you may hear many non-Catholics loudly preaching brotherly communion in Jesus Christ, yet not one will you find to whom it even occurs with devout submission to obey the Vicar of Jesus Christ in his capacity of teacher or ruler. Meanwhile they assert their readiness to treat with the Church of Rome, but on equal terms, as equals with an equal. But even if they could so treat, there seems little doubt that they would do so only on condition that no pact into which they might enter should compel them to retract those opinions which still keep them outside the one fold of Christ. This being so, it is clear that the Apostolic See can by no means take part in these assemblies, nor is it in any way lawful for Catholics to give to such enterprises their encouragement or support. If they did so, they would be giving countenance to a false Christianity quite alien to the one Church of Christ. Shall we commit the iniquity of suffering the truth, the truth revealed by God, to be made a subject for compromise? For it is indeed a question of defending revealed truth. Jesus Christ sent His Apostles into the whole world to declare the faith of the Gospel to every nation, and, to save them from error, He willed that the Holy Ghost should first teach them all truth. Has this doctrine, then, disappeared, or at any time been obscured, in the Church of which God Himself is the ruler and guardian? Our Redeemer plainly said that His Gospel was intended not only for the apostolic age but for all time. Can the object of faith, then, have become in the process of time so dim and

uncertain that today we must tolerate contradictory opinions? If this were so, then we should have to admit that the coming of the Holy Ghost upon the Apostles, the perpetual indwelling of the same Spirit in the Church, nay, the very preaching of Jesus Christ, have centuries ago lost their efficacy and value. To affirm this would be blasphemy. The only-begotten Son of God not only bade His representatives to teach all nations; He also obliged all men to give credence to whatever was taught them by "witnesses preordained by God" (Acts 10:41). Moreover, He enforced His command with this sanction: "He that believeth and is baptized shall be saved; he that believeth not shall be condemned" (Mark 16:16). These two commands, the one to teach, the other to believe for salvation, must be obeyed. But they cannot even be understood unless the Church proposes an inviolate and clear teaching, and in proposing it is immune from all danger of error. It is also false to say that, although the deposit of truth does indeed exist, yet it is to be found only with such laborious effort and after such lengthy study and discussion, that a man's life is hardly long enough for its discovery and attainment. This would be equivalent to saying that the most merciful God spoke through the prophets and through His only-begotten Son merely in order that some few men, and those advanced in years, might learn what He had revealed, and not in order to inculcate a doctrine of faith and morals by which man should be guided throughout the whole of his life.

These pan-Christians who strive for the union of the Churches would appear to pursue the noblest of ideals in promoting charity among all Christians. But how should charity tend to the detriment of faith? Everyone knows that John himself, the Apostle of love, who seems in his Gospel to have revealed the secrets of the Sacred Heart of Jesus, and who never ceased to impress upon the memory of his disciples the new commandment "to love one another," nevertheless strictly forbade any intercourse with those who professed a mutilated and corrupt form of Christ's teaching: "If any man come to you, and bring not this doctrine, receive him not into the house, nor say to him, God speed you" (2John 10).

Therefore, since the foundation of charity is faith pure and inviolate, it is chiefly by the bond of one faith that the disciples of Christ are to be united. A federation of Christians, then, is inconceivable in which each

member retains his own opinions and private judgment in matters of faith, even though they differ from the opinions of all the rest. How can men with opposite convictions belong to one and the same federation of the faithful: those who accept sacred Tradition as a source of revelation and those who reject it; those who recognize as divinely constituted the hierarchy of bishops, priests, and ministers in the Church, and those who regard it as gradually introduced to suit the conditions of the time: those who adore Christ really present in the Most Holy Eucharist through that wonderful conversion of the bread and wine, transubstantiation, and those who assert that the body of Christ is there only by faith or by the signification and virtue of the sacrament; those who in the Eucharist recognize both sacrament and sacrifice, and those who say that it is nothing more than the memorial of the Lord's supper; those who think it right and useful to pray to the Saints reigning with Christ, especially to Mary the Mother of God, and to venerate their images, and those who refuse such veneration as derogatory to the honor due Jesus Christ, "the one mediator of God and men" (cf. I Tim.2:5)?

Church, We know not. That unity can arise only from one teaching authority, one law of belief, and one faith of Christians. But we do know that from such a state of affairs it is but an easy step to the neglect of religion or "indifferentism," and to the error of the modernists, who hold that dogmatic truth is not absolute but relative, that is, that it changes according to the varying necessities of time and place and the varying tendencies of the mind; that it is not contained in an immutable tradition, but can be altered to suit the needs of human life. Furthermore, it is never lawful to employ in connection with articles of faith the distinction invented by some between "fundamental" and "non-fundamental" articles, the former to be accepted by all, the latter being left to the free acceptance of the faithful. The supernatural virtue of faith has as its formal motive the authority of God revealing, and this allows of no such distinction. All true followers of Christ, therefore, will believe the dogma of the Immaculate Conception of the Mother of God with the same faith as they believe the mystery of the August Trinity, the infallibility of the Roman Pontiff in the sense defined by the Ecumenical Vatican Council with the same faith as they believe the

How so great a variety of opinions can clear the way for the unity of the

Incarnation of our Lord. That these truths have been solemnly sanctioned and defined by the Church at various times, some of them even quite recently, makes no difference to their certainty, nor to our obligation of believing them. Has not God revealed them all? The teaching authority of the Church in the divine wisdom was constituted on earth in order that the revealed doctrines might remain for ever intact and might be brought with ease and security to the knowledge of men. This authority is indeed daily exercised through the Roman Pontiff and the Bishops who are in communion with him; but it has the further office of defining some truth with solemn decree whenever it is opportune, and whenever this is necessary either to oppose the errors or the attacks of heretics, or again to impress the minds of the faithful with a clearer and more detailed explanation of the articles of sacred doctrine. But in the use of this extraordinary teaching authority no fresh invention is introduced, nothing new is ever added to the number of those truths which are at least implicitly contained within the deposit of Revelation divinely committed to the Church; but truths which to some perhaps may still seem obscure are rendered clear, or a truth which some may have called into question is declared to be of faith.

Thus, Venerable Brethren, it is clear why this Apostolic See has never allowed its subjects to take part in the assemblies of non-Catholics. There is but one way, in which the unity of Christians may be fostered, and that is by furthering the return to the one true Church of Christ of those who are separated from it; for from that one true Church they have in the past fallen away. The one Church of Christ is visible to all, and will remain, according to the will of its Author, exactly the same as He instituted it. The mystical Spouse of Christ has never in the course of centuries been contaminated, nor in the future can she ever be, as Cyprian bears witness: "The Bride of Christ cannot become false to her Spouse; she is inviolate and pure. She knows but one dwelling and chastely and modestly she guards the sanctity of the nuptial chamber" (De Cath. Ecclesiae unitate, 6). The same holy martyr marveled that anyone could believe that "this unity of the Church built upon a divine foundation, knit together by heavenly sacraments, could ever be rent asunder by the conflict of wills" (ibid.). For since the mystical body of Christ, like His physical body, is one (1Cor. 12:12), compactly and fitly joined together (Eph. 4:15), it were foolish to say that the mystical body is composed of disjointed and scattered members. Whosoever therefore is not united with the body is no member thereof, neither is he in communion with Christ its head.

Furthermore, in this one Church of Christ no man can be or remain who does not accept, recognize, and obey the authority and supremacy of Peter and his legitimate successors. Did not the ancestors of those who are now entangled in the errors of Photius and of the Reformers obey the Bishop of Rome, the chief shepherd of souls? Their children, alas! have left the home of their fathers; but that house did not therefore fall to the ground and perish for ever, for it was supported by God. Let them. then, return to their Father, who, forgetting the insults in the past heaped upon the Apostolic See, will accord them a most loving welcome. If, as they constantly say, they long to be united with Us and Ours, why do they not hasten to enter the Church, "the mother and mistress of all Christ's faithful"? (Conc. Lateran, iv. c. 5). Let them heed the words of Lactantius: "The Catholic Church is alone in keeping the true worship. This is the fount of truth, this the house of faith, this the temple of God; if any man enter not here, or if any man go forth from it, he is a stranger to the hope of life and salvation. Let none delude himself with obstinate wrangling. For life and salvation are here concerned, and these will be lost forever unless their interests be carefully and assiduously kept in mind" (Divin. Inst. lv. 30, 11.12). Let our separated children, therefore, draw night o the Apostolic See, set up in the City which Peter and Paul, Princes of the Apostles, consecrated by their blood: to the See which is "the root and womb whence issues the Church of God" (Cypr. Ep. 48 ad Cornelium, 3); and let them come, not with any intention or hope that "the Church of the living God, the pillar and ground of the truth" (1 Tim. 3:15), will cast aside the integrity of the faith and tolerate their errors, but to submit themselves to its teaching and government. Would that the happy lot, denied to so many of Our Predecessors, might at last be Ours, to embrace with fatherly affection those children whose unhappy separation from Us We now deplore. Would that God our Saviour, "Who will have all men to be saved, and to come to the knowledge of the truth" (1Tim. 2:4), might hear our humble prayer and vouchsafe to recall to the unity of the Church all that are gone astray. To this allimportant end We implore, and We desire that others should implore, the intercession of the Blessed Virgin Mary, Mother of divine grace, Help of Christians, victorious over all heresies, that she may entreat for Us the speedy coming of that longed-for day, when all men shall hear the voice of her divine Son, and shall be "careful to keep the unity of the Spirit in the bond of peace" (Eph. 4:3).

You, Venerable Brethren, know how dear to Our heart is this desire, and We wish that Our children also should know, not only those belonging to the Catholic fold, but also those separated from Us. If these will humbly beg light from heaven, there is no doubt but that they will recognize the one true Church of Jesus Christ, and entering therein, will at last be united with Us in perfect charity. In the hope of this fulfillment, and as a pledge of Our fatherly goodwill, We impart most lovingly to you, Venerable Brethren, and to your clergy and people, the Apostolic Benediction.

Given at S. Peter's, Rome, on the 6th day of January, the Feast of the Epiphany of our Lord Jesus Christ in the year 1928, the sixth of Our Pontificate.

Pius PP. XI

Appendix 5 1619 Prophecy

(Author known, scribe unknown)

There shall be a total, full redemption of Christ. This is a hidden mystery not to be revealed, or understood, without the revelation of the Holy Spirit. The Holy Spirit is at hand to reveal the same unto all holy seekers and loving inquirers. The completion of such redemption is withheld and abstracted by the seals of revelation. Wherefore, as the Spirit of God shall open seal after seal, so shall this redemption come to be revealed, both particularly and universally.

In the gradual opening of the mystery of redemption in Christ does consist the unsearchable wisdom of God, which will continually reveal new and fresh things to the worthy seeker.

Before the Ark of Testimony shall be opened before the end of the age. the Living Testimony, herein contained, shall be unsealed. The Presence of the Divine Ark will constitute the life of this Virgin Church. Wherever the Body is, there must be, of necessity, the Divine Ark. Along with the unsealing of the Living Testimony, with the Ark of God, must begin the promulgation of the everlasting gospel of the Kingdom. The proclamation of this Testimony will be as a sounding of a trumpet to alarm the nations and peoples of professed Christendom. Authority shall be given by Christ to the putting to an end all controversy concerning the True Church that is born of the New Jerusalem mother. His decision will be the actual sealing of the Body of Christ with the Name of God, giving them commission to act by the same authority. This new Name will distinguish them from the 7,000 names of Babylon. The election and preparation of this Virgin Church is to be after a secret and hidden manner even as David, in his ministry, was chosen and anointed by the prophet of the Lord, yet was not admitted to the outward profession of the kingdom for a considerable time afterward. The stem of David, a Virgin Church which has known nothing of man or human constitution is to be born. It will require some time for it to get out of the minority and arrive at the full, mature age. The birth of this Virgin Church was typified by John's vision where the Great Wonder appeared in heaven, bringing forth the first born that was caught up to the Throne of God (or identified with the authority of the Throne of God). For, as a virgin woman brought forth Christ after the

flesh, so shall the first born bring forth the Virgin Church after the Spirit, Who shall be endowed with the seven spirits of God. This Church so brought forth and sealed with the mark of divine authority, will have no bonds of impositions; but the holy unction and anointing among these new born spirits will be all in all. There is not this day (the year 1619) visible up on the earth such a church. All profession has been found light when weighed in the balances. Therefore, they are all rejected by the supreme Judge, which rejection will be for this cause that out of them may come a new and perfect, glorious Church. Then the glory of God and the Lamb shall so rest upon this typical tabernacle that it shall be called the Tabernacle of Wisdom.

Although it is not now known in visibility, yet it shall be seen as coming out of the wilderness within a short time. Then it will go on to multiply and propagate itself universally, not only in the number of the firstborn (144,000), but also to the remnant of the seed, against whom the dragon will make war continually. Wherefore, the spirit of David shall revive in the Church, and especially in some elect members of it, as the blossoming root. These will have authority and power given to them to overcome the dragon and his angels even as David overcame the Philistine army.

This will be the standing up of the great Prince Michael, and it will be as the appearing of Moses against Pharaoh in order that the chosen seed may be brought out of hard servitude. Egypt doth figure in this servile creation under which Abraham's seed does groan. But a prophet and a most prophetical generation will the Most High God raise up who shall deliver His people by force of spiritual arms, for which there must be raised up certain head powers to bear the first office, who are persons in favor with God, whose dread and fear shall fall upon all nations, visible and invisible, because of the mighty acting power of the Holy Spirit which shall rest upon them. For Christ will literally appear to some chosen vessels to bring into the promised land the full, new creation state.

Thus, Moses, Joshua and Aaron may be considered types of some upon whom the same spirit will come, yet in greater proportion, whereby they shall make way for the ransomed to return to Mount Zion. But none shall stand under God but those who have become tried stones after the pattern and similitude of Christ. This will be a fiery trial

through which only a few will be able to pass or bear up in it. Whereby the waiters for this visible breaking forth are strictly charged to hold fast and wait together in pure love. These trials will be of absolute necessity for the clearing away of all remaining infirmities of the natural mind and the burning of all wood, hay and stubble, for nothing must remain in the fire, for as a refiner shall He purify the sons of the Kingdom.

There will be some who will be fully redeemed, being clothed upon with a priestly garment after the order of Melchizedek. This will qualify them for governing authority. Therefore, it is required on their part to suffer the spirit of burning and fanning of the fiery breath, searching every part within, until they arrive at a fixed body, from whence the wonders of God will flow out.

Upon this body will be the fixation of urim and thummin that is the portion of the Melchizedek priesthood whose descent is not counted in the genealogy which is the new creation. Hence, these priests will have a deep, inward search and divine insight into the secret things of deity. They will be able to prophesy in a clear ground, not darkly or enigmatically, for they will know what is couched in the first originality of all beings in the eternal ante-type of nature. They will be able to bring them forth according to divine counsel and ordination. The Lord swears in truth and righteousness that from Abraham's line, according to the Spirit, there shall arise a holy seed, produced and manifested in the last age. The mighty spirit of Cyrus is appointed to lay the foundation of this third temple and support it in building. There are characteristics and marks whereby the pure virgin Church shall be known and distinguished from all others that are low, false and counterfeit.

There must be a manifestation of the Spirit to edify and raise up this Church, whereby bringing heaven down upon earth and representing here the New Jerusalem State, in order to which spirits are thus begotten and born of God and ascending to the New Jerusalem above, where their Head in majesty doth reign. None but those who have ascended and received His glory can descend and communicate the same, being thereby His representatives upon earth and subordinate priests under Him now. He (Jesus) has ascended and become glorified, has made Himself, as it were our debtor. Consequently, He will not be

lacking in qualifying and furnishing certain high and principal agents or instruments who shall be most humble and as little regarded as David was, whom He will dignify with honor and priestly sovereignty for drawing to them the scattered flocks and gathering them into one fold out of all the nations.

Therefore, there should be a holy emulation stirred up among the bands of believers that they may be of the first fruits unto Him that is risen from the dead and so be made principal agents for Him and with Him; that they may be, if possible, of the number of the first born of the New Jerusalem Mother.

All true waiters of His Kingdom Spirit, under whatsoever profession they may be, ought to be numbered among the Virgin Spirits to whom this message appertains. Be watchful and quicken your pace.

Abbreviations of the books of the Bible

in Alphabetical Order of Abbreviations

1Ch1 Chronicles

1Co1 Corinthians

1Jn1 John

1K 1 Kings

1M 1 Maccabees

1P1 Peter

1S1 Samuel

1T1 Timothy

1Th1 Thessalonians

2Ch2 Chronicles

2Co2 Corinthians

2Jn2 John

2K 2 Kings

2M 2 Maccabees

2P2 Peter

2S2 Samuel

2T2 Timothy

2Th2 Thessalonians

3Jn3 John

3K3 Kings

4K4 Kings

Ac Acts

Am Amos

Apoc Apocalypse

Ba Baruch

Col Colossians

Dn Daniel

Dt Deuteronomy

Ec Ecclesiastes

Ep Ephesians

Es Esther

Ex Exodus

Ez Ezekiel

Ezr Ezra

Ga Galatians

Gn Genesis

Hk Habakkuk

Hg Haggai

Hb Hebrews

Ho Hosea

Is Isaiah

Jm James

Jr Jeremiah

Job Job

Jl Joel

Jn John

JonJonah

Jos Joshua

Jude Jude

Jg Judges

Jdt Judith

La Lamentations

Lv Leviticus

Lk Luke

MalMalachi

Mk Mark

Mt Matthew

Mi Micah

Na Nahum

Ne Nehemiah

Nu Numbers ObdObadiah

PhmPhilemon

Phil Philippians

Pr Proverbs

Ps Psalms

Rm Romans

Ru Ruth

Si (Ecclesiasticus) Sirach

Sg (Canticles) Songs

Tb Tobit

Tt Titus

Ws Wisdom Zc Zechariah Zp Zephaniah

Select Bibliography

The Holy Bible. The Douay Rheims Version, P. J. Kenedy & Sons, New York. 1950.

The New Jerusalem Bible, Doubleday & Company, New York. 1985.

Rev. R. Gerald Culleton. The Prophets and our Times, Tan Books and Publishers, Inc., Rockford, Ill 61105. 1974

John J. Delaney. Dictionary of Saints, Doubleday & Co., Inc. Garden City, New York. 1980.

Gary Allen, "None Dare Call It Conspiracy," 1971. Now available from CPA Books, P.O. Box 596, Boring, OR. 97009.

Peter Bander, "The Prophecies of St. Malachy," TAN Books and Publishers, Inc., P.O. Box 424, Rockford, IL 61105. 1987.

Devlin Thomas A., "The Gift of Morning Star," 1992.

Rev Denis Fahey, C.S.Sp., The Kingship of Christ and The Conversion of the Jewish Nation, The Christian Book Club of America, 1993. Stephen Knight, "The Brotherhood," Harper Collins, London, 1994.

Stephen Knight, "The Brotherhood," Harper Collins, London, 1994. Don Briody, "The Iron Triangle," John Wiley and Sons, New Jersey,

Don Briody, "The Iron Triangle," John Wiley and Sons, New Jersey, 2003.

Publications by the same author

Published under the name of Thomas Aquinas Devlin:

The Gift of Morning Star

Why Mary?

Published by Father Aquinas:

Angels, Angelic Warfare, and You

Arrival of Morning Star

Bethlehem - New Life

Essays on Various Subjects

Handbook of Rites And Blessings

Mary

Miraculous Events

Missal Prayer Book

Prayers Everyone Should Know

The Ark of the Covenant

The Eternal Priesthood

The Holy Rosary

The Holy Sacrament of Confessions

The Last Gospel

The Message. The Warning. The Conclusion.

The New Creation State

The Reign of Christ in His Second Coming

The Return of Man to God

The Sacrament of Holy Eucharist

The Seven Sacraments of the Church

The Third Testament - The Eternal Virgin Eucharistic Church

The Three Days of Darkness

The 666

Understanding the Apocalypse

Published by:

Kingship of Christ

Web address: www.kingshipofchrist.org